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Letter fromthe Ghairrnan

Thank you for
your

investment in United Development Funding IV UDF IV
We are pleased to report

the 2011 fourth
quarter and year end results for UDF IV

and provide updates on market conditions and our ongoing capital raise UDF IV

continues to enjoy strong operating results Through December 31 2011 we raised

approximately $144.4 million in capital increased our portfolio to approximately

5146 million and received more than $72 million in repayments

Strong demand for finished lot and home construction financing in our markets

combined with the ongoing growth in our capital raise and favorable operating

leverage has resulted in continued
strong operating results Income for the year

ended 2011 was $1.66 per weighted average
share In 2011 UDF IV declared two

special distributions totaling $.15 per share which is the equivalent of an additional

75 basis points to the annualized distribution On June 272011 the Board of Trustees

authorized an increase to the base distribution rate from 8.0% to 8.2% effective July

2011 Subsequent to the close of the calendar
year

the Board of Trustees authorized

its th special distribution Shareholders of record as of April 30 2012 will receive an

additional $0.05 per share which is the equivalent of an additional 25 basis points

to the annualized distribution payable in May 2012 With the payment of our

special distribution UDF IV will have paid an additional 200 basis points to the base

annualized distribution since inception

UDF IV is taking advantage of distress in commercial
lending markets for residential

real estate most notably among local and regional banks Specifically UDF IV is

filling the continuing market demand for financing by providing primarily first

lien senior secured loans to seasoned homebuilders and developers financing that

was traditionally provided by the local and regional banks who have been unable or

unwilling to fund new home construction new lot purchases or new lot development

We remain focused on the strongest housing markets in the country which did not

participate in the housing bubble We concentrate in the markets with affordable and

stable home prices balanced supplies strong demand fundamentals job growth

population growth household formation and consumer confidence and
strong or

resilient economies Today those markets are in Texas where 98% of our portfolio

is concentrated Texas did not participate in the housing bubble and demonstrated

the aforementioned economic resiliency by resisting the national recession by nearly

year
and entering recovery

months ahead of the nation Since the first
quarter

of

2009 Texas has led the recovery and has now entered expansion even as the states

mostaffected by the housing bubble continue to struggle



In the last 12 months Texas has created more than

245000 jobs and nearly 292000 jobs in the private

sector Furthermore that
job growth has been

diversified across variety of sectors Three different

sectors of the economy added more than 50000

jobs in Texas and an additional three sectors added

more than 20000 jobs over the same time period

number of other sectors contributed positivelyto job

growth as well This robust
job growth has helped

support consumers sentiment Texas regional

consumer confidence has maintained reading

around 90 over the past three months An index

reading of 90 is typically associated with normalized

economic conditions In contrast the national index

is nearly 20 points lower

Heightened consumer confidence has helped spur

greater home sales in our markets New home sales

in Austin in the fourth quarter for example rose

8.2% from the fourth quarter of 2010 while new

home sales in Houston similarly rose 8.60o year

over year in the same period These increases in

new home sales are prompting greater numbers of

new home starts in our markets New home starts

rose 19.7% and 23.4% year over year
in Austin and

Houston respectively in the fourth quarter of 2011

compared to the fourth
quarter of 2010

The increased levels of home starts coupled with

the limited amount of
development that has taken

place over the past four
years has led to shortages of

finished lots and homes in many of the submarkets

where we invest We forecasted and shared with you

these shortages in prior communications and they

will likely continue for some time since developers

and homebuilders continue to be challenged by

persisting lack of bank financing for development

and home construction The shortages and

constrained credit provide continued opportunities

for our portfolio to capitalize on in the midst of

increasingly strong long term residential housing

fundamentals in our markets

The economic environment in which we find

ourselves will allow the strong to get stronger as

the Federal Reserve and the Federal Government

take steps to support the weak In low interest rate

environment consumers in those housing markets

which did not participate in the housing bubble will

reap the greatest benefit particularly if the demand

fundamentals of job growth population growth

household formation and consumer confidence are

present and strong

At UDF we continue to monitor the other largest

housing markets in the
country evaluating their

fundamentals with the expectation of
entering

those markets as their respective housing inventories

return to equilibrium and demand fundamentals

are restored We continue to be
pleased with the

performance of UDF IV and are confident that we

are welhpositioned going forward We thank you for

your investment and support and we look forward

to updating you in future quarters

Sincery

HOLLJS GREENLAW
arman of the Board of Trustees of UDF
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Portfolio Highlights
Unfted Development Funding IV

UDF Sinclair L.R

$1.48 million loan initially secured by first lien against approximately 87 finished residential lots in Rancho Rosillo
residential subdivision

HILL II Land Acquisitions of Texas L.R

$1.9 million loan initially evidenced and secured by

first lien deed of trust recorded against approximately
68 finished residential lots and 148 undeveloped lots in

Highland Farms residential subdivision
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Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report contains forward-looking statements including discussion and analysis of United

Development Funding 1V which may be referred to as the Trust we us our or UDF IV and our

subsidiaries our financial condition our investment objectives amounts of anticipated cash distributions to our

common shareholders in the future and other matters Our statements contained in this annual report
that are not

historical facts are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933

as amended and Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and are the intent belief or

current expectations of our management based on their knowledge and understanding of the business and

industry Words such as may anticipates expects intends plans believes seeks estimates

would could should and variations of these words and similar expressions are intended to identify

forward-looking statements These statements are not guaranties of our future performance and are subject to

risks uncertainties and other factors some of which are beyond our control are difficult to predict and could

cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements

Forward-looking statements that were true at the time made may ultimately prove to be incorrect or false

We caution you not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements which reflect our managements view

only as of the date of this Form 10-K We undertake no obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements

to reflect changed assumptions the occurrence of unanticipated events or changes to future operating results

Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from any forward-looking statements made in this Form

10-K include changes in general economic conditions changes in real estate conditions development costs that

may exceed estimates development delays increases in interest rates residential lot take down or purchase rates

or inability to sell residential lots experienced by our borrowers and the potential need to fund development costs

not completed by the initial borrower or other capital expenditures out of operating cash flows The forward-

looking statements should be read in light of the risk factors identified in the Risk Factors section of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

FART

Item Business

General

United Development Funding IV was organized on May 28 2008 Inception as Maryland real estate

investment trust The Trust is the sole general partner of and owns 99.999% partnership
interest in United

Development Funding IV Operating Partnership L.P UDF 1V OP Delaware limited partnership UMTH

Land Development L.P UMTH LD Delaware limited partnership and the affiliated asset manager of the

Trust is the sole limited partner and owner of 0.001% minority interest of the partnership interests in UDF IV

OP At December 31 2011 and 2010 UDF IV OP had no assets liabilities or equity The Trust owns 100%

limited partnership interest in UDF TV Home Finance LP UDF IV HF UDF IV Finance LP UDF IV Fl
UDF IV Finance II LP UDF IV FIT UDF IV Acquisitions LP UDF TV AC and UDF IV Finance III LP

UDF IV FIJI all Delaware limited partnerships The Trust is the sole member of UDF IV HF Manager

LLC UDF IV HFM Delaware limited liability company the general partner of UDF IV HF ii UDF IV

Finance Manager LLC UDF IV FIM Delaware limited liability company the general partner of UDF IV

Fl iii UDF IV Finance II Manager LLC UDF IV FIlM Delaware limited liability company the general

partner of UDF IV FIT iv UDF IV Acquisitions Manager LLC UDF TV ACM Delaware limited liability

company the general partner of UDF IV AC and UDF IV Finance III Manager LLC UDF IV FITIM
Delaware limited liability company the general partner of UDF IV FIJI

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 UDF IV HFM UDF P1 FIM UDF IV FIlM UDF IV ACM and

UDF IV FIIIM had no assets liabilities or equity

The Trust uses substantially all of the net proceeds from the public offering of common shares of

beneficial interest in the Trust to originate purchase participate in and hold for investment secured loans made

directly by the Trust or indirectly through its affiliates to persons and entities for the acquisition
and development

of parcels of real property as single-family residential lots and the construction of model and new single-family



homes including development of mixed-use master planned residential communities The Trust may also make
direct investments in land for development into single-family lots new and model homes and portfolios of

finished lots and homes provides credit enhancements to real estate developers home builders land bankers and

other real estate investors and purchases participations in or finances for other real estate investors the purchase

of securitized real estate loan pools and discounted cash flows secured by state county municipal or other

similar assessments levied on real property The Trust also may enter into joint ventures with unaffihiated real

estate developers home builders land bankers and other real estate investors or with other United Development
Funding-sponsored programs to originate or acquire as the case may be the same kind of secured loans or real

estate investments the Trust may originate or acquire directly As of December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 our

total assets were approximately $166.5 million $79.6 million and $8.3 million respectively For the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 our total revenues were approximately $13.3 million $4.5 million and

$4000 respectively and our net income was approximately $7.9 million $2.2 million and $22000
respectively

We made an election under Section 856c of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the
Internal Revenue Code to be taxed as real estate investment trust REIT beginning with the taxable year
ended December 31 2010 as it was our first year with material operations As REIT we generally are not

subject to federal income tax on income that we distribute to our shareholders If we later fail to qualify as REIT
in any taxable year we will be subject to federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and

may not be permitted to qualify for treatment as REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years following
the year in which our qualification is denied unless we are entitled to relief under certain statutory provisions
Such an event could materially and adversely affect our net income However we intend to continue to operate so

as to remain qualified as REIT for federal income tax purposes

UMTH General Services L.P Delaware limited partnership UMTH GS or the Advisor is our

advisor and is responsible for managing our affairs on day-to-day basis UMTH GS has engaged UMTH LD as

our asset manager The asset manager oversees the investing and
financing activities of the affiliated programs

managed and advised by the Advisor and UMTH LD as well as provides our board of trustees recommendations

regarding investments and finance transactions management policies and guidelines and reviews investment

transaction structure and terms investment underwriting investment collateral investment performance
investment risk management and our capital structure at both the entity and asset level Please see Item
Business Investment Objectives and Policies Conflicts of Interest for diagram illustrating the relationships

between our Advisor and its affiliates 26% of our portfolio consists of current performing investments with our

Advisor and its affiliates For the
years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 we paid approximately $7.2

million $3.8 million and $123000 respectively to our Advisor and other affiliated entities for fees expenses and

compensation For the
years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 we incurred general and administrative

related parties expenses of approximately $737000 and $345000 respectively to our Advisor and other

affiliated entities for fees expenses and compensation We did not incur any general and administrative related

parties expenses for the year ended December 31 2009

On November 12 2009 our Registration Statement on Form S-li covering an initial public offering the
Offering of up to 25000000 common shares of beneficial interest to be offered in the primary offering at

price of $20 per share the Primary Offering was declared effective under the Securities Act of 1933 as

amended The Offering also covers up to 10000000 common shares of beneficial interest to be issued pursuant
to our distribution reinvestment plan the DRIP for $20 per share We reserve the right to reallocate the

common shares of beneficial interest registered in the Offering between the Primary Offering and the DRIP The
shares are being offered to investors on reasonable best efforts basis which means the dealer manager will use
its reasonable best efforts to sell the shares offered but is not required to sell any specific number or dollar

amount of shares and does not have firmcommitment or obligation to purchase any of the offered shares As of

December 2011 we had issued 7405564 common shares of beneficial interest in exchange for
gross

proceeds including DRIP of approximately $148.1 million

We will offer our shares until the earlier of November 12 20i2 or the date we sell all $500 million worth
of shares in our Primary Offering provided however that we may extend the Offering as permitted by applicable

law provided further that notwithstanding the foregoing our board of trustees may terminate the Offering at any
time Our board of trustees also may elect to extend the offering period for the shares sold pursuant to DRIP in

which case participants in the DRIP will be notified



Loan Portfolio

As of December 31 2011 we had originated 50 loans of which were repaid in full by the respective

borrowers with an aggregate principal amount of approximately $143.6 million As of December 31 2011 there

are approximately $37.8 million of commitments to be funded including approximately $12.3 million to related

parties under the terms of mortgage notes receivable and loan participation interests During the years ended

December 31 2009 2010 and 2011 we originated 19 and 20 loans respectively purchased and loans

respectively and entered into and participation interests respectively

Approximately 98% of the outstanding aggregate principal amount of mortgage notes originated by us as

of December 31 2011 are secured by properties located throughout Texas and approximately 2% are secured by

properties
located in Colorado Approximately 67% of the outstanding aggregate principal amount of mortgage

notes originated by us as of December 31 2011 are secured by properties located in the Dallas Texas area

approximately 20% are secured by properties located in the Austin Texas area approximately 8% are secured by

properties
located in the Houston Texas area approximately 3% are secured by properties located in the San

Antonio Texas area and approximately 2% are secured by properties
located in the Denver Colorado area

28 of the 41 loans outstanding as of December 31 2011 representing approximately 66% of the

aggregate principal amount of the outstanding loans are secured by first lien on the respective property of the

41 loans outstanding as of December 31 2011 representing approximately 22% of the aggregate principal

amount of the outstanding loans are secured by second lien on the respective property of the 41 loans

outstanding as of December 31 2011 representing approximately 12% of the aggregate principal amount of the

outstanding loans are secured by pledge of some or all of the equity interests in the developer entity or other

parent entity that owns the borrower entity of the 41 loans outstanding as of December 31 2011 representing

approximately 5% of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding loans are secured by reimbursements of

development costs due to the developer under contracts with districts and cities and 34 of the 41 loans

outstanding as of December 31 2011 representing approximately 91% of the aggregate principal amount of the

outstanding loans are secured by guarantee of the principals or parent companies of the borrower in addition to

the other collateral for the loan 23 of the 41 loans outstanding as of December 31 2011 representing

approximately 42% of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding loans are made with respect to projects

that are presently selling finished home lots to national public or regional private homebuilders or are made with

respect to project in which one of these homebuilders holds an option to purchase the finished home lots and has

made significant forfeitable earnest money deposit of the 41 loans outstanding as of December 31 2011

representing approximately 11% of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding loans are secured by

multiple single-family residential communities

As of December 31 2011 we had two loans to borrowers that individually accounted for over 10% of

the outstanding balance of our portfolio These borrowers include FH 295 LLC an unaffiliated Texas limited

liability company FH 295 loans to which comprise approximately 11% of the outstanding balance of our

portfolio
and ii CTMGT Williamsburg LLC an unaffiliated Texas limited liability company CTMGT

Williamsburg loans to which comprise approximately 10% of the outstanding balance of our portfolio FH 295

and CTMGT Williamsburg are affiliates of each other and loans to affiliates of FH 295 and CTMGT Williamsburg

comprise an additional 44% of the outstanding balance of our loan portfolio

The interest rates payable range from 12% to 15% with respect to the outstanding participation

agreements and notes receivable including related party as of December 31 2011 The participation agreements

have terms to maturity ranging from to 27 months while the notes receivable have terms ranging from to 47

months

Investment Objectives and Policies

Principal Investment Objectives

Our principal investment objectives are

to make originate or acquire participation interest in secured loans first lien priority junior lien

priority and mezzanine loans secured by real estate and/or pledge of the equity interest in the

entity owning the real estate and/or pledges of other collateral including personal guarantees for

the acquisition of land and development of single-family lots and the construction of model and



new single-family homes including development of mixed-use master planned residential

communities typically with the loan allocation for any single asset in the range of $2.5 million to

$15 million

to make direct investments in land for development into single-family lots new and model homes

and finished lots and homes and joint ventures with real estate developers homebuilders land

bankers and other real estate investors

to povide secured senior and subordinate lines of credit to real estate developers homebuilders

land bankers and Other real estate investors including affiliated programs for the purchase of

finished lots and for the construction of single-family homes

to provide credit enhancements to real estate developers homebuilders land bankers and other

real estate investors who
acquire

real property subdivide real property into single-family

residential lots acquire finished lots andlcr build homes on such lots

to purchase participations in or finance for other real estate investors the purchase of securitized

real estate loan pools

to purchase participations in or finance for other real estate investors the purchase of discounted

cash flows secured by state county municipal or other similar assessments levied on real

property

to produce net interest income from the interest paid to us on secured loans secuntized loan pools

and discounted cash flows that we originate purchase or finance or in which we acquire

participation interest

to produce investment income from equity investments that we make or in which we acquire

participation interest

to produce profitable fee from credit enhancements and other transaction fees

to participate through direct or indirect interest in borrowers in the profits earned by such

borrowers through the underlying properties

to maximize distributable cash to investors and

to preserve protect and return capital contributions

Investment Policy

We derive significant portion of our income by originating purchasing participating in and holding for

investment secured loans made directly by us or indirectly through our affiliates to persons and entities for the

acquisition and development of parcels of real property as single-family residential lots and the construction of

model and new single-family homes including development of mixed-use master planned residential

communities typically with the loan allocation for any single asset in the range of $2.5 million to $15 million In

most cases we obtain first or subordinate lien on the underlying real property to secure our loans mortgage

loans and we also may require pledge of all of the equity Ownership interests in the borrower entity itself as

additional security for our loans In instances where we do not have lien on the underlying real property we
obtain pledge of all of the equity ownership interests of the borrower entity itself to secure such loans and/or

pledge of the equity ownership interests of the borrower entity so-called mezzanine loans or other parent

entity that owns the borrower entity We also may require pledge of additional assets of the borrower liens

against additional parcels of undeveloped and developed real property andlor the personal guarantees of principals

or guarantees of operating entities in connection with our secured loans We apply the same underwriting criteria

and analysis of the underlying real property to each of our secured loans regardless of how we decide to structure

the secured loan Our intention is to structure any such mezzanine loans so that they are treated as real estate

asset giving rise to interest on an obligation secured by an interest in real property for REIT qualification

purposes

Our declaration of trust limits our ability to invest more than 10% of our total assets in unimproved real

property or secured loans on unimproved property which is defined as property not acquired for the purpose of

producing rental or other operating income which has no development or construction in progress at the time of

acquisition and on which no development or construction is planned in good faith to commence within one year

of the acquisition



In addition to our investments in secured loans we may make direct investments in land for development

into single-family lots new and model homes and finished lots and homes however we will not independently

develop land or construct homes In cases where we invest in land for the purpose of development we engage an

unaffihiated third-party developer and we may bear the cost of development and/or fund construction costs

When we acquire properties we most often do so through special purpose entity formed for such purpose or

joint venture formed with single-family residential developer homebuilder real estate developer or other real

estate investor with us providing equity and/or debt financing for the newly-formed entity In limited

circumstances and in accordance with the federal tax rules for REITs and the exemptions from registration under

the Investment Company Act of 1940 as amended the Investment Company Act we may make equity

investments through special purpose entities in land for development into single-family lots new and model

homes and finished lots We also may enter into joint ventures with unaffihiated real estate developers

homebuilders land bankers and other real estate investors or with other United Development Funding-sponsored

programs to originate or acquire as the case may be the same kind of secured loans or real estate investments we

may originate or acquire directly

We also seek an increased return by entering into participation agreements with real estate developers

homebuilders or real estate investors or joint venture entities or by providing credit enhancements for the benefit

of other entities that are associated with residential real estate financing transactions The participation agreements

and credit enhancements may come in variety of forms participation agreements may take the form of profit

agreements ownership interests and participating loans while credit enhancements may take the form of

guarantees pledges of assets letters of credit and inter-creditor agreements We also provide secured senior and

subordinate lines of credit to real estate developers hornebuilders land bankers and other real estate investors

including other United Development Funding-sponsored programs for the purchase of finished lots and for the

construction of single-family homes

In the typical transaction in which we provide credit enhancement to borrower with respect to loan

from third party we expect to charge such borrower credit enhancement fee of 1% to 7% of the projected

maximum amount of our outstanding credit enhancement obligation for each 12-month period such obligation is

outstanding in addition to any costs that we may incur in providing the credit enhancement to the borrower We

cannot assure investors that we will obtain 1% to 7% credit enhancement fee The actual amount of such credit

enhancement fee will be based on the risk perceived by our Advisor to be associated with the transaction the

value of the collateral associated with the transaction our security priority as to the collateral associated with the

transaction the form and term of the credit enhancement and our overall costs associated with providing the

credit enhancement higher risks and increased costs associated with providing the credit enhancement will

necessitate the charging of higher credit enhancement fee Federal tax laws applicable to REITs also may limit

our ability to charge credit enhancement fees unless we make our credit enhancements through taxable REIT

subsidiary TRS
Furthermore we may purchase participations in or finance for other real estate investors the purchase of

securitized real estate loan poois including pools originated by our affiliates Typically real estate lenders

wishing to create liquidity will pool loans and sell participations in the pools priced in accordance with the

seniority in payment of each level or tranche of participation We will seek yields and priority in accordance

with our risk profile and return expectations If we invest in securitized real estate loan pools originated by our

affiliates such investments must be approved by majority of our trustees including majority of our

independent trustees not otherwise interested in the transaction as being fair and reasonable to us and on terms

and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffihiated third parties In addition the price

must be based on the fair market value of the assets as determined by an independent expert selected by

majority of our independent trustees

We also may purchase participations in discounted cash flows secured by state county municipal or

similar assessments levied on real property In certain geographic areas developers use form of state county

municipal or similar assessment-based financing to pay for development infrastructure The development entity is

empowered to levy and collect an assessment on real property to repay the cost of the designated improvements

Developers wishing to create liquidity will discount and sell the future revenue stream associated with the levy

We will seek yields and priority in accordance with our risk profile and return expectations



We concentrate our investments on single-family lot developers who sell their lots to national regional

and local homebuilders for the acquisition of property and the development of residential lots as well as

homebuilders for the construction of single-family homes We target as primary development market lots that

have been pre-sold to national or regional affordable housing builders as well as targeting homebuilders

themselves for the construction of single-family homes We generally seek to finance projects where the

completed subdivision will consist of homes priced at or below the conforming loan limits for the specific

geographic region Conforming loans are loans that are eligible for purchase in the secondary market by

government sponsored agencies or insured by an agency of the United States U.S government Generally

conforming loan limits are approximately 150% of the median home price of the respective housing market

adjusted for the specific market The conforming loan limits are subject to change by law or regulation We

expect most of these homes will be targeted for the first time home buyer or for the higher priced homes persons

moving from their first or starter homes to slightly more upscale homes the so-called move-up home

buyers The housing development projects may also include large-scale planned communities commonly referred

to as master planned communities that provide variety of housing choices including choices suitable for first

time home buyers and move-up home buyers as well as homes with purchase prices exceeding the conforming

loan limits

We anticipate that the developments that secure our loans and investments will consist of both single-

phase and where larger parcels of land are involved multi-phase projects and will be subject to third-party land

acquisition and development loans representing approximately 60% to 75% of total project costs These loans will

have priority over the loans that we originate or buy which we expect will represent approximately 15% to 30%

of total project costs however we will not invest in any property in which the total amount of all secured loans

outstanding on such property including our loans with respect to the property exceeds 85% of the appraised

improved value of the property unless substantial justification exists because of the presence of other

underwriting criteria In each instance we will require the borrower to cover at least 10% of the total project costs

with its own equity investment which may be in the form of cash additional collateral or value-add

improvements We will oftentimes subordinate our loans to the terms of indebtedness from other lenders relating

to the subject real property to allow our borrowers to avail themselves of additional land and lot acquisition and

development financing at lower total cost to the borrower than the cost of our loan although we will not

subordinate our loans to any debt or equity interest of our Advisor our sponsor or any of our trustees or any of

our affiliates The use of third-party leverage typically senior bank debt at favorable rates allows borrowers to

reduce their overall cost of funds for lot and land acquisition community development or home construction by

combining our funds with lower-cost debt Projects that fail to meet timing projections will increase the

borrowers overall cost of funds because the borrower will be carrying debt and incurring interest for longer

period than anticipated Conversely borrowers whose lots land and homes are sold or otherwise disposed of

ahead of schedule may benefit from lower overall cost of funds

In addition to the risk that borrowers activities to build homes or develop the subject parcels will not be

successful or will exceed the borrowers budget we believe that we will be subject to market-timing risk or the

risk that market conditions will adversely impact the borrowers ability to sell the home or developed lots at

profit Economic issues affecting the new home sales market such as interest rates employment rates population

growth migration and immigration as well as home ownership rates and household formation trends will affect

the demand for homes and lots and therefore also impact the likelihood that developer or homebuilder will be

successful Some of the risks inherent with development and construction financing include the availability of

home mortgage loans and the liquidity of the secondary home mortgage market the availability of commercial

land acquisition and development loans and the corresponding interest and advance rates the stability of

global capital and financial institution markets the need to contribute additional capital in the event the market

softens and the developer or homebuilder requires additional funding the reduction of the developers or

homebuilders incentive if the developers or homebuilders profits decrease which could result in both capital

advanced and marketing time increases and the possibility in those situations that our returns will be less

than our projected returns

Our real estate loan and investment model differs from traditional models primarily due to our actively

managed portfolio approach UMTH LD as our asset manager will identify and underwrite real estate

professionals in each region or in some cases each sub-market in which we invest and it will utilize these

proprietary strategic partner relationships to actively manage each loan or investment In some cases this may



involve developing relationships with strategic partners in correcting markets who may be able to provide us with

knowledge presence and access to investment opportunities Given the current economic environment and

capital constraints this also may involve banks insurance companies institutional investors and other traditional

lending institutions that approach us for assistance with troubled assets Large institutional investors generally

rely on investments meeting initial expectations and when market conditions negatively impact the performance

of their investments find themselves in need of asset managers or in some cases must liquidate investments

below their initial return expectations The inability of some homebuilders and developers to obtain financing

through traditional sources may cause homebuilders and developers to seek additional financing from entities

with cash which may include us Therefore we will look to purchase investments at discount when such

opportunities are presented We believe that our strategic partner relationships will help us to identify such

potentially beneficial investments

Our loans and investments are underwritten in part on the basis of an assessment by our asset manager of

its ability to execute on possible alternative development and exit strategies in light of changing market

conditions We believe there is significant value added through the use of an actively managed portfolio

investment model We manage our investment portfolio in the context of both the development lifecycle and

changing market conditions in order to ensure that our assets continue to meet our investment objectives and

underwriting criteria

significant portion of our income is in the form of interest payments to us in respect of secured loans

Through the fifth year following the termination of our Primary Offering we intend to reinvest the principal

repayments we receive on loans to create or invest in new loans Following the fifth anniversary of the

termination of our Primary Offering we will not reinvest such proceeds in order to provide our shareholders with

increased distributions and provide increased cash flow from which we may repurchase shares from shareholders

wishing to sell their shares

Security

We expect that our real estate loans will be secured by one or more of the following

the parcels of land to be developed secures 15 of 41 outstanding loans as of December 31 2011

or 66% of the outstanding principal balance of real estate loans as of December 31 2011
finished lots secures 22 of 41 outstanding loans as of December 31 201 or 38% of the

outstanding principal balance of real estate loans as of December 31 2011
model homes and new single-family homes secures of 41 outstanding loans as of December

31 2011 or 12% of the outstanding principal balance of real estate loans as of December 31

2011

pledge of some or all of the equity interests in the borrower entity or other parent entity that

owns the borrower entity secures of 41 outstanding loans as of December 31 2011 or 12% of

the outstanding principal balance of real estate loans as of December 31 2011
additional assets of the borrower including reimbursements of development costs due to the

developer under contracts with districts and cities secures of 41 outstanding loans as of

December 31 2011 or 5% of the outstanding principal balance of real estate loans as of

December 31 2011 and

in certain cases guarantees of the principals or parent companies of the operating entity secures

34 of 41 outstanding loans as Of December 31 2011 or 91% of the outstanding principal balance

of real estate loans as of December 31 2011

If there is no third-party financing for development project our lien on the subject parcels will be first

priority lien If there is third-party financing we expect our lien on the subject parcels will be subordinate to such

financing We will enter each loan prepared to assume or retire any senior debt if necessary to protect our capital

We will seek to enter into agreements with third-party lenders that will require the third-party lenders to notify us

of default by the borrower under the senior debt and allow us to assume or retire the senior debt upon any

default under the senior debt

Mortgage notes that are secured only by pledge of ownership interests may not be as valuable as notes

secured by first lien if loan defaults as there may be liens on the property and the borrowers only source of

cash flow and only asset may be the property itself Most of our real estate loans including loans made to entities
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affiliated with our Advisor have the benefit of guarantees of the borrower and/or its parent company and pledges

of additional assets of the borrower The use of pledges of ownership interests allows us to more quickly obtain

ownership of property when the borrower has defaulted on loan thus allowing us to more quickly determine

future actions regarding the property Where the borrower owns more than one property the use of pledges may

provide us with additional sources of repayment In addition loans made to the same borrower or related

borrowers may be cross-collateralized unless cross-collateralization is prohibited by the borrowers senior lender

or the investors in the related borrowers are materially different

We obtain an appraisal in conjunction with the initial underwriting and origination of each loan in our

portfolio In some cases we may use an appraisal that has been prepared for another third-party lender such as

commercial bank We are not required to reappraise any individual asset however we generally will obtain an

updated appraisal within 36 months from the date we originate our loan We actively manage our portfolio

reviewing development timelines and budgets market absorption rates and trends lot and land prices

homebuilder performance and third-party market studies to evaluate the value of our collateral on real time and

continuous basis

Underwriting Criteria

We have developed general and asset specific underwriting criteria for the loans and investments that we

originate and purchase In most cases we obtain first or subordinate lien on the underlying real property to

secure our loans mortgage loans and we also may require pledge of all of the equity ownership interests in the

borrower entity itself as additional security for our loans In instances where we do not have lien on the

underlying real property we will obtain pledge of some or all of the equity ownership interests of the borrower

entity itself to secure such loans and/or pledge of the equity ownership interests of the borrower entity or other

parent entity that owns the borrower entity so-called mezzanine loans We also may require pledge of

additional assets of the borrower liens against additional parcels of undeveloped and developed real property

and/or the personal guarantees of principals or guarantees of operating entities in connection with our secured

loans We typically originate loans bearing interest at rates ranging from 10% to 18% per annum Loans secured

by first or senior lien generally bear interest from 10% to 18% further dependent on the amount of all secured

loans on the property creditworthiness of the borrower the term of the loan and the presence of additional

guarantees and/or pledges of additional collateral Land acquisition loans finished lot loans and construction

loans are generally first-lien secured Loans secured by subordinate or junior liens or pledges of equity ownership

interests generally bear interest from 13% to 18% further dependent on the amount of all secured loans on the

property creditworthiness of the borrower the term of the loan and the presence of additional guarantees and/or

pledges of additional collateral Loans for development of real property as single-family residential lots are

generally subordinate to conventional third-party financing We currently do not have policy that establishes

minimum or maximum term for the loans we may make nor do we intend to establish one Loans typically are

structured as interest-only notes with balloon payments or reductions to principal tied to net cash from the sale of

developed lots and finished homes with the release formula created by the senior lender i.e the conditions under

which principal is repaid to the senior lender if any We will not make or invest in loans on any one property if

the aggregate amount of all secured loans on such property including loans from us exceeds an amount equal to

85% of the appraised value of such property unless our board of trustees including majority of our independent

trustees determines that substantial justification exists for exceeding such limit because of the presence of other

underwriting criteria We may buy or originate loans in any of the 48 contiguous United States

Credit Underwriting

We are primarily an asset-based lender and as such our loans are underwritten based on collateral value

The creditworthiness of our borrower and the presence of personal guarantees both influence the amount of

money we will agree to advance to the borrower and the interest rate we will charge the borrower

Asset SpecJIc Underwriting Criteria

The following is general description of our underwriting criteria with respect to the various types of real

estate investments we make originate or acquire Origination fees and interest rates charged to borrowers are in

relation to collateral credit repayment guarantees and competition in the credit markets The term of the loan

represents the typical initial term of loan without regard to subsequent extensions Combined loan-to-value
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ratio is the aggregate of all loan balances senior and subordinated divided by the appraised value of the property

Substantial justification to exceed an 85% loan-to-value ratio may exist because of the presence of other

underwriting criteria such as the net worth of the borrower the credit rating of the borrower based on historical

financial performance or collateral adequate to justify waiver of the 85% limitation In addition the 85%

limitation may be exceeded where mortgage loans are or will be insured or guaranteed by government or

government agency where the loan is secured by the pledge or assignment of other real estate or another real

estate mortgage where rents are assigned under lease where tenant or tenants have demonstrated through

historical net worth and cash flow the ability to satisfy the terms of the lease or where similar criteria is presented

satisfactory to the official or agency administering the securities laws of jurisdiction Leverage refers to the

maximum aggregate asset specific leverage provided by unaffihated third parties with respect to specific asset

and is expressed as percentage of either cost or appraised value tn-party agreement refers to agreements

between the senior and subordinate lenders that set forth the rights and obligations amongst and between the

parties and pursuant to which the subordinate lender may assume or purchase the senior indebtedness in the event

of default by the borrower

Loans

Senior and Subordinated Secured Land Acquisition Loans

Asset land designated for development into residential lots in certain instances this may include

ancillary commercial land

Liens first liens junior liens and/or pledges of all of the equity interests of the entity holding title to

the subject property including without limitation personal and entity guarantees and additional

pledges of cash revenue streams municipal reimbursements or property

Term 12 to 24 months

Combined Loan-to- Value Ratio not to exceed 85% of appraised value unless substantial justification

exists because of the presence of other underwriting criteria

Leverage third party indebtedness up to 65% of the cost of the land

Title Insurance mortgagees title policy required on all senior and junior liens owners title policy

required on pledges of equity interests

Tn-Party Agreement required if loan is subordinated to third-party lender

Senior and Subordinated Secured Development Loans

Asset land under development into residential lots and all improvements thereon

Liens first liens junior liens and/or pledges of all of the equity interests of the entity holding title to

the subject property including without limitation personal and entity guarantees and additional

pledges of cash revenue streams municipal reimbursements or property

Term 18 to 48 months

Combined Loan-to- Value Ratio not to exceed 85% of appraised value unless substantial justification

exists because of the presence of other underwriting criteria

Leverage third-party senior indebtedness up to 75% of the cost of land and improvements

Title Insurance mortgagees title policy required on all senior and junior liens owners title policy

required on pledges of equity interests

Tn-Party Agreement required if loan is subordinated to third-party lender

Senior and Subordinated Secured Finished Lot Loans

Asset finished residential lots

Liens first liens junior liens and/or pledges of all of the equity interests of the entity holding title to

the subject property including without limitation personal and entity guarantees and additional

pledges of cash revenue streams municipal reimbursements or property

Term 12 to 36 months

Combined Loan-to- Value Ratio not to exceed 85% of appraised value unless substantial justification

exists because of the presence of other underwriting criteria

Leverage third-party senior indebtedness up to 75% of the appraised value of the finished lots

Title Insurance mortgagees title policy required on all senior and junior liens owners title policy

required on pledges of equity interests

Tn-Party Agreement required if loan is subordinated to third-party lender
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Senior and Subordinated Secured Model Home Loans

Asset finished model homes

Liens first liens junior liens and/or pledges of all of the equity interests of the entity holding title to

the subject property including without limitation personal and entity guarantees and additional

pledges of cash revenue streams municipal reimbursements or property

Term l2to36months

Combined Loan-to- Value Ratio not to exceed 85% of appraised value unless substantial justification

exists because of the presence of other underwriting criteria

Leverage third-party senior indebtedness up to 80% of the appraised value of the model homes

Title Insurance mortgagees title policy required on all senior and junior liens owners title policy

required on pledges pf equity interests

Other assignment of model home lease

Tn-Party Agreement required if loan is subordinated to third-party lender

Senior and Subordinated Secured Construction Loans

Asset residential lots with homes under construction

Liens first liens junior liens and/or pledges of all of the equity interests of the entity holding title to

the subject property including without limitation personal and entity guarantees and additional

pledges of cash revenue streams municipal reimbursements or property

Term 12 months

Combined Loan-to- Value Ratio not to exceed 85% of appraised value

Leverage third-party senior indebtedness up to 90% of the cost of the lots and homes

Title Insurance mortgagees title policy required on all senior and junior liens owners title policy

required on pledges of equity interests

Tn-Party Agreement required if loan is subordinated to third-party lender

Senior Lines of Credit for Finished Lots

Asset finished residential lots

Liens first liens and/or pledges of all of the equity interests of the entity holding title to the subject

property including without limitation personal and entity guarantees and additional pledges of cash

revenue streams municipal reimbursements or property

Term 12 to 36 months

Loan-to- Value Ratio not to exceed 85% of appraised value unless substantial justification exists

because of the presence of other underwriting criteria

Leverage third-party senior indebtedness up to 90% of the appraised value of the finished lot

Title Insurance mortgagees title policy required

Other earnest money deposit option fees and/or letters of credit supporting lot purchase contracts

Senior Lines of Credit for Home Construction

Asset residential lots with homes under construction

Liens first liens and/or pledges of all of the equity interests of the entity holding title to the subject

property including without limitation personal and entity guarantees and additional pledges of cash

revenue streams municipal reimbursements or property

Term 12 months

Loan-to- Value Ratio not to exceed 85% of appraised value

Leverage third-party senior indebtedness up to 90% of the cost of the lots and homes

Title Insurance mortgagees title policy required

Subordinate Lines of Credit for Finished Lots

Asset finished residential lots

Liens junior liens and/or pledges of all of the equity interests of the entity holding title to the subject

property including without limitation personal and entity guarantees and additional pledges of cash

revenue streams municipal reimbursements or property

Term l2to36months

Combined Loan-to- Value Ratio not to exceed 85% of appraised value unless substantial justification

exists because of the presence of other underwriting criteria
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Leverage third-party senior indebtedness up to 75% of the appraised value of the finished lots

Title Insurance mortgagees title policy required on all senior and junior liens owners title policy

required on pledges of equity interests

Other earnest money deposit option fees or letters of credit supporting lot purchase contracts

Tn-Party Agreement required if loan is subordinated to third-party lender

Subordinate Lines of Credit for Home Construction

Asset residential lots with homes under construction

Liens junior liens and/or pledges of all of the equity interests of the entity holding title to the subject

property including without limitation personal and entity guarantees and additional pledges of cash

revenue streams municipal reimbursements or property

Term 12 months

Combined Loan-to- Value Ratio not to exceed 85% of appraised value unless substantial justification

exists because of the presence of other underwriting criteria

Leverage third-party senior indebtedness up to 90% of the cost of the lots and homes

Title Insurance mortgagees title policy required on all senior and junior liens owners title policy

required on pledges of equity interests

Tn-Party Agreement required if loan is subordinated to third-party lender

Real Estate Investments

Land Investments

Asset land designated for development and land under development into residential lots

Ownership fee simple to us our wholly-owned subsidiary or co-venturer entity designated for

ownership of property

Term 12 to 60 months

Leverage third-party senior indebtedness up to 75% of the cost of the land

Title Insurance owners title policy required

Model Home and Finished Home Investments

Asset finished model homes

Owners hip fee simple to us our wholly-owned subsidiary or co-venturer entity designated for

ownership of property

Term 24 to 36 months

Leverage third-party senior indebtedness up to 90% of the appraised value of the lots and homes

Title Insurance owners title policy required

Finished Lot Investments

Asset finished residential lots

Ownership fee simple to us our wholly-owned subsidiary or co-venturer entity designated for

ownership of property

Term 24 to 36 months

Leverage third-party senior indebtedness up to 80% of the appraised value of the finished lots

Title Insurance owners title policy required

Purchase of Discounted Cash Flow

Asset state county municipal or other similar assessments levied on real property

Ownership through assignment or purchase of debt instrument to us our wholly-owned subsidiary

or co-venturer entity designated for ownership

Term indeterminate

Leverage the appraised value of the finished lots up to 90% of the cost of the asset

Credit Facility

On February 2010 during the credit crisis in which financial institutions severely reduced the number

of loans made to entities involved in real estate we obtained revolving credit facility in the maximum principal

amount of $8 million the Credit Facility from Raley Holdings LLC an unaffiliated company Raley
Holdings The interest rate on the Credit Facility is equal to 8.5% per annum Accrued interest on the

outstanding principal amount of the Credit Facility is payable monthly The Credit Facilitys original maturity
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date was February 2011 Effective August 10 2010 the Credit Facility was amended to increase the maximum

principal amount to $20 million pursuant to First Amendment to Secured Line of Credit Promissory Note

between us and the Lender Effective February 2011 we executed an extension agreement that extended the

maturity date of the Credit Facility to February 2012 Effective February 2012 we executed an additional

extension agreement that extended the maturity date of the Credit Facility to February 2013 see

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Subsequent Events

for further discussion The Credit Facility is secured by first priority collateral assignment and lien on certain

of our assets

Raley Holdings may in its discretion decide to advance additional principal to us under the Credit

Facility Raley Holdings may require us to provide additional collateral as condition of funding additional

advances of principal under the Credit Facility From time to time we may request Raley Holdings to release

collateral and Raley Holdings may require release price to be paid as condition of granting its release of

collateral

In connection with this Credit Facility as of December 31 2011 we have agreed to pay debt financing

fees totaling approximately $177000 to UMTH GS

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 $8.8 million and $14.3 million respectively in principal was

outstanding under the Credit Facility and is included in notes payable on our accompanying consolidated balance

sheet

Credit Enhancements

Credit enhancements are underwritten in the same manner as our other real estate investments The

collateral term leverage rates and guarantee criteria will follow the applicable land development finished lot or

construction loan terms

The principal amounts of our loans and the number of loans and investments we make will be affected by

market availability and will depend upon the amount of net offering proceeds available to us from the sale of

shares

Borrowing Policies

There is no limitation on the amount we may borrow for the purchase or origination of single secured

loan the purchase of any individual property or other investment Under our declaration of trust the maximum

amount of our indebtedness shall not exceed 300% of our net assets as of the date of any borrowing however we

may exceed that limit if approved by majority of our independent trustees and disclosed in our next quarterly

report to shareholders along with justification for such excess In addition to our declaration of trust limitation

our board of trustees has adopted policy to generally limit our fund level borrowings to 50% of the aggregate

fair market value of our assets unless substantial justification exists that borrowing greater amount is in our best

interests We have and will continue when appropriate to incur debt at the asset level Asset level leverage is

determined by the anticipated term of the investment and the cash flow expected by the investment Asset level

leverage is expected to range from 0% to 90% of the asset value Our policy limitation therefore does not apply

to individual real estate assets and only will apply once we have ceased raising capital under the Offering or any

subsequent offering and invested majority of the net proceeds from such offerings We have incurred fund level

indebtedness in the form of revolving credit facilities permitting us to borrow up to an agreed-upon outstanding

principal amount Such debt is and will continue to be secured by first priority lien upon all of our existing and

future acquired assets See Notes through to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this

Annual Report for further discussion of our senior credit facility notes payable and lines of credit respectively

Investment Limitations

Our declaration of trust places numerous limitations on us with respect to the manner in which we may
invest our funds or issue securities Until our common shares of beneficial interest are listed for trading on

national securities exchange we will not

borrow in excess of 300% of our net tangible assets unless majority of the independent trustees

approves each borrowing in excess of our declaration of trust limitation and we disclose such

borrowing to our shareholders in our next quarterly report with an explanation from the

independent trustees of the justification for the excess borrowing
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invest in commodities or commodity futures contracts except for futures contracts when used

solely for the purpose of hedging in connection with our ordinary business of investing in real

estate assets and secured loans

invest in real estate contracts of sale otherwise known as land sale contracts unless the contract

is in recordable form and is appropriately recorded in the chain of title

make or invest in secured loans unless an appraisal is obtained concerning the underlying

property except for those secured loans insured or guaranteed by government or government

agency Prior to making such investment we will obtain an appraisal of such investment from

person who is in the business of rendering opinions regarding the value of assets of the type held

by us and who is qualified to perform such work In cases where our independent trustees

determine and in all cases in which the transaction is with any of our trustees or our Advisor or

its affiliates such appraisal will be obtained from an independent appraiser We will maintain

such appraisal in our records for at least five years and it will be available for inspection and

duplication by our shareholders In addition we will obtain mortgagees or owners title

insurance policy or commitment as to the priority of the secured loan

make or invest in secured loans that are subordinate to any mortgage or equity interest of any of

our trustees our Advisor or its affiliates

make or invest in secured loans including development and construction loans on any one

property if the aggregate amount of all secured loans on such property including loans from us

would exceed an amount equal to 85% of the appraised value of such property unless substantial

justification exists because of the presence of other underwriting criteria

invest more than 10% of our total assets in unimproved real property which we define as

property not acquired for the purpose of producing rental or other operating income which has no

development or construction in process at the time of acquisition and on which no development

or construction is planned in good faith to commence within one year of the acquisition or

secured loans bridge or mezzanine loans on unimproved real property

invest in equity securities unless majority of the board of trustees including majority of the

independent trustees not otherwise interested in the transaction approves such investment as

being fair competitive and commercially reasonable

issue equity securities on deferred-payment basis or other similar arrangement

issue debt securities in the absence of adequate cash flow to cover debt service

issue options or warrants to purchase shares to our Advisor trustees sponsor or any affiliate

thereof on terms more favorable than we offer such options or warrants to the general public

or in excess of an amount equal to 10% of our outstanding shares of beneficial interest on the

date of grant

issue securities that are redeemable solely at the option of the holder which restriction has no

effect on our share redemption program or the ability of our operating partnership to issue

redeemable partnership interests or

make any investment that we believe would be inconsistent with our objectives of qualifying and

remaining qualified as REIT unless the board of trustees determines in its sole discretion that

REIT qualification is not in our best interest

Our declaration of trust requires that our independent trustees review our investment policies at least

annually to determine that the policieswe follow are in the best interest of our shareholders We intend to cOnduct

our operations so that we are not required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company
Act

Disposition Policies

If we acquire real properties as each of those properties reach what we believe to be its optimum value

during the expected life of the fund we will consider disposing of the investment and may do so for the purpose

of either distributing the net sale proceeds to our shareholders or investing the proceeds in other assets that we

believe may produce higher overall future return to our shareholders The determination of when particular

investment should be sold or otherwise disposed of will be made after consideration of relevant factors including

prevailing and projected economic conditions whether the value of the property or other investment is anticipated

to decline substantially whether we could apply the proceeds from the sale of the asset to make other investments
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consistent with our investment objectives whether disposition of the asset would allow us to increase cash flow

and whether the sale of the asset would constitute prohibited transaction under the Internal Revenue Code or

otherwise impact our status as REIT Our ability to dispose of property during the first few years following its

acquisition will be restricted to substantial extent as result of our REIT status Under applicable provisions of

the Internal Reyenue Code regarding prohibited transactions by REITs REIT that sells property other than

foreclosure property that is deemed to be inventory or property held primarily for sale in the ordinary course of

business is deemed dealer and subject to 100% penalty tax on the net income from any such transaction As

result our board of trustees will attempt to structure any disposition of our properties to avoid this penalty tax

through reliance on safe harbors available under the Internal Revenue Code for properties held at least two years

or through the use of TRS

Conflicts of Interest

We do not have any officers or employees and we depend on our Advisor and its affiliates to manage our

operations As result we are subject to various conflicts of interest arising out of our relationship with our

Advisor and its affiliates including conflicts related to the arrangements pursuant to which our Advisor and its

affiliates will be compensated by us All of our agreements and arrangements with our Advisor and its affiliates

including those relating to compensation are not the result of arms length negotiations However we believe that

all of our agreements and arrangements with our Advisor and its affiliates including those relating to

compensation are consistent with the NASAA REIT Guidelines regarding conflicts of interest In addition our

legal counsel Morris Manning Martin LLP and our independent registered public accounting firm Whitley

Penn LLP are independent entities who were selected by our board of trustees and each provides services to our

Advisor and other entities affiliated with our Advisor If the interests of the various parties become adverse they

may face conflicts of interest and may be precluded from representing any one or all of such parties

Our independent trustees have an obligation to function on our behalf in all situations in which conflict

of interest may arise and all of our trustees have fiduciary obligation to act on behalf of our shareholders

Our Advisor and its affiliates act as advisors asset managers or general partners of other United

Development Funding-sponsored programs that have investment objectives similar to ours and we expect that

they will organize other such programs in the future These persons have legal and financial obligations with

respect to these programs that are similar to their obligations to us As general partners they may have contingent

liability for the obligations of programs structured as partnerships which if such obligations were enforced

against them could result in substantial reduction of their net worth The chart below indicates the relationships

between our Advisor and its affiliates
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Todd Etter and Hollis Greenlaw each own onehalf of the equity interests in UMT Services

Inc UMT Services Messrs Etter and Greenlaw and Michael Wilson serve as directors of

UMT Services UMT Services serves as general partner of UMTH GS our Advisor

UMT Services serves as the general partner and owns 0.1% of the limited partnership interests in

UMT Holdings L.P UMT Holdings The remaining 99.9% of the limited partnership interests

in UMT Holdings are held as follows as of December 31 2011 Mr Etter 30.00% Mr

Greenlaw 30.00% Craig Pettit 5.00% Timothy Kopacka 4.84% Michael Wilson

7.41% Christine Griffin 1.95% Cara Obert 4.82% William Lowe 1.06% Ben

Wissink 10.09% and Melissa Youngblood 4.83%

UMT Services serves as the general partner and owns 0.1% of the limited partnership interests in

each of UMTH GS and UMTH LD UMT Holdings owns the remaining 99.9% of the limited

partnership interests in each of UMTH GS and UMTH LD our asset manager UMTH LD also

serves as the asset manager for United Development Funding L.P UDF and United

Development Funding II L.P UDF II each Delaware limited partnership In addition UMTH
LD serves as the general partner

of United Development Funding III L.P UDF III publicly

registered Delaware limited partnership and as the general partner and sole limited partner of UDF

Land GenPar LP Delaware limited partnership LTDF LGP UDF LGP serves as the general

partner of United Development Funding Land Opportunity Fund L.P Delaware limited

partnership UDF LOF UMTH LD also serves as the asset manager of UDF LOF

United Development Funding Inc is owned 33.75% by each of Messrs Greenlaw and Etter 22.5%

by Mr Kopacka and 10% by Ms Griffin

United Development Funding II Inc is owned 50% by each of Messrs Etter and Greenlaw

UMTH LD owns 100% of the general partnership and limited partnership interests in UDF LGP

Manager
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UMTH GS serves as the advisor for United Mortgage Trust UMT Maryland real estate

investment trust

United Development Funding Inc serves as general partner for UDF and owns 0.02% general

partnership interest UMTH LD owns 49.99% subordinated profits interest and unaffihiated

limited partners own the remaining 49.99% of the interests in UDF UDF is real estate finance

company that engages in the business in which we engage and intend to continue to engage

United Development Funding II Inc serves as general partner for UDF II and owns 0.1% general

partnership interest UMTH LD owns 49.95% subordinated profits interest and unaffiliated

limited partners own the remaining 49.9 5% of the interests in UDF II UDF II is real estate finance

company that engages in the business in which we engage and intend to continue to engage

10 UMTH LD holds 0.01% general partner interest in UDF III Approximately 8900 limited partners

as of December 31 2011 own 99.99% of the limited partnership units of UDF III UDF III is real

estate finance company that engages in the business in which we engage and intend to continue to

engage

11 UDF LGP holds 0.01% general partnership interest in UDF LOF UDF LGP also holds

subordinated profit participation interest in UDF LOF The investors who purchased units in the

private offering of UDF LOF own 99.9% of the limited partnership interests As of December 31

2011 approximately 590 limited partners held interests in UDF LOF UDF LOF is real estate

finance company that engages in the business in which we engage and intend to continue to engage

12 UMT Holdings owns 10000 of our shares of beneficial interest as of December 31 2011

13 We own 99.999% general partner interest in UDF IV OP UMTH LD owns 0.001% limited

partner interest in UDF OP

Housing Industry

The U.S housing market has suffered declines over the past five years particularly in geographic areas

that had previously experienced rapid growth steep increases in property values and speculation In 2009 the

homebuilding industry was focused on further reducing supply and inventory overhang of new single-family

homes In 2010 national and regional homebuilders increased the number of homes constructed from the number

constructed in 2009 In 2011 the number of new homes constructed fell slightly from 2010 as homebuilders

adjusted to the expiration of the federal homebuyer tax credit which we believe pulled demand forward at the

expense of the following sales season We believe that while demand for new homes has been affected across the

country by the general decline of the housing industry the housing markets in the geographic areas in which we

have invested and intend to invest have not been impacted as greatly Further we believe that as result of the

inventory reductions and corresponding lack of development over the past few years the supply of new homes

and finished lots have generally aligned with market demand in most real estate markets we believe that more

homes will be started in 2012 than in 2011 and we will likely see continued demand for our products in 2012

Competition

Real estate investment and finance is very competitive industry We compete with many other entities

engaged in real estate investment activities including individuals corporations bank and insurance company
investment accounts real estate limited partnerships other real estate investment trusts institutional investors

homebuilders developers and other entities engaged in real estate investment activities many of which have

greater resources than we do and may enjoy significant competitive advantages that result from among other

things lower cost of capital and enhanced operating efficiencies In addition the proliferation of the Internet as

tool for real estate acquisitions and loan origination has made it very inexpensive for new competitors to

participate in the real estate investment and finance industry Our ability to make or purchase sufficient number

of loans and investments to meet our objectives will depend on the extent to which we can compete successfully

against these other entities including entities that may have greater financial or marketing resources greater name

recognition or larger customer bases than we have Our competitors may be able to undertake more effective

marketing campaigns or adopt more aggressive pricing policies than we can which may make it more difficult for

us to attract customers Increased competition could result in lower revenues and higher expenses which would

reduce our profitability
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Regulations

All real property and the operations conducted on real property are subject to federal state and local laws

ordinances and regulations relating to environmental protection and human health and safety These laws and

regulations generally govern wastewater discharges air emissions the operation and removal of underground and

above-ground storage tanks the use storage treatment transportation and disposal of solid and hazardous

materials and the remediation of contamination associated with disposals Under limited circumstances secured

lender in addition to the owner of real estate may be liable for clean-up costs or have the obligation to take

remedial actions under environmental laws including but not limited to the Federal Comprehensive

Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 as amended or CERCLA Some of these laws

and regulations may impose joint and several liability for the costs of investigation or remediation of

contaminated properties regardless of fault or the legality of the original disposal In addition the presence of

these substances or the failure to properly remediate these substances may adversely affect our ability to sell

such property or to use the property as collateral for future borrowing

If we foreclose on defaulted loan to recover our investment we may become subject to environmental

liabilities associated with that property if we participate in the management of that property or do not divest

ourselves of the property at the earliest practicable time on commercially reasonable terms Environmental laws

may impose restrictions on the manner in which property may be used or businesses may be operated and these

restrictions may require substantial expenditures It is possible that property on which we foreclose may contain

hazardous substances wastes contaminants or pollutants that we may be required to remove or remediate in order

to clean up the property If we foreclose on contaminated property we may also incur liability to tenants or

other users of neighboring properties We cannot assure our shareholders that we will not incur full recourse

liability for the entire cost of removal and cleanup that the cost of such removal and cleanup will not exceed the

value of the property or that we will recover any of these costs from any other party It may be difficult or

impossible to sell property following discovery of hazardous substances or wastes on the property The cost of

defending against claims of liability of compliance with environmental regulatory requirements of remediating

any contaminated property or of paying personal injury claims could materially adversely affect our business

assets or results of operations and consequently amounts available for distribution to our shareholders

In addition as non-bank lender of commercial loans we are subject to various state and federal

regulations regarding usury laws State and federal usury laws limit the interest that lenders are entitled to receive

on mortgage loan In determining whether given transaction is usurious courts may include charges in the

form of points and fees as interest but may exclude payments in the form of reimbursement of foreclosure

expenses or other charges found to be distinct from interest While we contract for interest at rate that is less

than or equal to the applicable maximum amount of non-usurious interest and our loan documents and Texas law

provide us with an opportunity to cure usurious charges if the amount charged for the use of the money loaned is

found to exceed statutorily established maximum rate under Texas law the current maximum amount of non-

usurious interest is 18% per annum and we fail to cure the form employed and the degree of overcharge are both

immaterial to the determination that the loan is usurious Statutes differ in their provision as to the consequences

of usurious loan One group of statutes requires the lender to forfeit the interest above the applicable limit or

imposes specified penalty Under this statutory scheme the borrower may have the recorded mortgage or deed

of trust cancelled upon paying its debt with lawful interest or the lender may foreclose but only for the debt plus

lawful interest Under second more severe type of statute violation of the usury law results in the invalidation

of the transaction thereby permitting the borrower to have the recorded mortgage or deed of trust cancelled

without any payment thus prohibiting the lender from foreclosing

Employees

We have no employees however our Advisor and affiliates of our Advisor have staff of employees

who perform range of services for us including originations acquisitions asset management accounting legal

and investor relations
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Financial Information about Industry Segments

Our current business consists only of originating acquiring servicing and managing mortgage loans on

real property and issuing or acquiring an interest in credit enhancements to borrowers We internally evaluate our

activities as one industry segment and accordingly we do not report segment information

Available Information

We electronically file an annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form l0-Q current reports on

Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC We also

have filed with the SEC our registration statement in connection with the Offering Copies of our filings with the

SEC may be obtained from the web site maintained by our sponsor at http//www.udfonline.com or at the SECs

website at http//www.sec.gov Access to these filings is free of charge We are not incorporating our website or

any information from the webs ite into this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Item 1A Risk Factors

The factors described below represent our principal risks Other factors may exist that we do not consider

to be significant based on information that is currently available or that we are not currently able to anticipate

Risks Related to an Investment in UDF IV

There is no public trading market for our shares therefore it will be difficult for shareholders to sell their

shares If shareholder is able to sell their shares the shareholder may have to sell them at substantial

discount from the public offering price In addition we do not have fixed liquidation date and the

shareholder may have to hold their shares indefinitely

There is no public market for our shares and we cannot guarantee that one will ever develop It will

therefore be difficult for shareholders to sell their shares promptly or at all In addition the price received for the

sale of any of our common shares of beneficial interest is likely to be less than the proportionate value of our

investments At this time we have no intention to list our shares and we will seek to list our shares for trading on

national securities exchange only if our independent trustees believe listing would be in the best interest of our

shareholders As result we do not know if we will ever apply to list our shares for trading on national

securities exchange or if we do apply for listing when such application would be made or whether it would be

accepted If our shares are listed we cannot assure shareholders public trading market will develop We cannot

assure shareholders that the price they would receive in sale on national securities exchange would be

representative of the value of the assets we own or that it would equal or exceed the amount they paid for the

shares Furthermore our declaration of trust does not provide specific date on which we must liquidate

Therefore shareholders should purchase the shares only as long-term investment and they may have to hold

their shares indefinitely

The minimum purchase requirements and suitability standards imposed on prospective investors in the

Offering also apply to subsequent purchasers of our shares If shareholders are able to find buyer for their

shares they may not sell their shares to such buyer unless the buyer meets the suitability standards applicable to

him which may inhibit shareholders ability to sell their shares Furthermore we are limited in our ability to

buy back shares pursuant to our redemption program including limits on the price we may pay for shareholders

shares Our board of trustees may reject any request for redemption of shares or amend suspend or terminate our

share redemption program at any time Shareholders may not be able to sell their shares in the event of an

emergency and if shareholders are able to sell their shares they may have to sell them at substantial discount

from the public offering price It is also likely that their shares would not be accepted as the primary collateral for

loan

The prior performance of real estate investment programs sponsored by our Advisor and its affiliates may
not be an indication of our future results

We were formed in May 2008 and UMTH GS our Advisor was formed in March 2003 Shareholders

should not assume that our performance will be similar to the past performance of other real estate investment

programs sponsored by our Advisor and its affiliates Therefore to be successful in this market we must among
other things
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increase awareness of the United Development Funding name within the investment products market

attract integrate motivate and retain qualified personnel to manage our day-to-day operations

respond to competition both for investment opportunities and potential investors in us and

build and expand our operations structure to support our business

We cannot guarantee that we will succeed in achieving these goals and our failure to do so could cause

shareholders to lose all or portion of their investment

If we through our Advisor are unable to find suitable investments then we may not be able to achieve our

investment objectives or pay distributions

Our ability to achieve our investment objectives and to pay distributions is dependent upon the

performance of our Advisor in the identification of real estate loans and other investments and the determination

of any financing arrangements We have not identified all of the properties to acquire or secured loans to

originate or acquire with proceeds from the Offering Shareholders will have no opportunity to evaluate the terms

of transactions or other economic or financial data concerning our investments Shareholders must rely entirely

on the oversight of our board of trustees and the management ability of our Advisor We cannot be sure that our

Advisor will be successful in obtaining suitable investments on financially attractive terms or that our objectives

will be achieved

Shareholders will not have the opportunity to evaluate our investments before they are made

We will seek to invest substantially all of the offering proceeds available for investments after the

payment of fees and expenses in secured loans made directly by us or indirectly through our affiliates to persons

and entities for the acquisition and development of parcels of real property as single-family residential lots and

the construction of model and new single-family homes including development of mixed-use master planned

residential communities We may also make direct investments in land for development into single-family lots

new and model homes and portfolios of finished lots and homes We rely entirely on our Advisor with respect to

the acquisition of our investments and shareholders will not be able to evaluate our future investments We

cannot be sure that we will be successful in obtaining additional suitable investments If we are unable to identify

additional properties or loans that satisfy our investment objectives in timely fashion our business strategy and

operations may be adversely affected

We may suffer from delays in locating suitable investments particularly as result of the current

economic environment and capital constraints which could adversely affect the return on shareholders

investments

We could suffer from delays in locating suitable investments particularly as result of the current

economic environment capital constraints and our reliance on our Advisor and referrals by borrowers

developers commercial lenders homebuilders and other referral sources Capital constraints at the heart of the

credit crisis have reduced the number of real estate lenders able or willing to finance development construction

and the purchase of homes thus reducing the number of homebuilders and developers that are able to receive such

financing In the event that homebuilders and developers fail or reduce the number of their development and

homebuilding projects resulting in reduction of new loan applicants or the supply of referrals by borrowers

developers commercial lenders and homebuilders decreases the availability of investments for us would also

decrease Such decreases in the demand for secured loans could leave us with excess cash In such instances we

plan to make short-term interim investments with proceeds available from sales of shares and hold these interim

investments pending investment in suitable loans and real estate properties Interest returns on these interim

investments are usually lower than on secured loans and real estate properties which may reduce the yield to

holders of shares and our ability to pay distributions to our shareholders depending on how long these interim

investments are held

When we invest in short-term interim investments using proceeds from the sale of shares those

shareholders will nevertheless participate equally in our distributions of income with holders of shares whose sale

proceeds have been invested in secured loans and real estate properties This will favor for time holders of

shares whose purchase monies were invested in interim investments to the detriment of holders of shares whose

purchase monies are invested in normally higher-yielding secured loans and real estate properties
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The payment of distributions from sources other than our cash flow from operations reduces the funds

available for real estate investments and shareholders overall return may be reduced

Our organizational documents permit us to make distributions from any source Because we have funded

distributions from financings or the net proceeds from the Offering we will have less funds available for real

estate investments and shareholders overall return may be reduced Further to the extent distributions exceed

cash flow from operations shareholders basis in our common shares of beneficial interest will be reduced and

to the extent distributions exceed shareholders basis the shareholder may recognize capital gain We have not

established any limit on the amount of proceeds from the Offering that may be used to fund distributions except

that in accordance with our organizational documents and Maryland law we may not make distributions that

would cause us to be unable to pay our debts as they become due in the usual course of business cause our

total assets to be less than the sum of our total liabilities plus senior liquidation preferences if any or

jeopardize our ability to qualify as REIT

Competition with third parties in financing properties may reduce our profitability and the return on

shareholders investment

Real estate investment and finance is very competitive industry We compete with many other entities

engaged in real estate investment activities including individuals corporations bank and insurance company

investment accounts real estate limited partnerships other real estate investment trusts institutional investors

homebuilders developers and other entities engaged in real estate investment activities many of which have

greater resources than we do and may enjoy significant competitive advantages that result from among other

things lower cost of capital and enhanced operating efficiencies In addition the proliferation of the Internet as

tool for real estate acquisitions and loan origination has made it very inexpensive for new competitors to

participate in the real estate investment and finance industry. Our ability to make or purchase sufficient number

of loans and investments to meet our objectives will depend on the extent to which we can compete successfully

against these other entities including entities that may have greater financial or marketing resources greater name

recognition or larger customer bases than we have Our competitors may be able to undertake more effective

marketing campaigns or adopt more aggressive pricing policies than we can which may make it more difficult for

us to attract customers Increased competition could result in lower revenues and higher expenses which would

reduce our profitability

The homebuilding industry has undergone significant downturn and its duration and ultimate severity

are uncertain Further deterioration in industry or economic conditions could further decrease demand and

pricing for new homes and residential home lots and have additional adverse efftcts on our operations and

financial results

Developers and homebuilders to whom we make loans and with whom we enter into subordinate debt

positions will use the proceeds of our loans and investments to develop raw real estate into residential home lots

and construct homes The developers obtain the money to repay our development loans by selling the residential

home lots to homebuilders or individuals who will build single-family residences on the lots or by obtaining

replacement financing from other lenders The developers ability to repay our loans is based primarily on the

amount of money generated by the developers sale of its inventory of single-family residential lots

Homebuilders obtain the money to repay our loans by selling the homes they construct or by obtaining

replacement financing from other lenders and thus the homebuilders ability to repay our loans is based

primarily on the amount of money generated by the sale of such homes

The homebuilding industry is cyclical and is significantly affected by changes in industry conditions as

well as in general and local economic conditions such as

employment level and job growth

demographic trends including population increases and decreases and household formation

availability of financing for homebuyers

interest rates

affordability of homes

consumer confidence

levels of new and existing homes for sale including foreclosed homes and

housing demand
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These may occur on national scale or may affect some of the regions or markets in which we operate

more than others An oversupply of alternatives to new homes such as existing homes including homes held for

sale by investors and speculators foreclosed homes and rental properties can also reduce the homebuilders

ability to sell new homes depress new home prices and reduce homebuilder margins on the sales of new homes
which likely would reduce the amount and price of the residential homes and lots sold by the homebuilders and

developers to which we have loaned money and/or increase the absorption period in which such homes and lots

are purchased

Also historically the homebuilding industry uses expectations for future volume growth as the basis for

determining the optimum amount of land and lots to own In light of the much weaker market conditions

encountered in 2006 which further deteriorated in 2007 2008 and 2009 we believe that the homebuilding

industry significantly slowed its purchases of land and lots over that time as part of its strategy to reduce

inventory to reflect the reduced rate of production

We believe that the difficult conditions within the homebuilding industry reached bottom in early 2009

and demand continues to be challenged in many markets According to joint release from the U.S Department

of Housing and Urban Development and the Census Bureau the sale of new single-family homes in December

2011 was estimated to be at seasonally-adjusted rate of 324000 approximately 1000 units below the December

2010 estimate The median sales price of new homes sold in December 2011 was $216500 the average sales

price was $264900 The seasonally-adjusted estimate of new houses for sale at the end of December 2011 was

154000 representing supply of 5.7 months at the December 2011 sales rate

In such business climate homebuilders and developers to which we have loaned money may be unable

to generate sufficient income from the resale of single-family homes and residential lots to repay our loans

Accordingly continued or further deterioration of homebuilding conditions or in the broader economic conditions

of the markets where we operate could cause the number of homebuyers to decrease which would increase the

likelihood of defaults on our loans and consequently reduce our ability to pay distributions to our shareholders

We believe that housing market conditions will continue to be challenging and we cannot predict the duration or

ultimate severity of these challenges Our operations could be negatively affected to the extent that the housing

industry downturn is prolonged or becomes more severe

The reduction in availability of mortgage financing and the volatility and reduction in liquidity in the

financial markets may adversely affect our business and the duration and ultimate severity of the effects are

uncertain

Since 2007 the mortgage lending industry has experienced significant instability due to among other

things defaults on subprime loans and resulting decline in the market value of such loans In light of these

developments lenders investors regulators and other third parties questioned the adequacy of lending standards

and other credit requirements for several loan programs made available to borrowers in recent years This has led

to reduced investor demand for mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities tightened credit requirements

reduced liquidity and increased credit risk premiums Deterioration in credit quality among subprime and other

nonconforming loans has caused almost all lenders to eliminate subprime mortgages and most other loan products

that are not conforming loans FHA/VA-eligible loans or jumbo loans which meet conforming underwriting

guidelines other than loan size Fewer loan products and tighter loan qualifications and any other limitations or

restrictions on the availability of those types of financings in turn make it more difficult for some borrowers to

finance the purchase of new homes and for some buyers of existing homes from move-up new home buyers to

finance the purchase of the move-up new home buyers existing home These factors have served to reduce the

affordability of homes and the pool of qualified homebuyers and made it more difficult to sell to first time and

first time move-up buyers which have long made up substantial part of the affordable housing market These

reductions in demand would increase the likelihood of defaults on our loans and consequently reduce our ability

to pay distributions to our shareholders and the duration and severity of the effects remain uncertain

We also believe that the liquidity provided by Fannie Mae Federal National Mortgage Association and

Freddie Mac Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Government Sponsored Enterprises or GSE5 to

the mortgage industry is very important to the housing market These entities have reported severe losses as

result of deteriorating housing and credit market conditions These losses have reduced their equity and limited

their ability to acquire mortgages The director of the Federal Housing Finance Agency FHFA James

Lockhart III on September 2008 announced his decision to place Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac into
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conservatorship run by the FHFA That plan contained three measures an increase in the line of credit available

to the GSEs from the U.S Treasury so as to provide liquidity the right of the U.S Treasury to purchase equity in

the GSEs so as to provide capital and consultative role for the Federal Reserve in reformed GSE regulatory

system The U.S Treasury further announced an additional increase in the line of credit for the GSEs

guaranteeing the backing of all losses suffered by these enterprises The U.S Treasurys support of the two GSEs

while under conservatorship of the FHFA was intended to promote stability in the secondary mortgage market

and lower the cost of funding The GSEs modestly increased their mortgage-backed securities portfolios through

the end of 2009 To address systemic risk in 2010 their portfolios began to be gradually reduced largely through

natural run off and will eventually stabilize at lower less risky size In order to further support the availability

of mortgage financing for millions of Americans the U.S Treasury initiated temporary program to purchase

GSE mortgage-backed securities which expired with the U.S Treasurys temporary authorities in December

2009 Coinciding with the Treasury purchase program was the Federal Reserve which purchased $1.25 trillion

worth of mortgage-backed securities through the end of March 2010 This program ended on March 31 2010 as

scheduled by the Federal Reserve On September 21 2011 the Federal Reserve announced that it would begin

reinvesting the principal payments from its mortgage-backed securities holdings into additional purchases of

agency mortgage-backed securities to help further support conditions in mortgage markets As of the date of this

annual report the 30-year fixed-rate single-family residential mortgage interest rate remains significantly below

the rate that was available at the conclusion of the period of the Federal Reserve purchases in March 2010 Any

limitations or restrictions on the availability of such financing or on the liquidity provided by such enterprises

could adversely affect interest rates and mortgage availability and could cause the number of homebuyers to

decrease which would increase the likelihood of defaults on our loans and consequently reduce our ability to

pay distributions to our shareholders

The home/i uilding industrys strategies in response to the adverse conditions in the industry have had

limited success and the continued implementation of these and other strategies may not be successful

Since the downturn began most homebuilders have been focused on generating positive operating cash

flow resizing and reshaping their product for more price-conscious consumer and adjusting finished new home

inventories to meet demand and did so in many cases by significantly reducing the new home prices and

increasing the level of sales incentives Since reaching peak of approximately 1283000 new home sales in

2005 new home sales have declined each year year-over-year to low of approximately 304000 new home

sales in 2011 We believe that the continued decline in new home sales is largely due to decrease in consumer

confidence due principally to the constant and negative national housing financial industry and economic news

more restrictive mortgage lending environment unemployment and the inability of some buyers to sell their

existing homes have also impacted new home sales Many of the factors that affect new home sales are beyond

the control of the homebuilding industry

Homebuilders to whom we make loans will use the proceeds of our loans to construct homes

Homebuilders obtain the money to repay our loans by selling the homes they construct or by obtaining

replacement financing from other lenders and thus the homebuilders ability to repay our loans is based

primarily on the amount of money generated by the sale of such homes decrease in the number of new homes

sold may increase the likelihood of defaults on our loans and consequently may reduce our ability to pay

distributions to our shareholders It is uncertain how long the reduction in sales and the increased level of

cancellations will continue

Increases in interest rates reductions in mortgage availability or increases in other costs of owning

home could prevent potential customers from buying new homes and adversely affect our business or our

financial results

Demand for new homes is sensitive to changes in housing affordability Most new home purchasers

finance their home purchases through lenders providing mortgage financing During 2009 2010 and 2011 the

mortgage lending industry experienced significant instability As result of increased default rates and

governmental initiatives to improve capital ratios many mortgage lenders have tightened credit requirements and

have reduced the amount of their lending with regard to residential mortgage loans Fewer loan products stricter

loan qualification standards and higher down payment requirements have made it more difficult for many

potential homebuyers to finance the purchase of homes Increases in interest rates may make houses more difficult

to afford Lack of availability of mortgage financing at acceptable rates reduces demand for homes
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Even if potential customers do not need financing changes in interest rates and the avaiJability of

mortgage financing products may make it harder for them to sell their current homes to potential buyers who need

financing

reduction in the demand for new homes may reduce the amount and price of the residential home lots

sold by the homebuilders and developers to which we loan money and/or increase the absorption period in which

such home lots are purchased and consequently increase the likelihood of defaults on our loans

Increases in interest rates could increase the risk of default under our development loans

Developers and homebuilders to whom we make loans and with whom we enter into subordinate debt

positions will use the proceeds of our loans and investments to develOp raw real estate into residential home lots

and construct homes The developers and homebuilders obtain the money to repay our loans by reselling the

residential home lots to homebuilders or individuals who will build single-family residences on the lots and/or

selling the homes to homebuyers or by obtaining replacement financing from other lenders The developers or

homebuilders ability to repay our loans will be based primarily on the amount of money generated by the

developers or homebuilders sale Of their inventory of single-family homes or residential lots If interest rates

increase and/or consumer mortgage credit standards tighten the demand for single-family residences is likely to

decrease In such an interest rate and/or mortgage climate developers and homebuilders to whom we have loaned

money may be unable to generate sufficient income from the resale of single-family homes or residential lots to

repay our loans Accordingly increases in single-family mortgage interest rates and/or the tightening of

consumer mortgage credit standards could cause the number of homebuyers to decrease which would increase the

likelihood of defaults on our loans and consequently reduce our ability to pay distributions to our shareholders

The loans we make as part of our investments will generally be secured by collateral that is alreadv

encumbered so our loans may have higher risk than conventional real estate loans on residential properties

We plan to originate loans and purchase loans in respect of affiliated and unaffiliated third parties on land

to be developed into residential lots new and model homes and finished home inventories Our goal is to obtain

first or subordinate lien on the underlying real property to secure our loans and we generally will require pledge

of the equity ownership interests in the borrower itself to secure our loans either as the sole collateral or in

addition to our lien on the underlying real property In some instances where the subject parcel is encumbered by
lien in favor of third party other than us we may at our option become the senior lender in order to protect

the priority of our lien on the parcels Our loans may also be secured by other assets of the borrower While we
will seek to obtain guarantee of the borrower and/or its parent companies to further secure the borrowers

obligations to us we cannot assure our shareholders that we will obtain such guarantee in all cases If default

occurs under one or more of our loans payments to us could be reduced or postponed Further in the event of

default we may be left with security or ownership interest in finished homes or lots or unfinished homes or an

undeveloped or partially developed parcel of real estate which may have less value than completed home or

developed parcel The guarantee of the borrower and/or its parent companies and other pledged assets if any

may be insufficient to compensate us for any difference in the amounts due to us under loan and the value of our

interest in the subject parcel

Decreases in the value of the property underlying our loans may decrease the value of our assets

In most cases we obtain first or subordinate lien on the underlying real property to secure our loans

mortgage loans and we also may require pledge of all of the equity ownership interests in the borrower entity

itself as additional security for our loans In instances where we do not have lien on the underlying real

property we obtain pledge of all of the equity ownership interests of the borrower entity itself to secure such

loans and/or pledge of the equity ownership interests of the borrower entity or other parent entity that owns the

borrower entity so-called mezzanine loans We also may require pledge of additional assets of the borrower
liens against additional parcels of undeveloped and developed real property and/or the personal guarantees of

principals or guarantees of operating entities in connection with our secured loans To the extent that the value of

the property that serves as security for these loans or investments is lower than we expect the value of our assets

and consequently our ability to pay distributions to our shareholders will .be adversely affected

Our investments and participation agreements with borrowers will expose us to various risks and will not

guarantee that we will receive any amount under such agreements
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The investments and participation agreements that we enter with borrowers will be separate from the

loans that we will make to the borrowers Participation agreements will be structured either as contracts entitling

us to participate in the borrowers profits or as joint venture investments organized as partnerships or limited

liability companies in which we will have an equity interest The participation agreements may represent an

equity joint venture interest that will and our investment will expose us to all of the risks inherent in real estate

investments generally and with real estate investments made with co-venturer These risks include among

others the fact that there is no guaranteed return on the equity participations In the event our loan is paid off

prior to sale of the parcel we would hold an equity participation that would be junior to any liens or claims

against the parcel Our joint venture participations could subject us to liabilities arising out of environmental

claims or claims for injuries tax levies or other charges against the owner of the parcel as well as from the risk of

bankruptcy of our co-venturer

We will be subject to the general market risks associated with real estate construction and development

Our financial performance will depend on the successful construction andlor development and sale of the

homes and real estate parcels that we own or that serve as security for the loans we make to homebuilders and

developers and that will be the subj.ect of our participation agreements with borrowers As result we will be

subject to the general market risks of real estate construction and development including weather conditions the

price and availability of materials used in the construction of the homes and development of the lots

environmental liabilities and zoning laws and numerous other factors that may materially and adversely affect the

success of the projects In the event the market softens the homebuilder or developer may require additional

funding and such funding may not be available In addition if the market softens the amount of capital required

to be advanced and the required marketing time for such home or development may both increase and the

homebuilders or developers incentive to complete particular home or real estate development may decrease

Such circumstances may reduce our profitability and the returns on our shareholders investments

If we are unable to raise substantial funds we will be limited in the number and type ofproperties we may

own or finance and the value of shareholders investment will fluctuate with the performance of the spec jfic

investments we make

The Offering is being made on reasonable best efforts basis whereby the dealer manager and soliciting

dealers participating in the Offering are only required to use their reasonable best efforts to sell our shares and

have no firm commitment or obligation to purchase any of the shares As result we cannot assure shareholders

as to the amount of proceeds that will be raised in the Offering or that we will achieve sales of the maximum

offering amount If we are unable to raise substantial funds in the Offering we will purchase fewer real

properties and originate and purchase fewer loans and equity positions resulting in less diversification in terms of

the number of real properties owned and financed the geographic regions in which such real properties are

located and the types of real properties securing the secured loans in which we invest In such event the

likelihood of our profitability being affected by the performance of any one of our investments will increase

shareholders investment in our shares will be subject to greater risk to the extent that we lack diversified

portfolio of secured assets In addition our fixed operating expenses as percentage of gross income would be

higher and our financial condition and ability to pay distributions could be adversely affected if we are unable to

raise substantial funds

If we lose or are unable to obtain key personnel or one or more of our key personnel decides to compete

with us our abilityto implement our investment strategy could be delayed or hindered

We will depend on the diligence experience and skill of certain executive officers and other key

personnel of us our Advisor and its affiliates including Todd Etter Hollis Greenlaw Michael Wilson

Ben Wissink Melissa Youngblood Cara Obert and David Hanson for the selection acquisition

structuring and monitoring of our lending and investment activities These individuals are not bound by

employment agreements with us however all are bound by employment agreements with UMT Holdings the

parent company of our Advisor and our asset manager If any of our key personnel were to cease their affiliation

with us our Advisor or its affiliates our operating results could suffer Affiliates of our Advisor maintain key

person life insurance with respect to Hollis Greenlaw Todd Etter and Ben Wissink We have not

obtained life insurance policies on any other key personnel involved in our operations and therefore have no

insulation against extraneous events that may adversely affect their ability to implement our investment strategies

We also believe that our future success depends in large part upon our Advisors and its affiliates ability to hire
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and retain highly skilled managerial operational and marketing personnel We cannot assure our shareholders

that we will be successful in attracting and retaining such personnel The loss of any key person could harm our

business financial condition cash flow and results of operations If we lose or are unable to obtain the services of

key personnel our ability to implement our investment strategy could be delayed or hindered

In addition many of the officers and key personnel of us our Advisor and its affiliates are bound by non-

competition agreements and there are remedies under certain state laws if such officers or key personnel conduct

activities that compete with us either during or after their employment However our ability to prohibit former

employees from competing with us our Advisor or its affiliates may be limited in many respects and we cannot

assure our shareholders that one or more of those persons may not choose to compete with us or that we could

limit their ability to do so or recover anything in such an event Competition by these officers or key employees

may harm our business financial condition and results of operations

Our rights and the rights of our shareholders to recover claims against our independent trustees are

limited which could reduce our shareholders and our recovery against them jf they negligently cause us to

incur losses

Maryland law provides that trustee has no liability in that capacity if he performs his duties in good

faith in manner he reasonably believes to be in our best interests and with the care that an ordinarily prudent

person in like position would use under similar circumstances Subject to certain exceptions our declaration of

trust provides that no independent trustee will be liable to us or our shareholders for monetary damages and that

we will generally indemnify them for losses unless they are grossly negligent or engage in willful misconduct As

result our shareholders and we may have more limited rights against our independent trustees than might

otherwise exist under common law which could reduce our shareholders and our recovery from these persons if

they act in negligent manner In addition we may be obligated to fund the defense costs incurred by our

independent trustees as well as by our other trustees officers employees of our Advisor and agents in some

cases which would decrease the cash otherwise available for distributions to our shareholders

Risks Related to Conflicts of Interest

We will be subject to conflicts of interest arising out of our relationships with our Advisor and its

affiliates including the material conflicts discussed below When conflicts arise between us and our Advisor and

its affiliates they may not be resolved in our favor which could cause our operating results to suffer

Our Advisor and its affiliates will have equity interests and/or profit participations in developments we

finance and may have greater incentive to make loans with respect to such developments and/or provide

credit enhancements to preserve and/or enhance their economic interest in such development

We expect to make loans and/or provide credit enhancement transactions to affiliates of our Advisor or

asset manager In connection with making such loans or providing such credit enhancements we will obtain an

appraisal concerning the underlying property from an independent expert who is in the business of rendering

opinions regarding the value of assets of the type held by us and who is qualified to perform such work In

addition majority of the trustees including majority of the independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in the transaction must approve all transactions with our Advisor or its affiliates as being fair and

reasonable to us and on terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffiliated third

parties We also will obtain mortgagees or owners title insurance policy or commitment as to the priority of

the secured loan as part of our underwriting process If an affiliate of our Advisor has an equity interest or

participation interest in development that requires loan or credit enhancement our Advisor may have greater

incentive to make loan with respect to such development to preserve and/or enhance its economic interest in

such development As of December 31 2011 our 13 loans to related parties have an outstanding balance of

approximately $36.5 million

Our Advisor is an affiliate of the general partners of UDF UDF II UDF III and UDF LOF and may not

always be able to allocate investment opportunities on pro rata basis among us UDF UDF II UDF III and

UDFLOF

Our Advisor is an affiliate of the general partners of UDF UDF II UDF III and UDF LOF all of which

engage in the same businesses as us Our Advisor asset manager and the investment committee will seek to

equitably apportion among us UDF UDF II UDF III and UDF LOF all investment opportunities of which it

becomes aware We have entered into participation agreement with UDF UDF II UDF III UDF LOF and
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UMTH LD pursuant to which we will invest in the same loans and transactions as UDF UDF II UDF III and

UDF LOF on pro rata basis based on the amount of capital held by each entity that is available for investment in

accordance with each funds risk profile and capital available for investment However circumstances may arise

due to availability of capital or other reasons when it is not possible for us to make an investment on such pro rata

basis Our Advisor may determine not to invest in otherwise suitable investments in which UDF UDF II UDF

III or UDF LOF will participate in order for us to avoid unrelated business taxable income or UBTI which is

generally defined as income derived from any unrelated trade or business carried on by tax-exempt entity or by

partnership of which it is member and which is generally subject to taxation We cannot assure our

shareholders that we will be able to invest in all investment opportunities of which our Advisor becomes aware

that may be suitable for us on pro rata basis or otherwise

Our founders mayform other companies that will engage in the same businesses as we will and we may

not always be able to participate in investment opportunities on pro rata basis between us and such other

companies

Our Advisor and its affiliates may engage in additional real estate-related activities in the future

including the activities in which we engage and may form new entities to engage in these activities If new

companies are formed for the purpose of engaging in the businesses in which we engage our founders intend to

allocate investment opportunities among us UDF UDF II UDF III UDF LOF and the new entities equitably

However we cannot assure our shareholders that we will be able to participate in all or any investment

opportunities in which such other companies participate on an equitable basis or otherwise

Certain of the princzals of our Advisor will face conflicts of interest relating to the extension and

purchase of loans and such conflicts may not be resolved in our favor

Certain of the principals of our Advisor including Mr Etter Mr Greenlaw Michael Wilson Ben

Wissink Melissa Youngblood and Cara Obert are also principals directors officers and equity holders of

other entities including UDF UDF II UDF III UDF LOF UMT Holdings and UMT Services and they may

also in the future hold positions with and interests in other entities engaged in real estate activities These

multiple responsibilities may create conflicts of interest for these individuals if they are presented with

opportunities that may benefit us and their other affiliates These individuals may be incentivized to allocate

opportunities to other entities rather than to us if they are more highly compensated based on investments made

by other entities In determining which opportunities to allocate to us and to their other affiliates these individuals

will consider the investment strategy and guidelines of each entity Because we cannot predict the precise

circumstances under which future potential conflicts may arise we intend to address potential conflicts on case-

by-case basis There is risk that our Advisor will choose an investment for us that provides lower returns to us

than loan made by one of our affiliates Investors will not have the opportunity to evaluate the manner in which

any conflicts of interest involving our Advisor and its affiliates are resolved before making their investment

Our Advisor and its affiliates including all of our executive officers and some of our trustees will face

conflicts of interest caused by their compensation arrangements with us which could result in actions that are

not in the long-term best interests of our shareholders

Our Advisor and its affiliates are entitled to substantial fees from us in connection with the Offering and

our business operations These fees could influence our Advisors advice to us as well as the judgment of

affiliates of our Advisor performing services for us Among other matters these compensation arrangements

could affect their judgment with respect to

the continuation renewal or enforcement of our agreements with our Advisor and its affiliates

including the advisory agreement

borrowings which would increase the fees payable to our Advisor

whether and when we seek to list our common shares of beneficial interest on national securities

exchange which listing could entitle our Advisor to the payment of fees and

whether and when we seek to sell the company or its assets which sale could entitle our Advisor or

one of its affiliates to the payment of fees

We will face risks relating to joint ventures with our affiliates and third parties that are not present

with other methods of investing in properties and secured loans
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We may enter into joint ventures with certain of our affiliates as well as third parties for the funding of

loans or the acquisition of properties We may also purchase loans injoint ventures or in partnerships or other co

ownership arrangements with our affiliates the sellers of the loans affiliates of the sellers developers or other

persons Such investments may involve risks not otherwise present with other methods of investment in secured

loans including for example

that such co-venturer or partner may at any time have economic or business interests or goals that are

that become inconsistent with our business interests or goals which may cause us to disagree with

our co-venturer or partner as to the best course of action with respect to the investment and which

disagreement may not be resolved to our satisfaction

that such co-venturer or partner may be in position to take action contrary to our instructions or

requests or contrary to our policies or objectives which may cause us not to realize the return

anticipated from our investment or

that it may be difficult for us to sell our interest in any such co-venture or partnership

Moreover in the event we determine to foreclose on the collateral underlying non-performing

investment we may be required to obtain the cooperation of our co-venturer or partner to do so We anticipate

that we will participate with our affiliates in certain loans in which case we expect to enter into an inter-creditor

agreement that will define our rights and priority with respect to the underlying collateral Our inability to

foreclose on property acting alone may cause significant delay in the foreclosure process in which time the

value of the property may decline

As of December 31 2011 we have not entered into any joint ventures As of December 31 2011 we are

participating in seven loans originated by affiliates with an outstanding balance of approximately $22.8 million

Our Advisor will face additional conflicts of interest relating to loan particlations with affiliated entities

and may make decisions that disproportionately benefit one or more of our affiliated entities instead of us

Our Advisor is anaffiliate of the general partners of UDF UDF II UDF III and UDF LOF all of which

engage in the same businesses as us Because our Advisor or its affiliates will have advisory and management

arrangements with these other United Development Funding programs it is likely that they will encounter

opportunities to invest in or acquire interests in secured loans participations and/or properties to the benefit of

one of the United Development Funding programs but not others Our Advisor or its affiliates may make

decisions to finance certain properties which decisions might disproportionately benefit United Development

Funding program other than us In such event our results of operations and ability to pay distributions to our

shareholders could be adversely affected

Because our Advisor and its affiliates are affiliated with UDF UDF II UDF III and UDF LOF
agreements and transactions among the parties with

respect to any loan participation among two or more of such

parties will not have the benefit of arms length negotiation of the type normally conducted between unrelated co
venturers Under these loan participation arrangements we may not have first priority position with respect to

the underlying collateral In the event that co-venturer has right of first refusal to buy out the other co

venturer it may be unable to finance such buy-out at that time In addition to the extent that our co-venturer is an

affiliate of our Advisor certain conflicts of interest will exist As of December 31 2011 we are participating in

seven loans originated by affiliates with an outstanding balance of approximately $22.8 million

Our Advisors officers and key personnel will face conflicts of interest relating to the allocation of their

time and other resources among the various entities that they serve or have interests in and such conflicts may
not be resolved in our favor

Certain of the officers and key personnel of our Advisor will face competing demands relating to their

time and resources because they are also affiliated with entities with investment programs similar to ours and

they may have other business interests as well including business interests that currently exist and business

interests they develop in the future Because these persons have competing interests for their time and resources

they may have conflicts of interest in allocating their time between our business and these other activities As

result they may devote less time and resources to our business than is necessary If this occurs our business

financial condition and results of operations may suffer
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There is no separate counsel for certain of our affiliates and us which could result in conflicts of interest

Morris Manning Martin LLP acts as legal counsel to us our Advisor and certain of its affiliates If

the interests of the various parties become adverse under the Code of Professional Responsibility of the legal

profession Morris Manning Martin LLP may be precluded from representing any one or all of such parties If

any situation arises in which our interests appear to be in conflict with those of our Advisor or its affiliates

additional counsel may be retained by one or more of the parties to assure that their interests are adequately

protected

Risks Related to Our Business in General

limit on the number of shares person may own may discourage takeover

Our declaration of trust with certain exceptions authorizes our trustees to take such actions as are

necessary and desirable to preserve our qualification as REIT Unless exempted by our board of trustees no

person may own more than 9.8% of the value of our outstanding shares or more than 9.8% of the number or

value whichever is more restrictive of our outstanding common shares This restriction may have the effect of

delaying deferring or preventing change in control of us including an extraordinary transaction such as

merger tender offer or sale of all or substantially all of our assets that might otherwise provide shareholders with

the opportunity to receive control premium for their shares

Our declaration of trust permits our board of trustees to issue securities with terms that may subordinate

the rights of the holders of our current common shares of beneficial interest or discourage third party from

acquiring us

Our declaration of trust permits our board of trustees to issue up to 350000000 common shares of

beneficial interest and up to 50000000 preferred shares of beneficial interest Our board of trustees without any

action by our shareholders may increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares increase or decrease

the number of shares of any class or series we have authority to issue or classify or reclassify any unissued

shares of beneficial interest and establish the preferences conversion or other rights voting powers restrictions

limitations as to distributions qualifications or terms or conditions of redemption of any such shares Thus our

board of trustees could authorize the issuance of such shares with terms and conditions that could subordinate the

rights of the holders of our current common shares of beneficial interest or have the effect of delaying deferring

or preventing change in control of us including an extraordinary transaction such as merger tender offer or

sale of all or substantially all of our assets that might provide premium price for holders of our common shares

of beneficial interest

Maryland law prohibits certain business combinations which may make it more djfficult for us to be

acquired

Under Maryland law business combinations between Maryland corporation and an interested

shareholder or an affiliate of an interested shareholder are prohibited for five years after the most recent date on

which the interested shareholder becomes an interested shareholder These business combinations include

merger consolidation share exchange or in circumstances specified in the statute an asset transfer or issuance

or reclassification of equity securities An interested shareholder is defined as

any person who beneficially owns 10% or more of the voting power of the then outstanding voting

shares of the company or

an affiliate or associate of the company who at any time within the two-year period prior to the date

in question was the beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting power of the then outstanding

shares of the company

person is not an interested shareholder under the statute if the board of trustees approved in advance the

transaction by which the shareholder otherwise would have become an interested shareholder However in

approving transaction the board of trustees may provide that its approval is subject to compliance at or after the

time of approval with any terms and conditions determined by the board of trustees After the expiration of the

five-year period described above any business combination between the Maryland company and an interested

shareholder must generally be recommended by the board of trustees of the company and approved by the

affirmative vote of at least
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80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holders of the then outstanding voting shares of the company

and

Two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by holders of voting shares of the company other than

voting shares held by the interested shareholder with whom or with whose affiliate the business

combination is to be effected or held by an affiliate or associate of the interest shareholder

These super-majority vote requirements do not apply if the holder of the companys common shares of

beneficial interest receives minimumprice as defined under Maryland law for their shares in the form of cash

or other consideration in the same form as previously paid by the interested shareholder for its shares Maryland

law also permits various exemptions from these provisions including business combinations that are exempted by

the board of trustees before the time that the interested shareholder becomes an interested shareholder Our board

of trustees has exempted any business combination with UMTH GS or any affiliate of UMTH GS and provided

that such business combination is first approved by the board of trustees any business combination with any other

person Consequently the five-year prohibition and the super-majority vote requirements will not apply to

business combinations between us and UMTH GS or any affiliate of UMTH GS or if the board of trustees first

approves the business combination any other person As result UMTH GS or any affiliate of UMTH GS may

be able to enter into business combinations with us that may not be in the best interest of our shareholders

without compliance with the super-majority vote requirements and the other provisions of the business

combination statute

Should the board of trustees opt back in to the business combination statute or fail to first approve

business combination with any person other than UMTH GS or any affiliate of UMTH GS the business

combination statute may discourage others from trying to acquire control of us and increase the difficulty of

consummating any offer

Maryland law also limits the ability of third party to buy large stake in us and exercise voting power in

electing trustees

Maryland law provides second anti-takeover statute the Control Share Acquisition Act which provides

that control shares of Maryland company acquired in control share acquisition have no voting rights

except to the extent approved by the companys disinterested shareholders by vote of two-thirds of the votes

entitled to be cast on the matter Common shares of beneficial interest owned by interested shareholders that is

by the acquirer by officers or by employees who are trustees of the company are excluded from the vote on

whether to accord voting rights to the control shares Control shares are voting shares that would entitle the

acquirer to exercise voting power in electing trustees within specified ranges of voting power Control shares do

not include shares the acquiring person is then entitled to vote as result of having previously obtained

shareholder approval control share acquisition means the acquisition of control shares The control share

acquisition statute does not apply to shares acquired in merger consolidation or share exchange if the

company is party to the transaction or to acquisitions approved or exempted by companys declaration of

trust or bylaws Our bylaws contain provision exempting from the Control Share Acquisition Act any and all

acquisitions by any person of our common shares of beneficial interest We can offer no assurance that this

provision will not be amended or eliminated at any time in the future This statute could have the effect of

discouraging offers from third parties to acquire us and increasing the difficulty of successfully completing this

type of offer by anyone other than our affiliates or any of their affiliates

Our declaration of trust includes an anti-takeover provision that may discourage person from launching

tender offer for our shares

Our declaration of trust provides that any tender offer made by any person including any mini-tender

offer must comply with most provisions of Regulation 4D of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

the Exchange Act The offeror must provide our company notice of such tender offer at least ten business

days before initiating the tender offer If the offeror does not comply with these requirements our company will

have the right to redeem that offerors shares and any shares acquired in such tender offer In addition the non

complying offeror will be responsible for all of our companys expenses in connection with that offerors

noncompliance This provision of our declaration of trust may discourage person from initiating tender offer

for our shares and prevent our shareholders from receiving premium price for their shares in such transaction
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Shareholders investment returns will be reduced if we are required to register as an investment company
under the Investment Company Act of 1940

If we were obligated to register as an investment company we would have to comply with variety of

substantive requirements under the Investment Company Act imposing among other things

Limitations on capital structure

Restrictions on specified investments

Prohibitions on transactions with affiliates and

Compliance with reporting record keeping voting proxy disclosure and other rules and regulations

that would significantly change our operations

We conduct our operations so as not to become regulated as an investment company under the Investment

Company Act We intend to qualify for an exclusion from registration under Section 3c5C of the Investment

Company Act which generally means that at least 55% of our portfolio must be comprised of qualifying real

estate assets and at least another 25% of our portfolio must be comprised of additional qualifying real estate assets

and real estate-related assets Although we monitor our portfolio periodically and prior to each acquisition we

may not be able to maintain this exclusion from registration How we determine to classify our assets for

purposes of the Investment Company Act will be based in large measure upon no-action positions taken by the

SEC in the past We believe that we have conducted our operations to comply with these no-action positions

However these no-action positions were issued in accordance with factual situations that may be substantially

different from the factual situations we may face and number of these no-action positions were issued more

than ten years ago No assurance can be given that the SEC will concur with our classification of our assets

Future revisions to the Investment Company Act or further guidance from the SEC may cause us to lose our

exclusion from registration or force us to re-evaluate our portfolio and our investment strategy Such changes

may prevent us from operating our business successfully

To maintain compliance with the Investment Company Act exclusion we may be unable to sell assets we
would otherwise want to sell and may need to sell assets we would otherwise wish to retain In addition we may
have to acquire additional assets that we might not otherwise have acquired or may have to forego opportunities

to acquire assets that we would otherwise want to acquire and would be important to our investment strategy

Further we may not be able to invest in sufficient number of qualifying real estate assets and/or real estate-

related assets to comply with the exclusion from registration

We may determine to operate through our operating partnership or other wholly-owned or majority-

owned subsidiaries that may be formed in the future If so we intend to operate in such manner that we would

not come within the definition of an investment company under Section 3al of the Investment Company Act
and we intend to operate our operating partnership and any other subsidiary or subsidiaries in manner that would

exclude such entities from registration under the Investment Company Act pursuant to the exclusions provided by
Sections 3cl 3c5C or 3c7 of the Investment Company Act

As
part of our Advisors obligations under the advisory agreement our Advisor will agree to refrain from

taking any action which in its sole judgment made in good faith would subject us to regulation under the

Investment Company Act Failure to maintain an exclusion from registration under the Investment Company Act
would require us to significantly restructure our business plan For example because affiliate transactions are

severely limited under the Investment Company Act we would not be able to enter into transactions with any of

our affiliates if we are required to register as an investment company and we may be required to terminate our

advisory agreement and any other agreements with affiliates which could have material adverse effect on our

ability to operate our business and pay distributions

Shareholders have limited control over changes in our policies and operations

Our board of trustees determines our major policies including our policies regarding financing growth
debt capitalization REIT qualification and distributions Our board of trustees may amend or revise these and

other policies without vote of the shareholders Our declaration of trust sets forth the shareholder voting rights

required to be set forth therein under the Statement of Policy Regarding Real Estate Investment Trusts published

by the North American Securities Administrators Association Under our declaration of trust and the Maryland
REIT Law our shareholders currently have right to vote only on the following matters
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the election or removal of trustees

any amendment of our declaration of trust except that our board of trustees may amend our

declaration of trust without shareholder approval to

change our name

increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares

increase or decrease the number of our shares of any class or series that we have the authority to

issue

effect certain reverse stock splits

qualify as real estate investment trust under the Internal Revenue Code or the Maryland REIT Law

our termination and

certain mergers consolidations and sales or other dispositions of all or substantially all of our assets

All other matters are subject to the discretion of our board of trustees

Our board of trustees may change the methods of implementing our investment policies and objectives

without shareholder approval which could alter the nature of shareholders investment

Our declaration of trust requires that our independent trustees review our investment policies at least

annually to determine that the policies we are following are in the best interçst of the shareholders These policies

may change over time The methods of implementing our investment policies may also vary as new investment

techniques are developed The methods of implementing our investment policies objectives and procedures may

be altered by our board of trustees without the approval of our shareholders As result the nature of our

shareholders investment could change without their consent

Shareholders are limited in their ability to sell their shares pursuant to our redemption program

Any investor requesting repurchase of their shares pursuant to our share redemption program will be

required to certify to us that such investor acquired the shares by either purchase directly from us or

transfer from the original subscriber by way of bona fide gift not for value to or for the benefit of member of

the subscribers immediate or extended family or through transfer to custodian trustee or other fiduciary for

the account of the subscriber or his/her immediate or extended family in connection with an estate planning

transaction including by bequest or inheritance upon death or by operation of law Shareholders should also be

fully aware that our share redemption program contains certain restrictions and limitations Shares will be

redeemed on monthly basis as follows first pro rata as to redemptions upon the death of shareholder next

pro rata among shareholders willing to have their shares redeemed at the then-current net asset value as

determined by our board of trustees in its sole discretion next pro rata as to shareholders who demonstrate to our

satisfaction another involuntary exigent circumstance such as bankruptcy and finally pro rata as to other

redemption requests with priority given to the earliest redemption requests received by us We will not redeem

in excess of 5% of the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the trailing twelve-month period

prior to the redemption date In addition the cash available for redemption generally will be limited to 1% of our

operating cash flow from the previous fiscal year plus any proceeds from our DRIP Further our board of trustees

reserves the right to reject any request for redemption or to terminate suspend or amend the share redemption

program at any time Therefore in making decision to purchase shares investors should not assume that they

will be able to sell any of their shares back to us pursuant to our redemption program

If shareholders are able to resell their shares to us pursuant to our redemption program they will likely

receive substantially less than the fair market value for their shares

The purchase price for shares we repurchase under our redemption program for the period beginning

after shareholder has held their shares for period of one year will be 92% of the purchase price for any

shares held less than two years 94% of the purchase price of any shares held for at least two years but less

than three years 96% of the purchase price of any shares held at least three years but less than four years

98% of the purchase price of any shares held at least four years but less than five years
and for any shares held

at least five years the lesser of the purchase price actually paid or the fair market value of the shares as

determined by our annual valuations However at any time we are engaged in an offering of our shares the per

share price for shares purchased under our redemption program will always be equal to or less than the applicable

per share offering price The price we will pay for redeemed shares will be offset by any net proceeds from

capital transactions previously distributed to the redeeming shareholder as return of capital Accordingly
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shareholders would likely receive less by selling their shares back to us than they would receive if our

investments were sold for their estimated values and such proceeds were distributed in our liquidation

shareholders interest in us may be diluted jf the price we pay in respect of shares redeemed under our

share redemption program exceeds the net asset value of our shares

The prices we may pay for shares redeemed under our share redemption program may exceed the net

asset value of such shares at the time of redemption If this were to be the case investors who do not elect or are

unable to have some or all of their shares redeemed under our share redemption program would suffer dilution in

the value of their shares as result of redemptions We will create reserve from our net interest income and net

proceeds from capital transactions to recover some of the organization and offering expenses including selling

commissions and dealer manager fees we will incur in connection with the offering of our shares in order to cause

the net asset value of the company to be on parity with or greater than the amount we may pay for shares under

our share redemption program However it is likely that non-redeeming shareholders will experience dilution as

result of redemptions which occur at time when the net asset value has decreased regardless of the reserve

We will have broad discretion in how we use the net proceeds of the Offrring

We will have broad discretion in how to use the net proceeds of the Offering and shareholders will be

relying on our judgment regarding the application of the proceeds of the Offering Shareholders will not have the

opportunity to evaluate the manner in which the net proceeds of the Offering are invested or the economic merits

of particular assets to be acquired or loans to be made

Our Advisors subordinated incentive fee may create an incentive for our Advisor to make speculative

investments

Because the incentive fee is subordinate to the payment of cumulative distributions to our shareholders

our Advisors interest is not wholly aligned with those of our shareholders The subordinated nature of the

incentive fee means that our Advisor will not receive such fee if our investments result only in minimal returns

Our Advisors subordinated incentive fee may create an incentive for our Advisor to advise us to make

investments that have higher potential return but are riskier or more speculative than would be the case in the

absence of this incentive fee

We established the offering price for our shares on an arbitrary basis as result the offrring price for

our shares and the price at which shares will be redeem ed pursuant to our share redemption program are not

related to any independent valuation

Our board of trustees has arbitrarily determined the selling price of the shares and the price at which

shares will be redeemed pursuant to our share redemption program Such prices bear no relationship to our book

or asset values or to any other established criteria for valuing outstanding common shares of beneficial interest or

other ownership interests

Payment offtes to our Advisor and its affiliates will reduce cash available for investment and distribution

Our Advisor and its affiliates will perform services for us in connection with the offer and sale of the

shares the selection and acquisition of our investments and the administration of our investments They will be

paid substantial fees for these services which will reduce the amount of cash available for investment in

properties or distribution to shareholders

We are under no obligation to continue to pay cash distributions Distributions have been and may
continue to be paid from capital and there can be no assurance that we will be able to pay or maintain cash

distributions or that distributions will increase over time

There are many factors including factors beyond our control that can affect the availability and timing of

cash distributions to shareholders Distributions are based principally on cash available from our loans real estate

securities property acquisitions and other investments The amount of cash available for distributions will be

affected by our ability to invest in real estate properties secured loans mezzanine loans or participations in loans

as offering proceeds become available the yields on the secured loans in which we invest amounts set aside to

create retained earnings reserve and our operating expense levels as well as many other variables Actual cash

available for distributions may vary substantially from estimates We are under no obligation tO pay cash

distributions and we can provide no assurance that we will be able to continue to pay or maintain distributions or
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that distributions will increase over time Nor can we give any assurance that income from the properties we

purchase or the loans we make or acquire or in which we participate will increase or that future investments will

increase our cash available for distributions to shareholders Our actual results may differ significantly from the

assumptions used by our board of trustees in establishing the distribution rate to shareholders In addition our

board of trustees in its discretion may reinvest or retain for working capital any portion of our cash on hand We

cannot assure our shareholders that sufficient cash will be available to continue to pay distributions to them

Adverse market and economic conditions will negatively affect our returns and profitability

Our results are sensitive to changes in market and economic conditions such as the level of employment

consumer confidence consumer income the availability of consumer and commercial financing interest rate

levels supply of new and existing homes supply of finished lots and the costs associated with constructing new

homes and developing land We may be affected by market and economic challenges including the following

any of which may result from continued or exacerbated general economic slowdown experienced by the nation

as whole or by the local economies where properties subject to our secured loans may be located

poor economic conditions may result in slowing of new home sales and corresponding lot purchases

by builders resulting in defaults by borrowers under our secured loans

job transfers and layoffs may cause new home sales to decrease

lack of liquidity in the secondary mortgage market

tighter credit standards for home buyers

general unavailability of commercial credit and

illiquidity of financial institutions

The length and severity of any economic downturn cannot be predicted Our operations could be

negatively affected to the extent that an economic downturn is prolonged or becomes more severe

The failure of any bank in which we deposit our funds could reduce the amount of cash we have available

to pay distributions and make additional investments

We diversify our cash and cash equivalents among several banking institutions in an attempt to minimize

exposure to any one of these entities Periodically we may have cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

deposited in certain financial institutions in excess of federally insured levels If any of the banking institutions in

which we have deposited funds ultimately fails we may lose our deposits over any federally insured amount The

loss of our deposits could reduce the amount of cash we have available to distribute or invest and could result in

decline in the value of our shareholders investments

Risks Related to the Secured Loan Lending Business

Defaults on our secured loans will reduce our income and shareholders distributions

Because significant number of our assets will be secured loans failure of borrower to pay interest or

repay loan will have adverse consequences on our income For example

failure by borrower to repay loans or interest on loans will reduce our income and consequently

distributions to our shareholders

we may not be able to resolve the default prior to foreclosure of the property securing the loan

we may be required to expend substantial funds for an extended period to complete or develop

foreclosed properties

the subsequent income and sale proceeds we receive from the foreclosed properties may be less than

competing investments and

the proceeds from sales of foreclosed properties may be less than our investment in the properties

Investments in land development loans present additional risks compared to loans secured by operating

properties

We may invest up to 10% of the gross offering proceeds in loans to purchase unimproved real property

and as of December 31 2011 we have invested 0% of the
gross offering proceeds in such loans For purposes of

this limitation unimproved real property is defined as real property which has the following three

characteristics an equity interest in real property which was not acquired for the purpose of producing rental
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or other income has no development or construction in process on such land and no development or

construction on such land is planned in good faith to commence within one year Land development mortgage

loans may be riskier than loans secured by improved properties because

until disposition the property does not generate separate income for the borrower to make loan

payments

the completion of planned development may require additional development financing by the

borrower which may not be available

depending on the velocity or amount of lot sales to homebuilders demand for lots may decrease

causing the price of the lots to decrease

depending on the velocity or amount of lot sales to developers or homebuilders demand for land may
decrease causing the price of the land to decrease

there is no assurance that we will be able to sell unimproved land promptly if we are forced to

foreclose upon it and

lot sale contracts are generally not specific performance contracts and the borrower may have no

recoUrse if homebuilder elects not to purchase lots

Investments in second mezzanine and wraparound mortgage loans present additional risks compared to

loans secured by first deeds of trust

We expect that we will be the junior lender with respect to some of our loans We may invest in

second mortgage loans some of which are also secured by pledges which investments represent approximately

16% of the gross offering proceeds as of December 31 2011 loan participations which are secured by

pledges and collateral-sharing arrangements permitting us to share in the proceeds of second liens held by

affiliates which investments represent 0% of the gross offering proceeds as of December 31 2011
mezzanine loans which are secured by pledges which investments represent approximately 8% of the

gross

offering proceeds as of December 31 2011 and wraparound mortgage loans which investments represent 0%
of the gross offering proceeds as of December 31 2011 wraparound or all-inclusive mortgage loan is loan in

which the lender combines the remainder of an old loan with new loan at an interest rate that blends the rate

charged on the old loan with the current market rate In second mortgage loan and in mezzanine loan our

rights as lender including our rights to receive payment on foreclosure will be subject to the rights of the prior

mortgage lender In wraparound mortgage loan our rights will be similarly subject to the rights of any prior

mortgage lender but the aggregate indebtedness evidenced by our loan documentation will be the prior mortgage

loans in addition to the new funds we invest Under wraparound mortgage loan we would receive all payments

from the borrower and forward to any senior lender its portion of the payments we receive Because all of these

types of loans are subject to the prior mortgage lenders right to payment on foreclosure we incur greater risk

when we invest in each of these types of loans

Credit enhancements provided by us are subject to specc risks relating to the particular borrower and

are subject to the general risks of investing in residential real estate

We may provide credit enhancements to real estate developers homebuilders land bankers and other real

estate investors such credit enhancements may take the form of loan guarantee the pledge of assets letter of

credit or an inter-creditor agreement provided by us to third-party lender for the benefit of borrower and are

intended to enhance the creditworthiness of the borrower thereby affording the borrower credit at terms it would

otherwise be unable to obtain Our provision of credit enhancements will involve special risks relating to the

particular borrower under the third-party loan including the financial condition and business outlook of the

borrower In addition the borrowers who receive our credit enhancements are subject to the inherent risks

associated with residential real estate

Many of our loans will require balloon payments which are riskier than loans with fully amortized

payments

We anticipate that substantially all of our loans will have balloon payments or reductions to principal tied

to net cash from the sale of developed lots and the release formula created by the senior lender i.e the conditions

under which principal is repaid to the senior lender if any and as of December 31 2011 100% of our loans have

balloon payments or reductions to principal tied to net cash balloon payment is large principal balance that is

payable after period of time during which the borrower has repaid none or only small portion of the principal
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balance Loans with balloon payments are riskier than loans with even payments of principal over an extended

time period such as 15 or 30 years because the borrowers repayment often depends on its ability to refinance the

loan or sell the developed lots profitably when the loan comes due There are no specific criteria used in

evaluating the credit quality of borrowers for mortgage loans requiring balloon payments Furthermore

substantial period of time may elapse between the review of the financial statements of the borrower and the date

when the balloon payment is due As result there is no assurance that borrower will have sufficient resources

to make balloon payment when due

The interest-only loans we make or acquire may be subject to greater risk of default and there may not be

sufficient funds or assets remaining to satisfy our loans which may result in losses to us

We will make and acquire interest-only loans or loans requiring reductions to accrued interest tied to net

cash and as of December 31 2011 100% of the loans we have made and acquired are interest-only loans or loans

requiring reductions to accrued interest tied to net cash Interest-only loans typically cost the borrower less in

monthly loan payments than fully-amortizing loans which require payment on principal as well as interest This

lower cost may enable borrower to acquire more expensive property than if the borrower was entering into

fully-amortizing mortgage loan Borrowers utilizing interest-only loans are dependent on the appreciation of the

value of the underlying property and the sale or refinancing of such property to pay down the interest-only loan

since none of the principal balance is being paid down with the borrowers monthly payments If the value of the

underlying property declines due to market or other factors it is likely that the borrower would hold property

that is worth less than the mortgage balance on the property Thus there may be greater risk of default by

borrowers who enter into interest-only loans In addition interest-only loans include an interest reserve in the loan

amount If such reserve is required to be funded due to borrowers non-payment the loan-to-value ratio for that

loan will increase possibly above generally acceptable levels In the event of defaulted interest-only loan we

would acquire the underlying collateral which may have declined in value In addition there are significant costs

and delays associated with the foreclosure process Any of these factors may result in losses to us

Larger loans result in less poq diversity and may increase risk and the concentration of loans with

common borrower may increase our risk

We intend to invest in loans that individually constitute an average amount equal to the lesser of 1% to

3% of the total amount raised in the Offering or $2.5 million to $15 million However we may invest in

larger loans depending on such factors as our performance and the value of the collateral These larger loans are

riskier because they may reduce our ability to diversify our loan portfolio Our largest loan to single borrower

will not exceed an amount equal to 20% of the total capital contributions raised in the Offering and as of

December 31 2011 our largest loan to single borrower is equal to 11% of the total capital contributions raised

in the Offering

The concentration of loans with common borrower may increase our risks

We may invest in multiple mortgage loans that share common borrower or loans to related borrowers

As of December 31 2011 we have invested approximately 63% of our offering proceeds in 21 loans to our

largest group of related borrowers The bankruptcy insolvency or other inability of any borrower that is the

subject of multiple loans to pay interest or repay principal on its loans would have adverse consequences on our

income and reduce the amount of funds available for distribution to investors In addition we expect to be

dependent on limited number of borrowers for large portion of our business The more concentrated our

portfolio is with one or few borrowers the greater credit risk we face The loss of any one of these borrowers

would have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

Incorrect or changed property values could result in losses and decreased distributions to our

shareholders

We will depend primarily upon our real estate security to protect us on the loans that we make We will

depend partly upon the skill of independent appraisers to value the security underlying our loans and partly upon

our Advisors internal underwriting and appraisal process However notwithstanding the experience of the

appraisers selected by our Advisor they or our Advisor may make mistakes or regardless of decisions made at

the time of funding market conditions may deteriorate for various reasons causing decrease to the value of the

security for our loans As result there may be less security than anticipated at the time the loan was originally
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made If there is less security and default occurs we may not recover the full amount of our loan thus reducing

the amount of funds available to distribute to our shareholders

Changes in market interest rates may reduce our income and distributions to our shareholders

substantial portion of all of our loans will be fixed-interest rate loans Market interest rates on

investments comparable to the shares could materially increase above the general level of our fixed-rate loans

Our distributions could then be less than the yield our shareholders may obtain from these other investments We
will also make loans with variable interest rates which will cause variations in the yield to us from these loans

We may make loans with interest rate guarantee provisions in them requiring minimum period of months or

years of earned interest even if the loan is paid off during the guarantee period The duration of the guarantee is

subject to negotiation and will likely vary from loan to loan Other than these provisions the majority of our

loans will not include prepayment penalties for borrower paying off loan priorto maturity The absence of

prepayment penalty in our loans may lead borrowers to refinance higher interest rate loans in market of falling

interest rates This would then require us to reinvest the prepayment proceeds in loans or alternative short-term

investments with lower interest rates and corresponding lower yield to our shareholders All of these risks

increase as the length of maturity of loan increases and the amount of cash available for new higher interest

loans decreases material increase in market interest rates could result in decrease in the supply of suitable

secured loans to us as there will likely be fewer attractive transactions for borrowers and less activity in the

marketplace

Some losses that borrowers might incur may not be insured and may result in defaults that would increase

our shareholders risk

Our loans will require that borrowers of interim construction loans carry adequate hazard insurance for

our benefit Some events are however either uninsurable or insurance coverage is economically not practicable

Losses from earthquakes floods or mudslides for example may be uninsured and cause losses to us on entire

loans If borrower allows insurance to lapse an event of loss could occur before we become aware of the lapse

and have time to obtain insurance ourselves Insurance coverage may be inadequate to cover property losses

even though our Advisor imposes insurance requirements on borrowers that it believes are adequate

Foreclosures create additional ownership risks to us of unexpected increased costs or decreased income

When we acquire property by foreclosure we have economic and liability risks as the owner including

less income and reduced cash flows on foreclosed properties than could be earned and received on

secured loans

selling the homes or lots to homebuyers or homebuilders

selling the land to developers homebuilders or other real estate investors

controlling construction or development and holding expenses

coping with general and local market conditions

complying with changes in laws and regulations pertaining to taxes use zoning and environmental

protection and

possible liability for injury to persons and property

If any of these risks were to materialize then the return on the particular investment could be reduced

and our business financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected

If we were found to have violated applicable usury laws we would be subject to penalties and other

possible risks

Usury laws generally regulate the amount of interest that may lawfully be charged on indebtedness Each

state has its own distinct usury laws We believe that our loans will not violate applicable usury laws as of

December 31 2011 the highest interest rate we have charged on an annualized basis is 15% There is risk

however that court could determine that our loans do violate applicable usury laws If we were found to have

violated applicable usury laws we could be subject to penalties including fines equal to three times the amount of

usurious interest collected and restitution to the borrower Additionally usury laws often provide that loan that

violates usury laws is unenforceable If we are subject to penalties or restitution or if our loan agreements are

adjudged unenforceable by court it would have material adverse effect on our business financial condition

and results of operations and we would have difficulty making distributions to our shareholders
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General Risks Related to Investments in Real Estate

Our operating results may be affected by economic and regulatoiy changes that have an adverse impact on

the real estate market in generaL

Our operating results will be subject to risks generally incident to the ownership of assets related to the

real estate industry including

changes in interest rates and availability of permanent mortgage funds

changes in general economic or local conditions

changes in tax real estate environmental and zoning laws and

periods of high interest rates and tight money supply

For these and other reasons we cannot assure our shareholders that we will be profitable or that we will

realize growth in the amount of income we receive from our investments

We borrow money to make loans or purchase some of our real estate assets If we fail to obtain or renew

sufficient funding on favorable terms we will be limited in our ability to make loans or purchase assets which

will harm our results of operations Furthermore our shareholders risks will increase jf defaults occur

We may incur substantial debt We incur when appropriate debt at the asset level Asset level leverage

will be determined by the anticipated term of the investment and the cash flow expected by the investment Asset

level leverage is expected to range from 0% to 90% of the asset value In addition we incur debt at the fund level

Our board of trustees has adopted policy to generally limit our fund level borrowings to 50% of the aggregate

fair market value of our real estate properties or secured loans once we have invested majority of the net

proceeds of the Offering and subsequent offerings if any However we are permitted by our declaration of trust

to borrow up to 300% of our net assets and may borrow in excess of such amount if such excess borrowing is

approved by majority of our independent trustees and disclosed in our next quarterly report to shareholders

along with justification for such excess Loans we obtain will likely be secured with recourse to all of our assets

which will put those assets at risk of forfeiture if we are unable to pay our debts

Our ability to achieve our investment objectives depends in part on our ability to borrow money in

sufficient amounts and on favorable terms We expect to depend on few lenders to provide the primary credit

facilities for our investments In addition our existing indebtedness may limit our ability to make additional

borrowings If our lenders do not allow us to renew our borrowings or we cannot replace maturing borrowings on

favorable terms or at all we might have to sell our investment assets under adverse market conditions which

would harm our results of operations and may result in permanent losses In addition loans we obtain may be

secured by all of our assets which will put those assets at risk of forfeiture if we are unable to pay our debts

Dislocations in the credit markets and real estate markets could have material adverse effrct on our

results of operations financial condition and ability to pay distributions to our shareholders

Domestic and international financial markets currently are experiencing significant dislocations which

have been brought about in large part by failures in the U.S banking system These dislocations have severely

impacted the availability of credit and have contributed to rising costs associated with obtaining credit If debt

financing is not available on terms and conditions we find acceptable we may not be able to obtain financing for

investments If this dislocation in the credit markets persists our ability to borrow monies to finance investments

in real estate assets will be negatively impacted If we are unable to borrow monies on terms and conditions that

we find acceptable we likely will have to reduce the number of real estate investments we can make and the

return on the investments we do make likely will be lower All of these events could have an adverse effect on

our results of operations financial condition and ability to pay distributions

Our operating results may be negatively affrcted by potential development and construction delays and

resultant increased costs and risks

We may provide financing for borrowers that will develop and construct improvements to land at fixed

contract price We will be subject to risks relating to uncertainties associated with re-zoning for development and

environmental concerns of governmental entities and/or community groups and our borrowers ability to control

land development costs or to build infrastructure in conformity with plans specifications and timetables deemed

necessary by builders The borrowers failure to perform may necessitate legal action by us to compel
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performance Performance may also be affected or delayed by conditions beyond the borrowers control Delays

in completion of construction could also give builders the right to terminate preconstruction lot purchase

contracts These and other such factors can result in increased costs to the borrower that may make it difficult for

the borrower to make payments to us Furthermore we must rely upon projections of lot take downs expenses

and estimates of the fair market value of property when evaluating whether to make loans If our projections are

inaccurate and we are forced to foreclose on property our return on our investment could suffer

The costs of compliance with environmental laws and other governmental laws and regulations may

adversely affect our income and the cash available for any distributions

All real property and the operations conducted on real property are subject to federal state and local laws

ordinances and regulations relating to environmental protection and human health and safety These laws and

regulations generally govern wastewater discharges air emissions the operation and removal of underground and

above-ground storage tanks the use storage treatment transportation and disposal of solid and hazardous

materials and the remediation of contamination associated with disposals Under limited circumstances

secured lender in addition to the owner of real estate may be liable for clean-up costs or have the obligation to

take remedial actions under environmental laws including but not limited to the Federal Comprehensive

Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 as amended or CERCLA Some of these

laws and regulations may impose joint and several liability for the costs of investigation or remediation of

contaminated properties regardless of fault or the legality of the original disposal In addition the presence of

these substances or the failure to properly remediate these substances may adversely affect our ability to sell

such property or to use the property as collateral for future borrowing

If we foreclose on defaulted loan to recover our investment we may become subject to environmental

liabilities associated with that property if we participate in the management of that property or do not divest

ourselves of the property at the earliest practicable time on commercially reasonable terms Environmental laws

may impose restrictions on the manner in which property may be used or businesses may be operated and these

restrictions may require substantial expenditures It is possible that property on which we foreclose may contain

hazardous substances wastes contaminants or pollutants that we may be required to remove or remediate in order

to clean up the property If we foreclose on contaminated property we may also incur liability to tenants or

other users of neighboring properties We cannot assure our shareholders that we will not incur full recourse

liability for the entire cost of removal and cleanup that the cost of such removal and cleanup will not exceed the

value of the property or that we will recover any of these costs from any other party It may be difficult or

impossible to sell property following discovery of hazardous substances or wastes on the property The cost of

defending against claims of liability of compliance with environmental regulatory requirements of remediating

any contaminated property or of paying personal injury claims could materially adversely affect our business

assets or results of operations and consequently amounts available for distribution to our shareholders

Terrorist attacks or other acts of violence or war may affect the industry in which we operate our

operations and our profitability

Terrorist attacks may harm our results of operations and our shareholders investments We cannot assure

our shareholders that there will not be further terrorist attacks against the United States or U.S businesses These

attacks or armed conflicts may directly or indirectly impact the value of the property we own or the property

underlying our loans Losses resulting from these types of events are generally uninsurable Moreover any of

these events could cause consumer confidence and spending to decrease or result in increased volatility in the

United States and worldwide financial markets They could also result in economic uncertainty in the United

States or abroad Adverse economic conditions resulting from terrorist activities could negatively impact

borrowers ability to repay loans we make to them or harm the value of the property underlying our investments

both of which would impair the value of our investments and decrease our ability to make distributions to our

shareholders

We will be subject to risks related to the geographic concentration of the properties securing the loans and

equity investments we make

Although we may purchase loans and make investments throughout the contiguous United States initially

we expect the majority of investments will be in the Southeastern and Southwestern United States with near

term concentration of substantially all of our investing and lending 90% or more in the major Texas submarkets

However if the residential real estate market or general economic conditions in these geographic areas decline to
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an extent greater than we forecast or recover to lesser extent than we forecast our and our borrowers ability to

sell homes lots and land located in these areas may be impaired we may experience greater rate of default on

the loans or other investments we make with respect to real estate in these areas and the value of the homes and

parcels in which we invest and that are underlying our investments in these areas could decline Any of these

events could materially adversely affect our business financial condition or results of operations

We will be subject to number of legal and regulatory requirements including regulations regarding

interest rates mortgage laws securities laws and the taxation of REITs or business trusts which may adversely

affect our operations

Federal and state lending laws and regulations generally regulate interest rates and many other aspects of

real estate loans and contracts Violations of those laws and regulations could materially adversely affect our

business financial condition and results of operations We cannot predict the extent to which any law or

regulation that may be enacted or enforced in the future may affect our operations In addition the costs to

comply with these laws and regulations may adversely affect our profitability Future changes to the laws and

regulations affecting us including changes to mortgage laws and securities laws and changes to the Internal

Revenue Code applicable to the taxation of REITs or business trusts could make it more difficult or expensive for

us to comply with such laws or otherwise harm our business

Federal Income Tax Risks

Failure to maintain our REIT status would adversely affect our operations and our ability to make

distributions

We made an election under Section 856c of the Internal Revenue Code to be taxed as REIT beginning

with the taxable year ended December 31 2010 In order for us to continue to qualify as REIT we must satisfy

certain requirements set forth in the Internal Revenue Code and treasury regulations promulgated thereunder and

various factual matters and circumstances that are not entirely within our control We structure our activities in

manner designed to satisfy all of these requirements However if certain of our operations were to be

recharacterized by the Internal Revenue Service such recharacterization could jeopardize our ability to satisfy all

of the requirements for qualification as REIT

If we fail to qualify as REIT for any taxable year we will be subject to federal income tax on our

taxable income at corporate rates In addition we may be disqualified from treatment as REIT for the four

taxable years following the year of losing our REIT status Losing our REIT status would reduce our net earnings

available for investment or distribution to shareholders because of the additional tax liability In addition

distributions to shareholders would no longer qualify for the distributions paid deduction and we would no longer

be required to make distributions If this occurs we might be required to borrow funds or liquidate some

investments in order to pay the applicable tax

Qualification as REIT is subject to the satisfaction of tax requirements and various factual matters and

circumstances that are not entirely within our control New legislation regulations administrative interpretations

or court decisions could change the tax laws with respect to qualification as REIT or the federal income tax

consequences of being REIT Our failure to continue to qualify as REIT would adversely affect our

shareholders returns on their investments

Our investment strategy may cause us to incur penalty taxes lose our REIT status or own and sell

properties through taxable REIT subsidiaries each of which would diminish the return to our shareholders

In light of our investment strategy it is possible that one or more sales of our properties may be

prohibited transactions under provisions of the Internal Revenue Code If we are deemed to have engaged in

prohibited transaction i.e we sell property held by us primarily for sale in the ordinary course of our trade or

business all income that we derive from such sale would be subject to 100% tax The Internal Revenue Code

sets forth safe harbor for REITs that wish to sell property without risking the imposition of the 100% tax

principal requirement of the safe harbor is that the REIT must hold the applicable property for not less than two

years prior to its sale Given our investment strategy it is entirely possible if not likely that the sale of one or

more of our properties will not fall within the prohibited transaction safe harbor

If we desire to sell property pursuant to transaction that does not fall within the safe harbor we may be

able to avoid the 100% penalty tax if we acquired the property through TRS or acquired the property and
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transferred it to TRS for non-tax business purpose prior to the sale i.e for reason other than the avoidance

of taxes However there may be circumstances that prevent us from using TRS in transaction that does not

qualify for the safe harbor Additionally even if it is possible to effect property disposition through TRS we

may decide to forego the use of TRS in transaction that does not meet the safe harbor based on our own

internal analysis the opinion of counsel or the opinion of other tax advisors that the disposition will not be subject

to the 100% penalty tax In cases where property disposition is not effected through TRS the Internal

Revenue Service could successfully assert that the disposition constitutes prohibited transaction in which event

all of the net income from the sale of such property will be payable as tax and none of the proceeds from such

sale will be distributable by us to our shareholders or available for investment by us

If we acquire property that we anticipate will not fall within the safe harbor from the 100% penalty tax

upon disposition
then we may acquire such property through TRS in order to avoid the possibility that the sale

of such property will be prohibited
transaction and subject to the 100% penalty tax If we already own such

property directly or indirectly through an entity other than TRS we may contribute the property to TRS if

there is another non-tax related business purpose for the contribution of such property to the TRS Following the

transfer of the property to TRS the TRS will operate the property and may sell such property and distribute the

net proceeds from such sale to us and we may distribute the net proceeds distributed to us by the TRS to our

shareholders Though sale of the property by TRS may eliminate the danger of the application of the 100%

penalty tax the TRS itself would be subject to tax at the federal level and potentially at the state and local

levels on the gain realized by it from the sale of the property as well as on the income earned while the property

is operated by the TRS This tax obligation would diminish the amount of the proceeds from the sale of such

property that would be distributable to our shareholders As result the amount available for distribution to our

shareholders would be substantially less than if the REIT had not operated and sold such property through the

TRS and such transaction was not successfully characterized as prohibited transaction The maximum federal

corporate income tax rate currently is 35% Federal state and local corporate income tax rates may be increased

in the future and any such increase would reduce the amount of the net proceeds available for distribution by us

to our shareholders from the sale of property through TRS after the effective date of any increase in such tax

rates

If we own too many properties through one or more of our TRSs then we may lose our status as REIT

If we fail to qualify as REIT for any taxable year we will be subject to federal income tax on our taxable

income at corporate rates In addition we may be disqualified from treatment as REIT for the four taxable
years

following the year of losing our REIT status Losing our REIT status would reduce our net earnings available for

investment or distribution to shareholders because of the additional tax liability In addition distributions to

shareholders would no longer qualify for the distributions paid deduction and we would no longer be required to

make distributions If this occurs we might be required to borrow funds or liquidate some investments in order to

pay the applicable tax As REIT the value of the securities we hold in all of our TRSs may not exceed 25% of

the value of all of our assets at the end of any calendar quarter If the Internal Revenue Service were to determine

that the value of our interests in all of our TRSs exceeded 25% of the value of total assets at the end of any

calendar quarter then we would fail to qualify as REIT If we determine it to be in our best interests to own

substantial number of our properties through one or more TRSs then it is possible that the Internal Revenue

Service may conclude that the value of our interests in our TRSs exceeds 25% of the value of our total assets at

the end of any calendar quarter and therefore cause us to fail to qualify as REIT Additionally as REIT no

more than 25% of our gross
income with respect to any year may be from sources other than real estate

Distributions paid to us from TRS are considered to be non-real estate income Therefore we may fail to

qualify as REIT if distributions from all of our TRSs when aggregated with all other non-real estate income

with respect to any one year are more than 25% of our gross income with respect to such year We will use all

reasonable efforts to structure our activities in manner that satisfies the requirements for qualification as REIT

Our failure to qualify as REIT would adversely affect our shareholders returns on their investments

Certain fres paid to us may affrct our REIT status

Certain fees and income we receive couki be characterized by the Internal Revenue Service as non

qualifying income for purposes of satisfying the income tests required for REIT qualification If this fee

income were in fact treated as non-qualifying and if the aggregate of such fee income and any other non

qualifying income in any taxable year ever exceeded 5% of our gross revenues for such year we could lose our

REIT status for that taxable year and the four ensuing taxable years We will use all reasonable efforts to
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structure our activities in manner that satisfies the requirements for our qualification as REIT Our failure to

qualify as REIT would adversely affect our shareholders returns on their investments

Shareholders may have tax liability on distributiOns they elect to reinvest in our common shares of

beneficial interest and they may have to use funds from other sources to pay such tax liability

If shareholders elect to have their distributions reinvested in our common shares of beneficial interest

pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan they will be deemed to have received and for income tax purposes

will be taxed on the amount reinvested that does not represent return of capital As result unless

shareholder is tax-exempt entity shareholder may have to use funds from other sources to pay tlir tax

liability on the value of the shares received

If our operating partnership fails to maintain its status as partnership its income may be subject to

taxation which would reduce our cash available for distribution to our shareholders

We intend to maintain the status of our operating partnership UDF IV OP as partnership for federal

income tax purposes However if the Internal Revenue Service were to successfully challenge the status of the

operating partnership as partnership it would be taxable as corporation In such event this would reduce the

amount of distributions that the operating partnership could make to us This would also result in our losing REIT

status and becoming subject to corporate level tax on our own income This would substantially reduce our

cash available to make distributions and the return on our shareholders investments In addition if any of the

partnerships or limited liability companies through which the operating partnership owns its properties in whole

or in part loses its characterization as partnership for federal income tax purposes it would be subject to

taxation as corporation thereby reducing distributions to the operating partnership Such recharacterization of

an underlying property owner could also threaten our ability to maintain REIT status

In certain circumstances we may be subject to federal and state taxes on income as REIT which would

reduce our cash available for distribution to our shareholders

Even if we maintain our status as REIT we may become subject to federal income taxes and related

state taxes For example if we have net income from prohibited transaction such income will be subject to

100% tax We may not be able to make sufficient distributions to avoid excise taxes applicable to REITs We

may also decide to retain income we earn from the interest on our secured loans or the sale or other disposition of

our property and pay income tax directly on such income In that event our shareholders would be treated as if

they earned that income and paid the tax on it directly However shareholders that are tax-exempt such as

charities or qualified pension plans would have no benefit from their deemed payment of such tax liability We
may also be subject to state and local taxes on our income or property either directly or at the level of the

operating partnership or at the level of the other companies through which we indirectly make secured loans or

own our assets Any federal or state taxes paid by us will reduce our cash available for distribution to our

shareholders

Legislative or regulatory action could adversely affect the returns to our investors

In recent years numerous legislative judicial and administrative changes have been made in the

provisions of the federal income tax laws applicable to investments similar to an investment in our common
shares of beneficial interest On March 30 2010 the President signed into law the Health Care and Education

Reconciliation Act of 2010 the Reconciliation Act The Reconciliation Act will require certain U.S
shareholders who are individuals estates or trusts to pay 3.8% Medicare tax on among other things dividends

on and capital gains from the sale or other disposition of shares subject to certain exceptions This additional tax

will apply broadly to essentially all dividends and all gains from dispositions of shares including dividends from

REITs and gains from dispositions of REIT shares such as our common shares of beneficial interest As enacted

the tax will apply for taxable
years beginning after December 31 2012

Additional changes to the tax laws are likely to continue to occur and we cannot assure investors that any

such changes will not adversely affect the taxation of shareholder Any such changes could have an adverse

effect on an investment in our shares or on the market value or the resale potential of our assets Investors are

urged to consult with their own tax advisor with respect to the impact of recent legislation on their investment in

our shares and the status of legislative regulatory or administrative developments and proposals and their

potential effect on an investment in our shares
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Congress passed major federal tax legislation in 2003 with modifications to that legislation in 2005 and

an extension of that legislation by the Tax Relief Unemployment Insurance Reauthorization and Job Creation

Act of 2010 One of the changes effected by that legislation generally reduced the maximum tax rate on qualified

dividends paid by corporations to individuals to 15% through 2012 REIT distributions however generally do not

constitute qualified dividends and consequently are not eligible for this reduced maximum tax rate Therefore our

shareholders will pay federal income tax on our distributions other than capital gains dividends or distributions

which represent return of capital for tax purposes at the applicable ordinary income rate the maximum of

which is currently 35% However as REIT we generally would not be subject to federal or state corporate

income taxes on that portion of our ordinary income or capital gain that we distribute currently to our

shareholders and we thus expect to avoid the double taxation to which other companies are typically subject

The tax rate changes contained in the Tax Relief Unemployment Insurance Reauthorization and Job

Creation Act of 2010 are currently scheduled to expire at the end of 2012 It is widely anticipated that this

expiration will provoke legislative response from Congress for tax years beginning after December 31 2012 It

is impossible to anticipate the effects of any such legislation at this time

Although REITs continue to receive substantially better tax treatment than entities taxed as corporations

it is possible that future legislation would result in REIT having fewer tax advantages and it could become more

advantageous for company that invests in real estate to elect to be taxed for federal income tax purposes as

corporation As result our declaration of trust provides our board of trustees with the power under certain

circumstances to revoke or otherwise terminate our REIT election and cause us to be taxed as corporation

without the vote of our shareholders Our board of trustees has fiduciary duties to us and our shareholders and

could only cause such changes in our tax treatment if it determines in good faith that such changes are in the best

interest of our shareholders

Equity participation in secured loans may result in taxable income and gains from these properties which

could adversely impact our REIT status

If we participate under secured loan in any appreciation of the properties securing the secured loan or its

cash flow and the Internal Revenue Service characterizes this participation as equity we might have to

recognize income gains and other items from the property This could affect our ability to qualify as REIT

Distributions to tax-exempt investors may be classified as UBTI and tax-exempt investors would be

required to pay tax on such income and to file income tax returns

Neither ordinary nor capital gain distributions with respect to our common shares of beneficial interest

nor gain from the sale of shares should generally constitute UBTI to tax-exempt investor However there are

certain exceptions to this rule including

under certain circumstances part of the income and gain recognized by certain qualified employee

pension trusts with respect to our shares may be treated as UBTI if our shares are predominately held

by qualified employee pension trusts such that we are pension-held REIT which we do not

expect to be the case

part of the income and gain recognized by tax-exempt investor with respect to our shares would

constitute UBTI if such investor incurs debt in order to acquire the common shares of beneficial

interest and

part or all of the income or gain recognized with respect to our common shares of beneficial interest

held by social clubs voluntary employee benefit associations supplemental unemployment benefit

trusts and qualified group legal services plans which are exempt from U.S federal income taxation

under Sections 501 c7 17 or 20 of the Internal Revenue Code may be treated as UBTI

Distributions to foreign investors may be treated as ordinary income distributions to the extent that they

are made out of current or accumulated earnings and profits

In general foreign investors will be subject to regular U.S federal income tax with respect to their

investment in our shares if the income derived therefrom is effectively connected with the foreign investors

conduct of trade or business in the United States distribution to foreign investor that is not attributable to

gain realized by us from the sale or exchange of U.S real property interest within the meaning of the Foreign

Investment in Real Property Tax Act of 1980 as amended or FIRPTA and that we do not designate as capital
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gain dividend will be treated as an ordinary income distribution to the extent that it is made out of current or

accumulated earnings and profits as determined for U.S federal income tax purposes Generally any ordinary

income distribution will be subject to U.S federal income tax equal to 30% of the gross amount of the

distribution unless this tax is reduced by the provisions of an applicable treaty

Foreign investors may be subject to FIRPTA tax upon the sale oftheir shares

foreign investor disposing of U.S real property interest including shares of U.S entity whose

assets consist principally of U.S real property interests is generally subject to FIRPTA tax on the gain recognized

on the disposition Such FIRPTA tax does not apply however to the disposition of shares in REIT if the REIT

is domestically controlled REIT is domestically controlled if less than 50% of the REITs shares by value

have been owned directly or indirectly by persons who are not qualifying U.S persons during continuous five-

year period ending on the date of disposition or if shorter during the entire period of the REITs existence

While we intend to qualify as domestically controlled we cannot assure shareholders that we will If we were

to fail to so qualify gain realized by foreign investors on sale of our shares would be subject to FIRPTA tax

unless the shares were traded on an established securities market and the foreign investor did not at any time

during specified testing period directly or indirectly own more than 5% of the value of our outstanding common
shares of beneficial interest

Foreign investors may be subject to FIRPTA tax upon the payment of capital gain distribution

foreign investor also may be subject to FIRPTA tax upon the payment of any capital gain distribution

by us which distribution is attributable to gain from sales or exchanges of U.S real property interests

Additionally capital gain distributions paid to foreign investors if attributable to gain from sales or exchanges of

U.S real property interests would not be exempt from FIRPTA and would be subject to FIRPTA tax

We encourage investors to consult their own tax advisor to determine the tax consequences applicable to

them if they are foreign investor

Risks Related to Investments by Tax-Exempt Entities and Benefit Plans Subject to the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as amended ERISA

If our shareholders fail to meet the fiduciary and other standards under ERISA or the Internal Revenue

Code as result of an investment in our common shares of beneficial interest they could be subject to criminal

and civil penalties

There are special considerations that apply to tax-qualified pension stock bonus or profit-sharing plans

employee benefit plans described in Section 33 of ERISA and other retirement plans or accounts subject to

Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code such as individual retirement accounts IRAs or annuities

described in Sections 408 or 408A of the Internal Revenue Code annuities described in Sections 403a or of

the Internal Revenue Code Archer MSAs described in Section 220d of the Internal Revenue Code health

savings accounts described in Section 223d of the Internal Revenue Code and Coverdell education savings

accounts described in Section 530 of the Internal Revenue Code that are investing in our shares If investors are

investing the assets of plan or IRA in our common shares of beneficial interest they should satisfi yourself that

among other things

their investment is consistent with their fiduciary obligations under ERISA and the internal Revenue

Code applicable to their plan or IRA and other applicable provisions of ERISA and the Internal

Revenue Code applicable to their plan or IRA
their investment is made in accordance with the documents and instruments governing their plan or

IRA including their plans investment policy if applicable

their investment satisfies the prudence and diversification requirements of Sections 404a1B and

404a1C of ERISA and all other applicable provisions of ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code

that may apply to their plan or IRA
their investment will not impair the liquidity needs of the plan or IRA including liquidity needs to

satisfy minimum and other distribution requirements and tax withholding requirements that may be

applicable

their investment will not produce UBTI for the plan or IRA
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they will be able to value the assets of the plan or IRA annually or more frequently in accordance

with ERISA and Internal Revenue Code requirements and any applicable provisions of the plan or

IRA
their investment will not constitute prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERISA or

Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code and

our assets will not be treated as plan assets of their plan or IRA

Failure to satisfy the fiduciary standards of conduct and other applicable requirements of ERISA and the

Internal Revenue Code may result in the imposition of civil and if willful criminal penalties and could subject

the responsible fiduciaries to liability and equitable remedies In addition if an investment in our shares

constitutes prohibited transaction under ERISA or the Internal Revenue Code the party-in-interest or

disqualified person who engaged in the prohibited transaction may be subject to the imposition of excise taxes

with respect to the amount involved and for IRAs the tax-exempt status of the IRA may be lost

This summary does not include discussion of any laws regulations or statutes that may apply to

investors not covered by ERISA including for example plans or arrangements that constitute governmental

plans or church plans which are exempt from ERISA and many Internal Revenue Code requirements For such

plans and arrangements applicable laws such as state laws may impose fiduciary responsibility requirements in

connection with the investment of assets and may have prohibitions that operate similarly to the prohibited

transaction rules of ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code but which may also vary significantly from such

prohibitions For any governmental or church plan or other plans or arrangements not subject to ERISA those

persons responsible for the investment of the assets of such plans or arrangements should carefully consider the

impact of such laws on an investment in our shares

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

We do not maintain any physical properties Our operations are conducted at the corporate offices of our

Advisor at 1301 Municipal Way Grapevine Texas 76051

Item Legal Proceedings

None

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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Part

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Market Information

Unless and until our shares are listed on national securities exchange we do not expect that public

market for our shares will develop This illiquidity creates risk that shareholder may not be able to sell shares

at time or price acceptable to the shareholder Until eighteen months after the termination of the Offering or the

termination of any subsequent offering of our shares we will use the offering price of shares in our most recent

offering as the per share value unless we have made special distribution to shareholders of net proceeds from

our investments prior to the date of determination of the per share value in which case we will use the offering

price less the per share amount of the special distribution We are offering our common shares of beneficial

interest at price of $20.00 per share pursuant to the current Offering Beginning eighteen months after the last

offering of our shares our board of trustees will determine the value of our properties and other assets based on

such information as our board of trustees determines appropriate which may include independent valuations of

our investments or of our enterprise as whole

There can be no assurance however with respect to any estimate of value that we prepare that

the estimated value per share would actually be realized by our shareholders upon liquidation

because these estimates do not necessarily indicate that all loans will be paid in full or the price at

which properties can be sold

our shareholders would be able to realize estimated net asset values if they were to attempt to SCil

their shares because no public market for our shares exists or is likely to develop

the estimated value per share would be related to any individual or aggregated value estimates or

appraisals of our assets or

that the value or method used to establish value would comply with ERISA or Internal Revenue

Code requirements

Share Redemption Program

We have adopted share redemption program that enables our shareholders to sell their shares back to us

in limited circumstances Generally this program permits shareholders to sell their shares back to us after they

have held them for at least one year Except for redemptions upon the death of shareholder in which case we

may waive the minimum holding periods the purchase price for the redeemed shares for the period beginning

after shareholder has held the shares for period of one year will be 92% of the purchase price actually paid

for any shares held less than two years 94% of the purchase price actually paid for any shares held for at least

two years but less than three years 96% of the purchase price actually paid for any shares held at least three

years but less than four years 98% of the purchase price actually paid for any shares held at least four years

but less than five years and for any shares held at least five years the lesser of the purchase price actually paid

or the then-current fair market value of the shares as determined by the most recent annual valuation of our shares

The purchase price for shares redeemed upon the death of shareholder will be the lesser ofl the purchase price

the shareholder actually paid for the shares or $20.00 per share

We reserve the right in our sole discretion at any time and from time to time to waive the one-year

holding period in the event of the death or bankruptcy of shareholder or other exigent circumstances reject

any request for redemption change the purchase price for redemptions or terminate suspend and/or

reestablish our share redemption program In respect of shares redeemed upon the death of shareholder we

will not redeem in excess of 1% of the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the twelve-month

period immediately prior to the date of redemption and the total number of shares we may redeem at any time

will not exceed 5% of the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the trailing twelve-month period

prior to the redemption date Our board of trustees will determine from time to time whether we have sufficient

excess cash from operations to repurchase shares Generally the cash available for redemption will be limited to

1% of the operating cash flow from the previous fiscal year plus any net proceeds from our DRIP
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The following table sets forth information relating to our common shares of beneficial interest that have

been repurchased during the quarter ended December 31 2011

Maximum

Average Total number of number of

price paid common shares of common shares of

Total number of per common beneficial interest beneficial interest

common shares of share of repurchased as part that may yet be

beneficial interest beneficial of publicly purchased under

2011 repurchased interest announced plan
--

the plan

October 500 18.40 500

November 3075 19.31 3075

December

3575 19.18 3575

description of the maximum number of common shares of beneficial interest that may be

purchased under our share redemption program is included in the narrative preceding this table

For the year ended December 31 2011 we had received valid redemption requests relating to 26015
shares of beneficial interest all of which were redeemed for an aggregate purchase price of approximately

$512000 an average redemption price of approximately $19 68 per share For the year ended December 31

2010 we had received valid redemption requests relating to 2500 shares of beneficial interest all of which were

redeemed for an aggregate purchase price of $50000 an average redemption price of $20.00 per share Such

shares are included in treasury stock in the accompanying consolidated financial statements included in this Form

10-K valid redemption request is one that complies with the applicable requirements and guidelines of our

current share redemption program set forth in the prospectus relating to the Offering We have funded all share

redemptions using funds from operations

Holders

As of March 2012 we had approximately 8356356 common shares of beneficial interest outstanding

that were held by total of approximately 5445 shareholders

Distribution Reinvestment Plan

Our DRIP allows our shareholders and subject to certain conditions set forth in the plan any shareholder

or partner of any other publicly offered limited partnership real estate investment trust or other United

Development Funding-sponsored real estate program to elect to purchase our common shares with our

distributions or distributions from such other programs We are offering 10000000 shares for sale pursuant to

our DRIP at $20 per share until the earliest to occur of the issuance of all shares authorized and reserved for

issuance pursuant to the DRIP the termination of the Offering which is anticipated to be November 12 2012
unless extended as permitted by applicable law provided however that our board of trustees may elect to extend

the offering period for the shares sold pursuant to our DRIP in which case participants in the plan will be

notified and any subsequent offering of DRIP shares pursuant to an effective registration statement or the

determination by our board of trustees that the number of our shares traded in secondary market is more than

de minimis amount If shares authorized and reserved for issuance pursuant to the DRIP remain available for

issuance shares are being offered to the public pursuant to the Offering or subsequent offering and our shares

are being traded in secondary market and the amount of such shares traded is more than de minimis amount
we will invest distributions in shares at price equal to the most recent per share price at which our shares were

traded in the secondary market prior to the close of business on the last business day prior to the date of the

distribution
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Distributions

Distributions are authorized at the discretion of our board of trustees which is directed in substantial

part by its obligation to cause us to comply with the REIT requirements of the Internal Revenue Code The funds

we receive from operations that are available for distribution may be affected by number of factors including

the following

the amount of time required for us to invest the funds received in the Offering

our operating and interest expenses

the ability of borrowers to meet their obligations under the loans

the amount of distributions or dividends received by us from our indirect real estate investments

the ability of our clients to sell finished lots to homebuilders and the ability of homebuilders to sell

new homes to home buyers

capital expenditures and reserves for such expenditures

the issuance of additional shares and

financings and refinancings

We must distribute to our shareholders at least 90% of our taxable income each year in order to meet the

requirements for being treated as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code In accordance with this requirement

we pay daily distributions to our shareholders monthly in arrears Our distribution rate is determined quarterly by

our board of trustees and is dependent on number of factors including funds available for payment of

distributions our financial condition loan funding commitments and annual distribution requirements needed to

maintain our status as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code In addition to these distributions in an effort to

ensure we distribute at least 90% of our taxable income our board of trustees will periodically authorize

additional special distnbutions All distributions are paid in cash and DRIP shares

Our board of trustees has authorized distributions for our shareholders of record beginning as of the close

of business on each day for the period commencing on December 18 2009 and ending on March 31 2012 For

distributions declared for each record date in the December 2009 through June 2011 periods our distribution rate

was $0.0043836 per common share of beneficial interest which is equal to an annualized distribution rate of

8.0% assuming purchase price of $20.00 per share For distributions declared for each record date in the July

2011 through March 2012 periods our distribution rate is $0.0044932 per common share of beneficial interest

which is equal to an annualized distribution rate of 8.2% assuming purchase price of $20.00 per share These

distributions are aggregated and paid monthly in arrears Distributions are paid on or about the 25th day of the

respective month Distributions for shareholders participating in our DRIP are reinvested into our shares on the

payment date of each distribution

In addition to the distributions discussed above the following table represents
all special distnbutions

authorized by our board of trustees through December 2011

All outstanding common shares of beneficial interest as of the record date receive the distribution

Represents the distribution rate per common share of beneficial interest on the record date

Represents the date the special distribution was paid in cash and DRIP shares

Authorization Date Record Date

September 2010

Rate

December 15 2010

Pay Date

June 27 2011 August3l2011

February 12011

0.05

Represents the date the distribution was authorized by our board of trustees

September 13 2011
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We made the following distributions to our shareholders for the year ended December 31 2011

Period Ended

December31 2010

December 31 2010

January312011

February 28 2011

March31 2011

April 30 2011

April 30 2011

May31 2011

June 30 2011

July 31 2011

August 31 2011

August 31 2011

September 30 2Q11

October 31 2011

November 302011

Date Paid

January 142011

February 12011

February23 2011

March 23 2011

April 212011

May 17 2011

May242011

June242011

July 22 2011

August 24 2011

September 13 2011

September 23 2011

October 24 2011

November 22 2011

December 22 01

Distribution

Amount

339000

374000

379000

376000

456000

387000

480000

548000

574000

667000

272000

725000

763000

851000

890000

8081000

For the year ended December 31 2011 we paid distributions of approximately $8.1 million $5.1 million

in cash and $3.0 million in our common shares of beneficial interest pursuant to our DRIP as compared to cash

flows provided by operations of approximately $6.3 million From May 28 2008 Date of Inception through

December 31 2011 we paid cumulative distributions of approximately $10.0 million as compared to cumulative

funds from operations FF0 of approximately $10.8 million see Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations Funds from Operations and Modified Funds from Operations

below for discussion of FF0 As of December 31 2011 we had approximately $623000 of cash distributions

declared that were paid subsequent to period end

The distributions paid during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 along with the amount of

distributions reinvested pursuant to our DRIP and the sources of our distributions were as follows

Year Ended December 31

Distributions reinvested

Total distxibttjons

Source of distributions

Borrowings under credit facilities

Total sources

3019000

8081000

6342000

1739000

8081000

1886000

1886000

1886000

In our initial quarters of operations and from time to time thereafter we did not generate enough cash

flow to fully fund distributions declared Therefore some or all of our distributions are paid from sources other

than operating cash flow such as borrowings including borrowings secured by our assets in anticipation of

future operating cash flow Distributions in excess of our operating cash flows have been funded via financing

activities specifically borrowings under our credit facilities consistent with our intent to use our credit facilities

to meet our investment and distribution cash requirements throughout our initial period of operations

Distributioijs paidin cash 5062000

2011 2010

Cash from operations

1179000

707000

78%

22%

100%

100%

100%
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We utilize cash to fund operating expenses make investments service debt obligations and pay

distributions We receive cash from operations which includes interest payments as well as cash from investing

activities which includes repayment of principal on loans we have made and financing activities which includes

borrowing proceeds and additional capital from the sale of our shares We have secured senior credit facility

notes payable and lines of credit to manage the timing of our cash receipts and funding requirements Over the

long term as additional subscriptions for common shares are received and proceeds from such subscriptions are

invested in revenue-generating real estate investments we expect that substantially all of our distributions will be

funded from operating cash flow Further we believe operating
income will improve in future periods as start-up

costs and general and administrative expenses are borne over larger investment portfolio

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the year ended December 31 2011 we did not sell any equity securities that were not registered

or otherwise exempt under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended

Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

On November 12 2009 our Registration Statement Registration No 333-152760 covering the Offering

of up to 25000000 common shares of beneficial interest to be offered in the Primary Offering at price of $20

per share was declared effective under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended The Registration Statement also

covers up to 10000000 common shares of beneficial interest to be issued pursuant to our DRIP for $20 per share

Therefore the aggregate offering price of the shares registered pursuant to the Offering is $700 million We

reserve the right to reallocate the common shares of beneficial interest registered in the Offering between the

Primary Offering and the DRIP

As of December 31 2011 we had issued an aggregate of 7405564 common shares of beneficial interest

in the Primary Offering and DRIP consisting of 7219309 common shares of beneficial interest in accordance

with the Primary Offering in exchange for gross proceeds of approximately $144.4 million and 186255 common

shares of beneficial interest in accordance with our DRIP in exchange for gross proceeds of approximately $3.7

million Including DRIP proceeds the net offering proceeds to us after deducting approximately $18.7 million of

offering costs were approximately $129.4 million Of the offering costs approximately $4.3 million was paid to

our Advisor for organization and offering expenses and approximately $14.4 million was paid to non-affiliates for

selling commissions dealer manager fees and other offering fees

As of December 31 2011 we had originated 50 loans with aggregate maximum loan amounts totaling

approximately $243.2 million We had approximately $37.8 million of commitments to be funded under terms of

the notes receivable and loan participation interest including related parties of which approximately $10.7

million relates to notes receivable related parties $25.5 million relates to notes receivable and approximately

$1.6 million relates to commitments to be funded under terms of the loan participation interest related parties

As of December 31 2011 we have paid UMTH LD approximately $3.8 million for acquisition and origination

fees associated with our loans as discussed in Note to our accompanying consolidated financial statements

Item Selected Financial Data

We present below selected financial information We encourage you to read the consolidated financial

statements and the notes accompanying the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report

This information is not intended to be replacement for the consolidated financial statements

December 31

2011 2010 2009

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Cash and cash equivalents 6031956 2543501 520311

Loan participation interest related parties net 23036428 6190133 1380

Notes receivable net 109070.679 53800754

Notes receivable related parties net 14308463 5627299

Deferred oiŁring costs 8533957 7372116 5684106

Other assets 5.474250 4036981 723 82

Total assets 166455733 79570784 8308756
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Total expenses

Net incme loss

Net income loss per
share

Distributions per share

Funds from operations

9Q64509

14399059

10735608

3013180

937748

38150104

128305629

166455733

2011

3409831

40689

13298050

501278

736896

1731058

5418362

7879688

1.66

1.74

8288000

13261000

6342057

81309824

78456222

8103153

18167025

4087797

1929669

688901

32976545

46594239

79570784

Year Ended December 31

2010

1417320

4478358

139633

345315

976141

2252421

222597

1.67

1.75

2487000

4459000

581765

64353042

66957997

4217

4247

21491

2234

25959

21712
1.63

0.30

22000
4000

2080 19

1380757

205458

Net income loss per share and distributions per share are based upon the weighted average number of common shares of

beneficial interest outstanding Distributions by us of our current and accumulated earnings and profits for federal income

tax purposes are taxable to shareholders as ordinary income Distributions in excess of these earnings and profits generally

are treated as non-taxable reduction of the shareholders basis in the common shares of beneficial interest to the extent

thereof return of capital for tax purposes and thereafter as taxable gain These distributions in excess of earnings and

profits will have the effect of deferring taxation of the distributions until the sale of our shareholders common shares

For additional information on funds from operations refer to Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations Results of Operations Funds From Operations and Modified Funds

From Operations section of this Form 0-K which includes reconciliation of our net income loss as reported to

funds from operations for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

3For additional information on net operating income refer to Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations Results of Operations Net Operating Income section of this Form 10-

which includes reconciliation of our GAAP net income loss to net operating income for the years ended December

31 2011 2010 and 2009

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our accompanying consolidated

financial statements and the notes thereto

Overview

On November 12 2009 the Trusts Registration Statement on Form S-li covering the Offering of up to

25000000 common shares of beneficial interest to be offered in the Primary Offering at price of $20 per share

was declared effective under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended The Offering also covers up to 10000000
common shares of beneficial interest to be issued pursuant to our DRIP at price of $20 per share We reserve

Accrued liabilities related parties

Notes payable

Lines of credit

Senior credit facility

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

OPERATING DAT4
Interest income related parties

Commitment fee income related parties

Total revenues

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses related parties

Interest
expense

5516613

708171

6224784

2083972

8308756

2009

Net operating incOme

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS DATA
Cash flows provided by used in operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows provided by financing activities
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the right to reallocate the common shares of beneficial interest registered in the Offering between the Primary

Offering and the DRIP

We use substantially all of the net proceeds from the Offering to originate purchase participate in and

hold for investment secured loans made directly by us or indirectly through our affiliates to persons and entities

for the acquisition and development of parcels of real property as single-family residential lots and the

construction of model and new single-family homes including development of mixed-use master planned

residential communities We may also make direct investments in land for development into single-family lots

new and model homes and portfolios of finished lots and homes provide credit enhancements to real estate

developers home builders land bankers and other real estate investors and purchase participations in or finance

for other real estate investors the purchase of securitized real estate loan pools and discounted cash flows secured

by state county municipal or other similar assessments levied on real property We also may enter into joint

ventures with unaffiliated real estate developers home builders land bankers and other real estate investors or

with other United Development Funding-sponsored programs to originate or acquire as the case may be the

same kind of secured loans or real estate investments we may originate or acquire directly

Until required in connection with the funding of loans or other investments substantially all of the net

proceeds of the Offering and thereafter our working capital reserves may be invested in short-term highly-

liquid investments including but not limited to government obligations bank certificates of deposit short-term

debt obligations and interest-bearing accounts

We made an election under Section 856c of the Internal Revenue Code to be taxed as REIT beginning

with the taxable year ended December 31 2010 which was the first year in which we had material operations As

REIT we generally are not subject to federal income tax on income that we distribute to our shareholders If we

later fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year we wiii be subject to federal income tax on our taxable income

at regular corporate rates and may not be permitted to qualify for treatment as REIT for federal income tax

purposes for four years following the year in which our qualification is denied unless we are entitled to relief

under certain statutory provisions Such an event could materially and adversely affect our net income However

we believe that we are organized and operated in manner that will enable us to remain qualified as REIT for

federal income tax purposes

Our loan portfolio consisting of notes receivable notes receivable related parties and loan participation

interest related parties grew from approximately $1.4 million as of December 31 2009 to approximately $65.6

million as of December 31 2010 to approximately $146.4 million as of December 31 2011 With the increase in

our loan portfolio our revenues the majority of which is from recognizing interest income associated with our

loan portfolio also increased Our expenses related to the portfolio also increased including the loan loss

expense which was approximately $162000 and $512000 for the years
ended December 31 2010 and 2011

respectively We did not incur any loan loss expense for the year ended December 31 2009

Our cash balances were approximately $520000 $2.5 million and $6.0 million as of December 31 2009

2010 and 2011 respectively These balances have fluctuated since the Offering began with the raise of gross

proceeds and the deployment of funds available

We use debt as means of providing additional funds for the acquisition or origination of secured loans

acquisition of properties and the diversification of our portfolio We also use when appropriate leverage at the

asset level We did not incur any interest expense for the year ended December 31 2009 Interest expense

associated with both fund-level and asset-level indebtedness was approximately $1.0 million and $1.7 million for

the years
ended December 31 2010 and 2011 respectively The increase in interest expense is result of the

timing of the leverage added to the fund in 2010 and 2011

Net income loss was approximately $22000 $2.2 million and $7.9 million for the years ended

December 31 2009 2010 and 2011 respectively and net income loss per share of beneficial interest was

approximately $l.63 $1.67 and $1.66 respectively for the same periods Our net income loss per share of

beneficial interest is calculated based on net income divided by the weighted average shares of beneficial interest

outstanding Such net income per share of beneficial interest has fluctuated since the Offering began with the

raise of gross proceeds and the deployment of funds available

As of December 31 2011 we had originated 50 loans including loans that have been repaid in full by

the respective borrower totaling approximately $143.6 million Of the 41 loans outstanding as of December 31
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2011 loans totaling approximately $13.8 million and loans totaling approximately $22.8 million are included

in notes receivable related parties and loan participation interest related parties respectively on our balance

sheet

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our accounting policies have been established to conform with generally accepted accounting principles

GAAP in the United States The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP

requires management to use judgment in the application of accounting policies including making estimates and

assumptions These judgments affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent

assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and

expenses during the reporting periods If managements judgment or interpretation of the facts and circumstances

relating to various transactions had been different it is possible that different accounting policies would have been

applied thus resulting in different presentation of the consolidated financial statements Additionally other

companies may utilize different estimates that may impact comparability of our results of operations to those of

companies in similar businesses

Managements discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based upon our

consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP GAAP consists of set

of standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB and other authoritative bodies in the

form of FASB Statements Interpretations FASB Staff Positions EJTF consensuses and AICPA Statements of

Position among others The FASB recognized the complexity of its standard-setting process and embarked on

revised process in 2004 that culminated in the release on July 2009 of the Accounting Standards Codification

ASC The ASC does not change how the Trust accounts for its transactions or the nature of related

disclosures made Rather the ASC results in changes to how the Trust references accounting standards within its

reports This change was made effective by the FASB for periods ending on or after September 15 2009 The

Trust has updated references to GAAP in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to reflect the guidance in the ASC

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires our management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues and expenses and related disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities On regular basis we evaluate these estimates including investment

impairment These estimates are based on managements historical industry experience and on various other

assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Actual results may differ from these

estimates

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Trust and certain wholly-owned

subsidiaries All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

certain reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes Actual results could

differ from these estimates and assumptions

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased to be

cash equivalents At December 31 2011 and 2010 there were no such amounts included in cash and cash

equivalents

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes monies held in escrow with respect to subscriptions for shares of beneficial

interest deposits associated with certain guarantees and liquid investments with maturities of greater than three

months

Loan Participation Interest Related Parties

Loan participation interest related parties represents the purchase of financial interest in certain

interim construction loan and finished lot loan facilities originated by our affiliates We participate in these loans
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by funding the lending obligations of our affiliates under these credit facilities up to maximum amount for each

participation Such participations entitle us to receive payments of principal and interest from the borrower up to

the amounts funded by us The participation interests are typically collateralized by promissory notes first lien

deeds of trust on the homes financed under the construction loans or lots financed under the lot loan facilities and

other loan documents The participations have terms ranging from to 27 months and bear interest at rates

ranging from 12% to 15% The participation interests may be paid off prior to maturity however we intend to

hold all participation interests for the life of the loans

Notes Receivable and Notes Receivable Related Parties

Notes receivable and notes receivable related parties are recorded at the lower of cost or net realizable

value The notes are collateralized by first or second lien deed of trust on the underlying real estate collateral or

pledge of ownership interests in the borrower as well as promissory notes assignments of certain lot sales

contracts and earnest money and other loan documents None of such notes are insured or guaranteed by

federally owned or guaranteed mortgage agency The notes have terms ranging from to 47 months and bear

interest at rates ranging from 13% to 15% The notes may be paid off prior to maturity however the Trust

intends to hold all notes for the life of the notes

Determination of the Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is our estimate of incurred losses in our portfolio of notes receivable notes

receivable related parties and loan participation interest related parties We periodically perform detailed

review of our portfolio of notes and other loans to determine if impairment has occurred and to assess the

adequacy of the allowance for loan losses Our review consists of evaluating economic conditions the estimated

value of the underlying collateral the guarantor adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to pay or

the value of the collateral and other relevant factors This review is inherently subjective as it requires estimates

that are susceptible to sigmficant revision as more information becomes available

In reviewing our portfolio we use cash flow estimates from the disposition of finished lots paper lots

residential lots shown on plat that has been accepted by the city or county but which is currently undeveloped

or under development and undeveloped land as well as cash flow received from the iSsuance of bonds from

municipal reimbursement districts These estimates are based on current market metrics including without

limitation the supply of finished lots paper lots and undeveloped land the supply of homes and the rate and price

at which land and homes are sold historic levels and trends executed contracts appraisals and discussions with

third party market analysts and participants including homebuilders We have based our valuations on current and

historic market trends on our analysis of market events and conditions including activity within our portfolio as

well as those of third-party services such as Metrostudy and Residential Strategies Inc Cash flow forecasts also

have been based on executed purchase contracts which provide base prices escalation rates and absorption rates

on an individual project basis For projects deemed to have an extended time horizon for disposition we have

considered third-party appraisals to provide valuation in accordance with guidelines set forth in the Uniform

Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice In addition to cash flows from the disposition of property cost

analysis has been performed based on estimates of development and senior financing expenditures provided by

developers and independent professionals on project-by-project basis These amounts have been reconciled with

our best estimates to establish the net realizable value of the portfolio

We charge additions to the allowance for loan losses to current period earnings through provision for

loan losses Amounts determined to be uncollectible are charged directly against or charged off and decrease

the allowance for loan losses while amounts recovered on previously charged off accounts increase the

allowance As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the allowance for loan losses had balance of $675000 and

$162000 respectively offset against notes receivable see Note to accompanying consolidated financial

statements

Organization and Offering Expenses

Organization costs will be expensed as incurred in accordance with Statement of Position 98-5 Reporting

on the Costs of Start-up Activities currently within the scope of FASB ASC 720-15 Offering costs related to

raising capital from debt will be capitalized and amortized over the term of such debt Offering costs related to

raising capital ftom equity reduce equity and are reflected as shares issuance costs in shareholders equity

Certain offering costs are currently being paid by our Advisor As discussed in Note to the accompanying
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consolidated financial statements these costs will be reimbursed to our Advisor by the Trust the OO
Reimbursement

Acquisition and Origination Fees

UMTH LD our asset manager is paid 3% of the net amount available for investment in secured loans and

other real estate assets Placement Fees provided however that no Placement Fees will be paid with respect

to any asset level indebtedness we incur The Placement Fees that we pay will be reduced by the amount of any

acquisition and origination fees and expenses paid by borrowers or investment entities to our Advisor or affiliates

of our Advisor with respect to our investment We will not pay any Placement Fees with respect to any

participation agreement we enter into with our affiliates or any affiliates of our Advisor for which our Advisor or

affiliates of our Advisor previously has received acquisition and origination fees and expenses from such affiliate

with respect to the same secured loan or other real estate asset Such costs are amortized into expense on

straight line basis

Revenue Recognition

Interest income on loan participation interest related parties notes receivable and notes receivable

related parties is recognized over the life of the participation agreement or note agreement and recorded on the

accrual basis loan is placed on non-accrual status and income recognition is suspended at the date at which in

the opinion of management full recovery of income and principal becomes more likely than not but is no

longer probable based upon our review of economic conditions the estimated value of the underlying collateral

the guarantor adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to pay or the value of the collateral and

other relevant factors Income recognition is resumed when the loan becomes contractually current and

performance is demonstrated to be resumed Any payments received on loans classified as non-accrual status are

typically applied first to outstanding loan amounts and then to the recovery of lost interest As of December 31

2011 and 2010 we were accruing interest on all loan participation interest related parties notes receivable and

notes receivable related parties

Commitment fee income and Commitment fee income related parties represents non-refundable fees

charged to borrowers for entering into an obligation that commits us to make or acquire loan or to satisfy

financial obligation of the borrower when certain conditions are met within specified time period When

commitment is considered an integral part of the resulting loan and we believe there is reasonable expectation

that the commitment will be called upon the commitment fee is recognized as revenue over the life of the

resulting loan As of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively approximately $498000 and $176000

respectively of unamortized commitment fees are included as an offset of notes receivable Approximately

$94000 and $19000 of unamortized commitment fees are included as an offset of notes receivable related

parties as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively When we believe it is unlikely that the commitment will

be called upon or that the fee is not an integral part of the return of specific future lending arrangement the

commitment fee is recognized as income when it is earned based on the specific terms of the commitment We

make determination of revenue recognition on case-by-case basis due to the unique and varying terms of each

commitment

Loan Portfolio

As of December 31 2011 we had entered into participation agreements with related parties of which

were repaid in full with aggregate maximum loan amounts of approximately $30.3 million with an unfunded

balance of approximately $1.6 million and related party note agreements of which was repaid in full with

aggregate maximum loan amounts totaling approximately $30.1 million with an unfunded balance of $10.7

million Additionally we had entered into 34 note agreements with third parties of which were repaid in full

with aggregate maximum loan amounts of approximately $182.9 million of which $25.5 million has yet to be

funded

As of December 31 2011 we had two loans to borrowers that individually accounted for over 10% of

the outstanding balance of our portfolio These borrowers include FH 295 loans to which comprise

approximately 11% of the outstanding balance of our portfolio and iiCTMGT Williamsburg loans to which

comprise approximately 10% of the outstanding balance of our portfolio FH 295 and CTMGT Williamsburg are

affiliates of each other and loans to affiliates of FH 295 and CTMGT Williamsburg comprise an additional 44% of

the outstanding balance of our loan portfolio
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The participation agreements outstanding as of December 31 2011 are made to borrower entities which

may hold ownership interests in projects in addition to the project funded by us may be secured by multiple

single-family residential communities and certain participation agreements are secured by personal guarantee of

the borrower in addition to lien on the real property or the equity interests in the entity that holds the real

property The outstanding aggregate principal amount of mortgage notes originated by us as of December 31
2011 are secured by properties located in the Dallas Fort Worth Austin Houston and San Antonio metropolitan

markets in Texas and Denver Colorado Security for such loans takes the form of either direct security interest

represented by first or second lien on the respective property andlor an indirect security interest represented by

pledge of the ownership interests of the entity which holds title to the property

The interest rates payable range from 12% to 15% with respect to the outstanding participation

agreements and notes receivable including related parties as of December 31 2011 The participation

agreements have terms to maturity ranging from to 27 months while the notes receivable have terms ranging

from to 47 months

Results of Operations

The year ended December 31 2011 compared to the year ended December 31 2010

Revenues

Interest income including related party interest income for the
years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010

was approximately $12 million and $4 million respectively The increase in interest income for the year

ended December 31 2011 is primarily the result of our increased notes receivable portfolio including related

party transactions and loan participation mterestrelated party portfolio of approximately $1464 million asof
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our Offering continue to be invested in revenue-generating real estate investments

Commitment fee income including related party commitment fee income for the years ended December

31 2011 and 2010 was approximately $438000 and $425000 respectively The increase in commitment fee

income for the year ended December 31 2011 is primarily the result of an increase in overall loan commitments

as proceeds raised from our Offering continue to be invested in revenue-generating real estate investments

We expect revenues to increase in the near future as we continue to raise proceeds from the Offering and

invest such proceeds in revenue-generating real-estate investments

Expenses

Interest expense related to our senior credit facility notes payable and lines of credit totaled

approximately $1.7 million and $976000 for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The

increase is due to the timing of leverage introduced to the fund during 2011 and 2010 For further discussion of

leverage introduced to the fund see notes and to the accompanying consolidated financial statements

Advisory fee related party expense was approximately $1.9 million and $629000 for the
years

ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively We pay our Advisor fees of 2% per annum of our average invested

assets Advisory Fees including secured loan assets provided however that no Advisory Fees will be paid

with respect to any asset level indebtedness we incur The fee is calculated monthly in an amount equal to one-

twelfth of 2% of the Trusts average invested assets including secured loan assets as of the last day of the

immediately preceding month Advisory fee related party expense represents the expense associated with these

Advisory Fees The increase in advisory fee related party expense is associated with the increase in our average

invested assets as proceeds raised from our Offering continue to be invested in revenue-generating real estate

investments

General and administrative expense for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 was approximately

$501000 and $140000 respectively General and administrative expense consists primarily of legal and

accounting fees transfer agent fees insurance expense and amortization of deferred financing costs The increase

in general and administrative expense is primarily associated with an increase in transfer agent fees and an

increase in amortization of deferred financing costs commensurate with the increase in shareholders and the

timing of leverage introduced to the fund over the same period
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General and administrative related parties expense for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

was approximately $737000 and $345000 respectively We will occasionally enter into financing arrangements

that require guarantees from entities affiliated with us These guarantees require us to pay fees Credit

Enhancement Fees to our affiliated entities as consideration for their guarantees These Credit Enhancement

Fees are either expensed as incurred or prepaid and amortized based on the terms of the guarantee agreements

We also pay our Advisor 1% of the amount made available to us pursuant to the origination of any line of credit

or other debt financing provided that the Advisor has provided substantial amount of services as determined by

our independent trustees and on each anniversary date of the origination of any such line of credit or other debt

financing we pay an additional fee to our Advisor of 0.25% of the primary loan amount
col1ectivey

Debt

Financing Fees if such line of credit or other debt financing continues to be outstanding on such date General

and administrative related parties expense consists of amortization of Placement Fees amortization of Debt

Financing Fees and expense associated with Credit Enhancement Fees The increase in general and

administrative related parties expense is primarily result of an increase in expense associated with Credit

Enhancement Fees and an increase in amortization of Placement Fees commensurate with the increase in our

investment portfolio over the same period

The year ended December 31 2010 compared to the year ended December 31 2009

We commenced active operations after we satisfied the minimum offering of 50000 common shares of

beneficial interest for gross offering proceeds of $1.0 million in connection with the Offering on December 18

2009 As result our operations for the year ended December 31 2010 are not comparable to the results of

operations for the year ended December 31 2009

Revenues

Interest income including related party
interest income for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

was approximately $4.1 million and $4000 respectively The increase in interest income for the year ended

December 31 2010 is primarily the result of our increased notes receivable portfolio including related party

transactions and loan participation interest related party portfolio of approximately $65.6 million as of

December 31 2010 compared to approximately $1.4 million as of December 31 2009 as proceeds raised from

our Offering continue to be invested in revenue-generating real estate investments

Commitment fee income including related party commitment fee income for the year ended December

31 2010 was approximately $425000 We did not recognize any commitment fee income for the year ended

December 31 2009 The increase in commitment fee income for the year ended December 31 2010 is the result

of an increase in overall loan commitments as proceeds raised from our Offering continue to be invested in

revenue-generating real estate investments

We expect revenues to increase in the near future as we continue to raise proceeds from the Offering and

invest such proceeds in revenue-generating real-estate investments

Expenses

Interest expense related to our senior credit facility notes payable and lines of credit totaled

approximately $976000 for the year ended December 31 2010 We did not recognize any interest expense for

the year ended December 31 2009 The increase is due to the leverage introduced to the fund during 2010 For

further discussion of leverage introduced to the fund see notes and to the accompanying consolidated

financial statements

Advisory fee related party expense was approximately $629000 and $2000 for the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The increase in advisory fee related party expense is associated

with the increase in our average invested assets as proceeds raised from our Offering continue to be invested in

revenue-generating real estate investments

General and administrative expense for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 was approximately

$140000 and $24000 respectively General and administrative expense consists primarily of legal and

accounting fees transfer agent fees insurance expense and amortization of deferred financing costs The increase

in general and administrative expense is primarily associated with an increase in transfer agent fees and

amortization of deferred financing costs commensurate with the increase in shareholders and the leverage

introduced to the fund during 2010
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General and administrative related parties expense for the year ended December 31 2010 was

approximately $345000 We did not recognize any general and administrative related parties expense for the

year ended December 31 2009 General and administrative related parties expense consists of amortization of

Placement Fees amortization of Debt Financing Fees and expense associated with Credit Enhancement Fees The

increase in general and administrative related parties expense is result of an increase in each of these costs

commensurate with the increase in our investment portfolio over the same period

Comparison Charts

The chart below summarizes the approximate expenses associated with related parties for the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 We believe that these fees and reimbursements are reasonable and

customary for comparable mortgage REITs

Purpose

For the Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Total Advisory fee reated party 1937.000 100% 62900 100% 2000 100%

Amortization of Debt Financing Fees 71000 23% 156.000 45/a

Amorti7ation of Placement Fees 412000 56% 124.000 36%

Credit Enhancement Fees 154000 21% 65000 19%

The chart below summarizes the approximate payments to related parties for the years ended December

31 2011 2010 and 2009

For the Year Ended December 31

Payee Purpose 201 2010 2009

tJMTII iS

OO Reimbursement 273 1000 38% 502000 40% 66.000 540/a

AdisoryFees 1.776.000 25% 557.000 15%

Debt Financing Fees 158000 318.000 8%

UMTII LD

Placement Fees 387000 33% 1319000 35/o 57000 46%

UDE LU

Credit Enhancement Fees 161 .000 2% 64.000 2%

Total Payments 7213000 100% 3760000 100% 123000 100%

We intend to grow our portfolio in conjunction with the increase in proceeds raised in the Offering We
intend to deploy such proceeds in diversified manner to the borrowers and markets in which we have experience

and as markets dictate in accordance with the economic factors conducive for stable residential market We

expect general and administrative and advisory fee related party expenses to increase commensurate with the

growth of our portfolio
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Gas/i Flow Analysis

The year ended December 31 2011 compared to the year ended December 31 2010

Cash flows provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31 2011 were approximately

$6.3 million and were comprised primarily of net income offset slightly with accrued interest receivable and

accrued receivable related parties Cash flows used in operating activities for the year ended December 31
2010 were approximately $582000 and were comprised primarily of net income offset with accrued interest

receivable accrued receivable related parties and other assets

Cash flows used in investing activities for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 were

approximately $81.3 million and $64.4 million respectively resulting primarily from originations of notes

receivable including related party transactions and loan participation interest related parties offset by receipts

from mortgage notes receivable including related party transactions and loan participation interest related

parties

Cash flows provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31 2011 were approximately

$78.5 million and were comprised primarily of funds received from the issuance of common shares of beneficial

interest pursuant to the Offering net borrowings on lines of credit and advances on notes payable and the senior

credit facility offset slightly by payments on notes payable cash distributions to shareholders and payments of

offering costs Cash flows provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31 2010 were

approximately $67.0 million and were comprised primarily of funds received from the issuance of common shares

of beneficial interest pursuant to the Offering net borrowings on lines of credit and advances on notes payable

and the senior credit facility offset slightly by cash distributions to shareholders and payments of offering costs

Our cash and cash equivalents were approximately $6.0 million as of December 31 2011 compared to

approximately $2.5 million at December 31 2010

The year ended December 2010 compared to the year ended December 2009

We commenced active operations after we satisfied the minimum offering of 50000 common shares of

beneficial interest for
gross offering proceeds of $1.0 million in connection with the Offering on December 18

2009 As result our cash flows for the year ended December 31 2010 are not comparable to the cash flows for

the year ended Oecember 31 2009

Cash flows used in operating activities for the year ended December 31 2010 were approximately

$582000 and were comprised primarily of net income offset with accrued interest receivable accrued receivable

related parties and other assets Cash flows used in operating activities for the year ended December 31 2009

were approximately $208000 and were comprised primarily of net loss and other assets

Cash flows used in investing activities for the year ended December 31 2010 were approximately $64.4

million resulting primarily from originations of notes receivable including related party transactions and loan

participation interest related parties offset by receipts from mortgage notes receivable including related party

transactions and loan participation interest related parties Cash flows used in investing activities for the year
ended December 31 2009 were approximately $1.4 million resulting primarily from originations of loan

participation interest related parties

Cash flows provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31 2010 were approximately

$67.0 million and were comprised primarily of funds received from the issuance of common shares of beneficial

interest pursuant to the Offering net borrowings on lines of credit and advances on notes payable and the senior

credit facility offset slightly by cash distributions to shareholders and payments of offering costs Cash flows

provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31 2009 were approximately $2.1 million and were

comprised primarily of funds received from the issuance of common shares of beneficial interest pursuant to the

Offering

Our cash and cash equivalents were approximately $2.5 million as of December 31 2010 compared to

approximately $520000 at December 31 2009

6.1



Funds from Operations and Modified Funds from Operations

Due to certain unique operating characteristics of real estate companies the National Association of Real

Estate Investment Trusts NAREIT an industry trade group has promulgated measure known as funds from

operations FF0 which we believe to be an appropriate supplemental measure to reflect the operating

performance of REIT FF0 is not equivalent to our net income or loss as determined under GAAP

We define FF0 non-GAAP measure consistent with the standards established by the White Paper on

FF0 approved by the Board of Governors of NAREIT as revised in February 2004 the White Paper The

White Paper defines FF0 as net income or loss computed in accordance with GAAP excluding gains or losses

from sales of property and asset impairment write-downs plus depreciation
and amortization and after

adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships
and

joint ventures are calculated to reflect FF0 Our FF0 calculation complies with NAREITs policy descnbed

above

However changes in the accounting and reporting rules under GAAP that have been put into effect since

the establishment of NAREITs definition of FF0 have prompted an increase in the non-cash and non-operating

items included in FF0 Additionally publicly registered non-listed REITs typically have significant amount of

acquisition activity and are substantially more dynamic during their initial
years

of investment and operation and

therefore require additional adjustments to FF0 in evaluating performance Due to these and other unique

features of publicly registered non-listed REITs the Investment Program Association the IPA an industry

trade group has standardized measure known as modified funds from operations MFFO which we believe

to be another appropriate supplemental measure to reflect the operating performance of REIT The use of

MFFO is recommended by the IPA as supplemental performance measure for publicly registered non-listed

REITs MFFO is metric used by management to evaluate sustainable performance and dividend poiicy MFFO

is not equivalent to our net income or loss as determined under GAAP

We define MFFO non-GAAP measure consistent with the IPAs Guideline 2010-01 Supplemental

Performance Measure for Publicly Registered Non-Listed REITs Modified Funds from Operations the

Practice Guideline issued by the IPA in November 2010 The Practice Guideline defines MFFO as FF0

further adjusted for the following items included in the determination of GAAP net income acquisition
fees and

expenses amounts relating to deferred rent receivables and amortization of above and below market leases and

liabilities accretion of discounts and amortization of premiums on debt investments mark-to-market adjustments

included in net income gains or losses included in net income from the extinguishment or sale of debt hedges

foreign exchange derivatives or securities holdings where trading of such holdings is not fundamental attribute

of the business plan unrealized gains or losses resulting from consolidation from or deconsolidation to equity

accounting and after adjustments for consolidated and unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures with such

adjustments calculated to reflect MFFO on the same basis Our MFFO calculation complies with the IPAs

Practice Guideline described above

In calculating MFFO we adjust for acquisition related expenses Management believes excluding

acquisition costs from MFFO provides investors with supplemental performance information that is consistent

with the performance models used by management and provides investors with view of our portfolio over time

independent of direct costs associated with the timing of acquisition activity MFFO also allows for comparison

of our portfolio with other REITs that are not currently engaged in acquisition activity as well as comparison of

our performance with that of other publicly registered non-listed REITs as MFFO or an equivalent measure is

routinely reported by publicly registered non-listed REITs and we believe often used by analysts and investors

for comparison purposes With respect to loan loss provisions management does not include these expenses in

our evaluation of the operating performance of our real estate loan portfolio as we believe these costs will be

reflected in our reported results from operations if and when we actually realize loss on real estate

investment As many other publicly registered non-listed REITs exclude such charges in reporting their MFFO
we believe that our calculation and reporting of MFFO will assist investors and analysts in comparing our

performance versus other publicly registered non-listed REITs The other adjustments included in the IPAs

Practice Guideline are not applicable to us for the three and
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Presentation of this information is intended to assist the reader in comparing the operating performance of

different REITs although it should be noted that not all REITs calculate FF0 and MFFO the same way so

comparisons with other REITs may not be meaningful Furthermore FF0 and MFFO are not necessarily
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indicative of cash flow available to fund cash needs and should not be considered as an alternative to net income

as an indication of our performance as an indication of our liquidity or indicative of funds available to fund our

cash needs including our ability to make distributions to our shareholders FF0 and MFFO should be reviewed in

conjunction with other measurements as an indication of our performance MFFO has limitations as

performance measure in an offering such as ours where the price of common share of beneficial interest is

stated value and there is no net asset value determination during the Offering and for period thereafter MFFO

may be useful in assisting management and investors in assessing the sustainability of operating performance and

our current distribution policy in future operating periods and in particular after the Offering or the time when

we cease to make investments on frequent and regular basis and net asset value is disclosed FF0 and MFFO
are not useful measures in evaluating net asset value because impairments are taken into account in determining

net asset value but not in determining FF0 and MFFO In addition because MFFO excludes the effect of

acquisition costs which are an important component in an analysis of the historical performance of an asset

MFFO should not be construed as historic performance measure Our FF0 and MFFO reporting complies with

NAREIT policy described above

The following is reconciliation of net income to FF0 and MFFO for the
years ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009

For the year ended December 31

Funds From Operations 2011 2010 2009

Net Income as reported 7880000 2226000 22000
Add

Amortization expense 408000 261000

FF0 8288000 2487000 22000
Other Adjustments

Provision for loan losses 512000 162000

Acquisition costs 412000 124000

MFFO 9212000 2773000 22000

Net Operating Income

We are disclosing net operating income and intend to disclose net operating income in future filings

because we believe that net operating income provides an accurate measure of the operating performance of our

operating assets because net operating income excludes certain items that are not directly associated with our

investments Net operating income is non-GAAP financial measure that is defined as net income computed in

accordance with GAAP generated from properties before interest expense general and administrative expense
depreciation amortization and interest and dividend income Additionally we believe that net operating income

is widely accepted measure of comparative operating performance in the real estate community However our

use of the term net operating income may not be comparable to that of other real estate companies as they may
have different methodologies for computing this amount

To facilitate understanding of this financial measure the following is reconciliation of net income to net

operating income for the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

For the year ended December 31

NetOperatingincome __I1 2010

Net Income as reported 7880000 2226000 22000
Add

interest expense 1731000 976000

General and administrative expense 3280000 5000 26000

Amortization expense 408000 261000

Less

Other interest and dividend income 38000 19000 _______
Net operadng income 13261000 $4459000 4000
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Includes advisory fee related party expense provision for loan losses expense general and administrative

expense net of amortization expense and general and administrative related party expense net of

amortization expense

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity requirements will be affected by outstanding loan funding obligations our

administrative expenses and debt service on fund level and asset level indebtedness required to preserve our

collateral position We expect that our liquidity will be provided by loan interest transaction fees and credit

enhancement fee payments loan principal payments proceeds from the issuance of common shares of

beneficial interest pursuant to the Offering proceeds from our DRIP and credit lines available to us

There may be delay between the sale of our shares and the making of real estate-related investments

which could result in delay in our ability to make distributions to our shareholders However we have not

established any limit on the amount of proceeds from the Offering that may be used to fund distributions except

that in accordance with our organizational documents and Maryland law we may not make distributions that

would cause us to be unable to pay our debts as they become due in the usual course of business cause our

total assets to be less than the sum of our total liabilities plus senior liquidation preferences if any or

jeopardize our ability to qualify as REIT In addition to the extent our investments are in development projects

or in other properties that have significant capital requirements and/or delays in their ability to generate income

our ability to make distributions may be negatively impacted especially during our early periods of operation

We use debt as means of providing additional funds for the acquisition or origination of secured loans

acquisition of properties and the diversification of our portfolio There is no limitation on the amount we may

borrow for the purchase or origination of single secured loan the purchase of any individual property or other

investment Under our declaration of trust the maximum amount of our indebtedness shall not exceed 300% of

our net assets as of the date of any borrowing however we may exceed that limit if approved by majority of our

independent trustees and disclosed in our next quarterly report to shareholders along with justification
for such

excess In addition to our declaration of trust limitation our board of trustees has adopted policy to generally

limit our fund level borrowings to 50% of the aggregate fair market value of our assets unless substantial

justification exists that borrowing greater amount is in our best interests We also use when appropriate

leverage at the asset level Asset level leverage is determined by the anticipated term of the investment and the

cash flow expected by the investment Asset level leverage is expected to range from 0% to 90% of the asset

value

Asset level indebtedness will be either interest only or be amortized over the expected life of the asset

Typically asset indebtedness will be from senior commercial lender between 50% and 90% of the fair market

value of the asset Further entity-level indebtedness will typically be revolving credit facility permitting us to

borrow up to an agreed-upon outstanding principal amount Such entity-level indebtedness is secured by first

priority lien upon all of our existing and future acquired assets

Our Advisor may but is not required to establish capital reserves from gross offering proceeds out of

cash flow generated from interest income from loans and income from other investments or out of non-liquidating

net sale proceeds from the sale of our loans properties and other investments Alternatively lender may require

its own formula for escrow of capital reserves

Potential future sources of capital include proceeds from secured or unsecured financings from banks or

other lenders proceeds from the repayment of loans sale of assets and undistributed funds from operations If

necessary we may use financings or other sources of capital in the event of unforeseen significant capital

expenditures

We believe that the resources stated above will be sufficient to satisfy our operating requirements for the

foreseeable future and we do not anticipate need to raise funds from other than the sources described above

within the next 12 months

Material Trends Affecting Our Business

We believe that the housing market reached bottom in its four-year decline and has begun to recover

This recovery likely will continue to be regional in its early stages led by those housing markets with balanced

supply affordable and stable home prices lower levels of foreclosures strong economies and strong demand
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fundamentals Nationally we expect the recovery will continue to experience headwinds from weak demand

fundamentals specifically consumer confidence and employment as well as from the limited availability of bank

financing and persisting oversupply of home inventory and higher levels of foreclosures in the regions most
affected by the housing bubble The national consumer confidence index which fell to record lows during the

economic downturn has recovered somewhat but remains closer to levels historically associated with recession

than to normalized conditions Unemployment remains elevated and access to conventional real estate and

commercial financing remains challenging across most of the country These factors pose obstacles to robust

recovery on national scale which we believe is contingent upon the reengagement of the consumer and the

return of final demand However we expect the recovery will be stronger in markets such as Texas where

consumer confidence averaged nearly 17 points higher than the national index from December 2010 to December

2011 where the job growth rate over the past 12 months was approximately 60 basis points higher than the

national rate and where approximately 15% of all homebuilding permits in the country were issued in 2010

Further according to the Bureau of Labor Statistics 30 3% of the total net new jobs created in the United States

since the official end of the national recession were created in Texas from June 2009 to December 2011
Currently 98% of our portfolio relates to property located in the state of Texas and we intend to invest in markets

that demonstrate similarly sound economic and demand fundamentals fundamentals that we believe will be the

drivers of the recovery and balanced supplies of homes and finished lots We believe the fact that new single-

family home permits starts and sales have all risen from their respective lows reflects continued return of real

demand for new homes However we anticipate the former bubble market states principally California

Arizona Nevada and Florida will be slower to recover as those markets have seen overbuilding and extensive

price correction and are experiencing weakened economies and continued foreclosures

From national perspective ongoing credit constriction less robust economic recovery continued high

unemployment and housing price instability have made potential new home purchasers and real estate lenders

cautious As result of these factors the national housing market has experienced protracted decline and the

time necessary to correct the market likely means corresponding slower recovery for the housing industry

Nationally capital constraints at the heart of the credit crisis have reduced the number of real estate

lenders able or willing to finance development construction or the purchase of homes and have increased the

number of undercapitalized or failed builders and developers In correlation the number of new homes and

finished lots developed has decreased which may result in shortage of new homes and developed lots in select

real estate markets in 2012 We believe this shortage will be most prominent in markets that did not participate in

the housing bubble avoiding overbuilding and maintaining balanced supplies and affordable and stable home

prices With lenders imposing stricter underwriting standards mortgages to purchase homes have become more
difficult to obtain in some markets To support the secondary residential mortgage market and prevent further

deterioration of mortgage lending the Federal Reserve began an unprecedented program to purchase

approximately $1 25 trillion of residential mortgage backed securities between January 2009 and March 31
2010 This program ended on March 31 2010 as scheduled by the Federal Reserve On September 21 2011 the

Federal Reserve announced that it would begin reinvesting the principal payments from its mortgage-backed
securities holdings into additional purchases of agency mortgage-backed securities to help further support

conditions in mortgage markets Any limitations or restrictions on the availability of financing or on the liquidity

provided in the secondary residential mortgage market by Government Sponsored Enterprises such as Fannie Mae
and Freddie Mac could adversely affect interest rates and mortgage availability which could cause the number of

homebuyers to decrease which could increase the likelihood of borrowers defaulting on our loans and
consequently reduce our ability to pay distributions to our shareholders

Nationally new home sales rose slightly during the fourth quarter from the pace of sales in the third

quarter of 2011 though levels remain near historical lows However national fundamentals that drive home sales

continue to improve in most markets and home
affordability remains near record-highs so we expect the pace of

home sales will continue to increase over 2012 The Census Bureau reports that the sales of new single-

family residential homes in December 2011 were at seasonally adjusted annual rate of 324000 units This

number is up approximately 7.3% from the September 2011 figure of 302000 but down approximately 2.1%

year-over-year from the December 2010 estimate of 331000

Nationally new single-family home inventory continued to improve in the fOurth
quarter of 2011 as it has

done consistently since the second quarter of 2007 Through much of the downturn homebuilders reduced their

starts and focused on selling their existing new home inventory The number of new homes for sale fell by
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approximately 36000 units from December 2010 to December 2011 and by 7000 units in the fourth quarter

2011 We believe that with such reductions the new home market has been restored to equilibrium in most

markets even at low levels of demand The seasonally adjusted estimate of new homes for sale at the end of

December 2011 was 154000 slightly short supply of 5.7 months at the December sales rate and the lowest

number of homes available for sale since the U.S Census Bureau began keeping records of this statistic in 1963

We believe that what is necessary now to regain prosperity in housing markets is the return of healthy levels of

demand

According to the U.S Census Bureau new single-family residential home permits and starts fell

nationally from 2006 through early 2009 as result and in anticipation of an elevated supply of and decreased

demand for new single-family residential homes in that period Since bottoming in early 2009 however single-

family permits and starts have improved significantly Single-family homes authorized by building permits in

December 2011 were at seasonally adjusted annual rate of 441000 units This was essentially unchanged year-

over-year from the rate of 445000 in December 2010 and is approximately 30.9% higher than the low of 337000

set in January 2009 Single-family home starts for December 2011 stood at seasonally adjusted annual rate of

505000 units This pace is up approximately 19 9% from the December 2010 estimate of 421000 units Further

the December 2011 pace of home starts is 43 1% higher than the low of 353000 set in March 2009 Such

increases suggest to us that new home inventories are generally in balance and the homebuilding industry now

anticipates greater demand for new homes in coming months relative to the demand evident at the bottom of the

new homebuilding cycle

The primary factors affecting new home sales are home price stability home affordability and housing

demand Housing supply may affect both new home prices and the demand for new homes When the supply of

new homes exceeds new home demand new home prices may generally be expected to deØline Also home

foreclosures cause the inventory of existing homes to increase which may add additional downward price

pressure on home prices Declining new home prices may result in diminished new home demand as people

postpone new home purchase until such time as they are comfortable that stable price levels have been reached

The converse point is also true and equally important When new home demand exceeds new home supply new

home prices may generally be expected to increase and rising new home prices particularly at or near the bottom

of the housing cycle may result in increased new home demand as people become confident in home prices and

accelerate their timing of new home purchase Hence we intend to concentrate our investments in housing

markets with affordable and stable home prices balanced supply lower incidences of foreclosures and strong

demand fundamentals These demand fundamentals are generally job growth the relative strength of the economy

and consumer confidence household formations and population growth both immigration and in-migration

The U.S Census Bureau forecasts that California Florida and Texas will account for nearly one-half of

the total U.S population growth between 2000 and 2030 and that the total population of Arizona and Nevada will

double during that period The U.S Census Bureau projects that between 2000 and 2030 the total populations of

Arizona and Nevada will grow from approximately million to more than 10.7 million and from approximately

million to nearly 4.3 million respectively Floridas population will grow nearly 80% between 2000 and 2030

from nearly 16 million to nearly 28.7 million Texas population will increase 60% between 2000 and 2030 from

nearly 21 million to approximately 33 million and California populaton will grow 37% between 2000 and

2030 from approximately 34 million to nearly 46 million

In 2009 the Harvard Joint Center for Housing Studies forecasted that an average of between

approximately 1.25 million and 1.48 million new households will be formed per year over the next ten years

Likewise The Homeownership Alliance joint project
undertaken by the chief economists of Fannie Mae

Freddie Mac the Independent Community Bankers of America the National Association of Home Bui1ders and

the National Association of Realtors has projected that 1.3 million new households will be formed per year over

the next decade and approximately 1.8 million housing units per year should be started to meet such new demand

including approximately 1.3 million new single-family homes per year based on the estimation of the

Homeownership Alliance that 72% of all housing units built will be single-family residences The U.S Census

Bureau estimates that approximately 1.14 million new households were formed in 2011

While housing woes have beleaguered the national economy Texas housing markets hayc held up as

some of the healthiest in the country Furthermore Texas is the largest homebuilding market in the country based

on the U.S Census Bureaus measurements of housing permits and starts We have concentrated our initial
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investment portfolio in Texas as we believe Texas markets though weakened from their highs in 2007 have

remained fairly healthy due to strong demographics economies and job growth balanced housing inventories

stable home prices and high housing affordability ratios Texas did not experience the dramatic price appreciation

and subsequent depreciation that states such as California Florida Arizona and Nevada experienced The

following graph created with data from the fourth quarter 2011 FHFA Purchase Price Only Index illustrates the

rises and declines in home prices nationally as well as in California Florida Arizona and Nevada over the past

few years Price declines have begun to moderate in those states in recent quarters though Further the graph

illustrates how Texas has maintained relative home price stability throughout the downturn The Standard

Purchase-Only Home Price Index indicates that Texas had home price appreciation of 1.49% between the

fourth quarter of 2010 and the fourth quarter of 2011 Texas home prices continue to demonstrate more stability

than the national average of -2.43% Further the index also reports that over the past five years Texas home

prices have appreciated 3.46% compared to national depreciation of -19.16% over the same time period

FHFAs Purchase Price Only Index tracks average house price changes in repeat sales on the same single-

family properties The Purchase Price Only Index is based on more than million repeat sales transactions and is

based on data obtained from Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac for mortgages originated over the past 37 years FHFA

analyzes the combined mortgage records of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac which form the nations largest

database of conventional conforming mortgage transactions The conforming loan limit for mortgages purchased

since the beginning of 2006 has been $417000 Loan limits for mortgages originated in the latter half of 2007

through December 31 2008 were raised to as much as $729750 in high-cost areas in the contiguous United

States Legislation generally extended those limits for 2009-originated mortgages An appropriations act PL1 11-

88 further extended those limits for 2010 originations in places where the limits were higher than those that

would have been calculated under pre-existing rules

Median new home prices in the four major Texas markets have begun to rise According to numbers

publicly released by Metrostudy leading provider of primary and secondary market information the median

new home prices for the fourth quarter of 2011 in the metropolitan areas of Austin Houston Dallas-Fort Worth

and San Antonio are $220488 $218045 $227560 and $193752 respectively

Using the Department of Housing and Urban Developments estimated 2011 median family income for

the respective metropolitan areas of Austin Houston Dallas and San Antonio the median income earner in those

10 Year Home Price Appreciation
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areas has 1.54 times 1.37 times 1.37 times and 1.40 times the income required to qualify for mortgage to

purchase the median priced new home in the respective metropolitan area These numbers illustrate the

affordability of Texas homes as each of these markets has higher affordability than the national average Our

measurement of housing affordability as referenced above is determined as the ratio of median family income to

the income required to qualify for 90 percent 30-year fixed-rate mortgage to purchase the median-priced new

home based on the average interest rate over the fourth quarter of 2011 and assuming an annual mortgage

insurance premium of 70 basis points for private mortgage insurance plus cost that includes estimated property

taxes and insurance for the home Using the Department of Housing and Urban Developments 2012 income data

to project an estimated median income for the United States of $65000 and the December 2011 national median

sales prices of new homes sold of $216500 we conclude that the national median income earner has 1.34 times

the income required to qualify for mortgage loan to purchase the median-priced new home in the United States

This estimation reflects the increase in home affordability in housing markets outside of Texas over the past 60

months as new home prices in housing markets outside of Texas generally have fallen Recently however such

price declines have begun to stabilize We believe that such price stabilization indicates that new home

affordability has been restored to the national housing market

Since the national recessions official end Texas employment markets have experienced strong job

growth According to the United States Department of Labor Texas added approximately 204500 jobs in the 12

months ended December 2011 which was the second largest year-over-year increase of any state in the country

In December 2011 Texas employment levels exceeded pre-recession levels Furthermore Texas added an even

greater amount of jobs in the private sector 261200 over the past 12 months which was the largest private

sector job increase of any state over the past 12 months and is growth rate of 3.0% Since the national

recessions end in June 2009 Texas has added 357400 net new jobs which is approximately 30.3% of all net

jobs added nationwide over that 30 month period Further Texas has added approximately 1.2 million new jobs

over the past 10 years approximately 1018700 in the private sector comparing well to national employment

growth that added approximately 1.4 million total jobs over that ten-year period and just 831000 private sector

jobs in those ten years From December 2010 to December 2011 Austin added 16300 jobs year-over-year

Dallas-Fort Worth added 45200 jobs over that same time period which was the fourth greatest job gain of any

city in the country over the past 12 months just behind Houston which enjoyed the greatest job gain of any city

in the country in that time Houston added 75000 jobs over that period and San Antonio added 2800 jobs in that

time

Texas unemployment rate fell year-over-year to 7.4% in December 2011 from 8.2% in December 2010

The decrease in the state unemployment rate occurred in spite of significant growth in Texas labor force Texas

has added approximately 149916 workers to its labor force over the past 12 months which stands at an all-time

high The growth in Texas labor force stands in contrast with the national labor force which has fallen by

approximately 988000 workers as of December 2011 from its peak in October 2008 The national

unemployment rate fell year-over-year from December 2010 9.4% to December 2011 8.5% In addition all

four major Texas labor markets have unemployment rates below the national unemployment rate

We believe that Texas cities will continue to be among the first in the country to recover based on

employment figures consumer confidence gross metropolitan product and new home demand According to the

Texas Workforce Commission Texas tends to enter into recessions after the national economy has entered

recession and usually leads among states in the economic recovery The National Bureau of Economic Research

has concluded that the U.S economy entered into recession in December 2007 ending an economic expansion

that began in November 2001 We believe based on transitions in the Texas Leading Index as prepared by the

Federal Reserve Bank ofDallas that Texas entered into recession in late Fall 2008 trailing the national recession

by nearly year and emerged from the recession in the late spring.of 2009 We believe the Texas economy is now

leading the national economic recovery The Texas Leading Index which is produced monthly by the Federal

Reserve Bank of Dallas and combines eight measures that tend to anticipate changes in the Texas business cycle

by approximately three to nine months has risen significantly since reaching low of 100.5 in March 2009 and

as of December 2011 was 120.3 which is higher than at any period during 2009 or 2010

Further we believe Texas consumers are beginning to return to their normal consumption habits The

aggregate value of state sales tax receipts in Texas increased 9.4% year-over-year in December 2011 from

December 2010 the 21St consecutive month in which Texas has expenenced year-over-year improvement in

sales tax receipts
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The U.S Census Bureau reported in its 2011 Estimate of Population Change for the period from April

2010 to July 2011 that Texas led the country in population growth during that period The estimate concluded

that Texas population grew by 421215 people or 2% number that was 1.19 times greater than the next closest

state in terms of raw population growth California and nearly twice as great as the second closest state in terms

of raw population growth North Carolina Over the last decade July 2000 to July 2010 Texas grew by

nearly 4.3 million residents averaging nearly 427000 new residents per year This population growth was 1.17

times greater in terms of raw population growth than the next closest state California and 2.63 times greater than

the second closest state Florida The U.S Census Bureau also reported that among the 15 counties that added the

largest number of residents between July 2008 and July 2009 six were in Texas Harris Houston Tarrant

Fort Worth Bexar San Antonio Collin North Dallas Dallas Dallas and Travis Austin In March 2010 the

U.S Census Bureau reported that Texas four major metro areas Austin Houston San Antonio and Dallas-Fort

Worth were among the top 20 in the nation for population growth from 2008 to 2009 Dallas-Fort Worth-

Arlington led the nation in numerical population growth with combined estimated population increase of

146530 Houston-Sugarland-Baytown was secOnd in the nation with population increase of 140784 from July

2008 to July 2009 Austin-Round Rock had an estimated population growth of 50975 and San Antonio had

an estimated population growth of 41437 over the same period The percentage increase in population for each of

these major Texas cities ranged from 2% to 3.1%

The national foreclosure tracking service RealtyTrac estimates that the Texas foreclosure rate continues

to be significantly healthier than the national average We do not expect the four major Texas housing markets to

be materially adversely affected by foreclosures and anticipate that home foreclosures will continue to be mostly

concentrated in the bubble market states of California Florida Arizona and Nevada The mortgage analytic

company CoreLogic reports that through the fourth quarter of 2011 approximately 44.3% of all homes with

negative equity were located in one of those four states compared to approximately just 3.1% of all the negative

equity homes in the country that were located in the state of Texas Homebuilding and residential construction

employment will likely remain generally weak in 2012 but we believe that Texas will continue to outperform the

national standards We believe that Texas housing sector is healthier the cost of living and doing business is

lower and its economy is more dynamic and diverse than the national average

In contrast to the conditions of many homebuilding markets in the country new home sales are greater

than new home starts in Texas markets indicating that homebuilders in Texas continue to focus on preserving

balance between new home demand and new home supply We believe that homebuilders and developers in

Texas have remained disciplined on new home construction and project development New home starts are

outpaced by new home sales in all four major Texas markets where such data is available Austin Dallas-Fort

Worth Houston and San Antonio Inventories of finished new homes and total new housing finished vacant

under construction and model homes remain at generally healthy and balanced levels in all of these major Texas

markets Each major Texas market experienced rise in the number of months of finished lot inventories as

homebuilders began reducing the number of new home starts in 2008 causing each major Texas market to reach

elevated levels However the number of finished lots available in each market has fallen significantly even

though the months supply remains elevated Furthermore finished lot shortages are beginning to emerge in many
desirable submarkets in the major Texas markets This is trend that we expect to continue as the lack of

commercial financing for development has constrained finished lot development over the past four years even as

new home demand and sales continue We believe that such demand and sales will increase and these finished lot

shortages will become more pronounced in coming quarters As of December 2011 Houston has an estimated

inventory of finished lots of approximately 33.0 months Austin has an estimated inventory of finished lots of

approximately 36.0 months San Antonio has an estimated inventory of finished lots of approximately 33.4

months and Dallas-Fort Worth has an estimated inventory of finished lots of approximately 50.3 months 24-28

month supply is considered equilibrium for finished lot supplies

As stated previously the elevation in months supply of finished lot inventory in Texas markets owes

itself principally to the decrease in the pace of annual starts rather than an increase in the raw number of

developed lots and as the homebuilders increase their pace of home starts we expect to see the months supply of

lot inventory continue to improve Indeed the raw number of finished lots available in each Texas market has

been significantly reduced from their peaks Since peaking in the first quarter of 2008 Houstons finished lot

supply is down 30.6% from 73047 to 50674 in the fourth quarter of 2011 San Antonios finished lot inventory

has fallen 1.4% to 19152 since peaking at 27937 in the second quarter of 2008 Austins finished lot inventory
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peaked in the first quarter of 2009 at 27176 and is down 28.2% to 19517 The finished lot inventory for Dallas-

Fort Worth peaked in the first quarter of 2008 at 91787 lots and has fallen 35.3% to 59408 lots Such inventory

reduction continued in the fourth quarter of 2011 in all four of these markets as the number of finished lots

dropped by more than 500 in Austin more than 1500 in Dallas-Fort Worth more than 2000 in Houston and

nearly 150 in San Antonio Annual starts in each of the Austin San Antonio Houston and Dallas-Fort Worth

markets are outpacing lot deliveries and we expect to see increased finished lot sales through 2011 as

homebuilders replenish their inventory

Although Texas markets continue to be some of the strongest homebuilding markets in the country the

pace of homebuilding in Texas has slowed over the past four years as result of the national economic downturn

and reduced availability of construction financing According to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation banks

in the Dallas region1 reduced their construction and development loans by 5.6% from the second quarter of 2011

to the third quarter of 2011 the 14th straight quarterly decline in the regions cOnstruction and development

outstanding loan portfolio While the decline in housing starts has caused the month supply of vacant lot

inventory to become elevated from its previously balanced position it has also preserved balance in housing

inventory Annual new home sales in Austin outpace starts 6643 versus 6500 with annual new home sales

declining year-over-year by approximately 0% Finished housing inventory stands at an elevated level of

months while total new housing inventory finished vacant under construction and model homes fell to

slightly elevated supply of 7.3 months The generally accepted equilibrium levels for finished housing inventory

and total new housing inventory are 2.0-to-2.5 month supply and 6.0-to-6.5 month supply respectively San

Antonio is healthy homebuilding market Annual new home sales in San Antonio run ahead of starts 7025

versus 6880 with annual new home sales declining year-over-year by approximately 11.0% Finished housing

inventory rose to healthy 2.3 month supply Total new housing inventory fell to healthy 6.1 month supply

Houston too is healthy homebuilding market Annual new home sales there outpace starts 18607 versus

18416 with annual new home sales declining year-over-year by approximately 9.5% Finished housing inventory

remained generally healthy at 2.8 month supply while total new housing inventory fell to healthy 6.4 month

supply respectively Dallas-Fort Worth is relatively healthy homebuilding market as well Annual new home

sales in Dallas-Fort Worth outpace starts 14623 versus 14183 with annual new home sales declining year-over-

year by approximately 13.0% Finished housing inventory stands at generally healthy 2.7 month supply while

total new housing inventory fell to slightly elevated 6.8 month supply All numbers are as released by

Metrostudy leading provider of primary and secondary market information

The Real Estate Center at Texas AM University has reported that existing housing inventory levels are

healthy and in most instances supply is constrained Through December 2011 the number of months of home

inventory for sale in Austin Houston Dallas Fort Worth Lubbock and San Antonio was 4.2 months 5.9

months 4.7 months 5.2 months 6.6 months and 6.6 months respectively Like new home inventory 6-month

supply of inventory is considered balanced market with more than months of inventory generally being

considered buyers market and less than months of inventory generally being considered sellers market

Through December 2011 the number of existing homes sold to date in Austin was 21167 up 6.5% year-over-

year San Antonio was 18403 down 0.25% year-over-year Houston was 58812 up 3.5% year-over-year

Dallas was 42507 up 0.3% year-over-year Fort .Worth was 8086 down 1.8% year-over-year and

Lubbock was 2773 down 2.5% year-over-year These figures and year-over-year comparisons are likely

distorted by the presence and expiration of the federal homebuyer tax credit in June 2010 that likely pulled

demand forward in the first six months of 2010 at the expense of demand in subsequent quarters

In managing and understanding the markets and submarkets in which we make loans we monitor the

fundamentals of supply and demand We monitor the economic fundamentals in each of the markets in which we

make loans by analyzing demographics household formation population growth job growth migration

immigration and housing affordability We also monitor movements in home prices and the presence of market

disruption activity such as investor or speculator activity that can create false demand and an oversupply of

homes in market Further we study new home starts new home closings finished home inventories finished lot

FDIC Dallas Region is composed of Arkansas Colorado Louisiana Mississippi New Mexico

Oklahoma Tennessee and Texas
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inventories existing home sales existing home prices foreclosures absorption prices with respect to new and

existing home sales finished lots and land and the presence of sales incentives discounts or both in market

We face risk of loss resulting from adverse changes in interest rates Changes in interest rates may

impact both demand for our real estate finance products and the rate of interest on the loans we make In some

instances the loans we make will be junior in the right of repayment to senior lenders who will provide loans

representing 60% to 75% of total project costs As senior lender interest rates available to our borrowers increase

demand for our mortgage loans may decrease and vice versa

Developers and homebuilders to whom we make loans and with whom we enter into subordinate debt

positions use the proceeds of our loans and investments to develop raw real estate into residential home lots and

construct homes The developers obtain the money to repay our development loans by reselling the residential

home lots to homebuilders or individuals who build single-family residences on the lots or by obtaining

replacement financing from other lenders Homebuilders obtain the money to repay our loans by selling the

homes they construct or by obtaining replacement financing from other lenders If interest rates increase the

demand for single-family residences may decrease Also if mortgage financing underwriting criteria become

stricter demand for single-family residences may decrease In such an interest rate andlor mortgage financing

climate developers and builders may be unable to generate sufficient income from the resale of single-family

residential lots and homes to repay loans from us and developers and builders costs of funds obtained from

lenders in addition to us may increase as well Accordingly increases in single-family mortgage interest rates or

decreases in the availability of mortgage financing could increase the number of defaults on loans made by us

We are not aware of any material trends or uncertainties favorable or unfavorable other than national

economic conditions affecting real estate and interest rates generally that we reasonably anticipate to have

material impact on either the income to be derived from our investments in mortgage loans or entities that make

mortgage loans other than those referred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-K The disruption of mortgage

markets in combination with significant amount of negative national
press discussing constriction in mortgage

markets and the poor condition of the national housing industry including declining home prices have made

potential new home purchasers and real estate lenders very cautious The economic downturn the failure of

highly respected financial institutions significant volatility in equity markets around the world unprecedented

administrative and legislative actions in the United States and actions taken by central banks around the globe to

stabilize the economy have further caused many prospective home purchasers to postpone their purchases In

summary we believe there is general lack of urgency to purchase homes in these times of economic uncertainty

We believe that this has further slOwed the sales of new homes and finished lots developed in certain markets

however we do not anticipate the prices of those lots changing materially We also expect that the decrease in the

availability of replacement financing may increase the number of defaults on real estate loans made by us or

extend the time period anticipated for the repayment of our loans Our future results could be negatively impacted

by prolonged weakness in the economy high levels of unemployment significant increase in mortgage interest

rates or further tightening of mortgage lending standards

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

From time to time we enter into guarantees of debtors borrowings and provide credit enhancements for

the benefit of senior lenders in connection with our debtors and investments in partnerships collectively referred

to as guarantees and account for such guarantees in accordance with FASB ASC 460-10 Guarantees

Guarantees generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of fee

by the debtor guarantee involves to varying degrees elements of credit risk in excess of the amount

recognized in the consolidated balance sheets Our exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the

other party to the instrument is represented by the contractual notional amount of the guarantee

In connection with the funding of some of our organization costs on June 26 2009 UMTH LD entered

into $6.3 million line of credit the UMTH LD CTB LOC from Community Trust Bank of Texas CTB
In accordance with Loan Modification Agreement entered into on December 26 2011 the UMTH LD CTB
LOC matures on February 26 2012 As condition to such line of credit we provided limited guaranty to CTB
for LTMTH LDs obligations to the bank under the line of credit in an amount equal to the amount of our

organization costs funded by UMTH LD UMTH LD has receivable from our Advisor for such costs and is

repaid by our Advisor as our Advisor receives the OO Reimbursement discussed in Note to our

accompanying consolidated financial statements UMTH LD has assigned this receivable to the bank as security
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for the UMTH LD CTB LOC However as of December 31 2011 our limited guaranty was reduced to the

extent that our Advisor reimbursed UMTH LD for any of our organization costs it funded provided that no event

of default has occurred and we have informed the bank in writing of the reimbursed costs As of December 31

2011 our outstanding repayment guaranty was approximately $3.1 million Effective February 26 2012 we

replaced our limited guaranty with full guaranty of all obligations under the note See Subsequent Events

below for further discussion As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the outstanding balance on the line of credit

was $4.6 million and $5.8 million respectively

Effective December 30 2011 we entered into Guaranty of Payment and Guaranty of Completion

collectively the Stoneleigh Guaranty for the benefit of Babson Mezzanine Realty Investors II LP Babson
as agent for group of lenders pursuant to which we guaranteed all amounts due associated with $25 million

construction loan agreement the Stoneleigh Construction Loan entered into between Maple Wolf Stoneleigh

LLC an affiliated Delaware limited liability company Stoneleigh and Babson Pursuant to the Stoneleigh

Construction Loan Babson will provide Stoneleigh with up to approximately $25 million to finance the

construction associated with condominium project located in Dallas Texas UIDF LOF owns 75% interest in

Stoneleigh Our asset manager UMTH LD also serves as the asset manager of UDF LOF The general partner

of our Advisor also serves as the general partner of UMTH LD In consideration of us entering into the Stoneleigh

Guaranty we entered into letter agreement with Stoneleigh which provides for Stoneleigh to pay us monthly

credit enhancement fee equal to one-twelfth of 1% of the outstanding principal balance on the Stoneleigh

Construction Loan at the end of each month As of December 31 2011 approximately $1000 was outstanding

under the Stoneleigh Construction Loan

As of December 31 2011 including the guarantees described above we had five outstanding repayment

guarantees with total credit risk to us of approximately $49 million of which approximately $8 million had

been borrowed against by the debtor We had no outstanding credit enhancements to third parties as of December

31 2010

Contractual Obligations

As of December 31 2011 we had entered into participation agreements with related parties of which

were repaid in full with aggregate maximum loan amounts of approximately $30.3 million with an unfunded

balance of approximately $1.6 million and related party note agreements of which was repaid in full with

aggregate maximum loan amounts totaling approximately $30.1 million with an unfunded balance of $10.7

million Additionally we had entered into 34 note agreements with third parties of which were repaid in full

with aggregate maximum loan amounts of approximately $182 million of which $25 million has yet to be

funded For the year ended December 31 2011 we originated 20 loans purchased loan and entered into

participation agreements

In addition we have entered into various credit facilities as discussed in Notes and to the

accompanying consolidated financial statements The following table reflects approximate amounts due

associated with these credit facilities based on their maturity dates as of December 31 2011
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Payments due by period

Less than More than

year 1-3 years 3-5 years years Total

Senior credit facility 3000000 3000000

Lines of credit 5000000 5700000 10700000

Notes payable 14400000 14400000

Total 19400000 8700000 28100000

We have no other outstanding debt or contingent payment obligations other than the certain loan

guarantees discussed above in Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements or letters of credit that we may make to or for

the benefit of third-party lenders

Subsequent Events

Effective February 2012 we entered into the Second Extension Agreement with Raley Holdings

resulting in an extension of the maturity date associated with our Credit Facility to February 2013

Effective February 26 2012 UMTH LD entered into second Loan Modification Agreement with CTB
which resulted in an extension of the maturity date on the UMTH LD CTB LOC to February 26 2015 As

condition of this amendment we agreed to replace our limited guaranty with full guaranty of all obligations

under the UMTH LD CTB LOC As of February 26 2012 the UMTH LD CTB LOC had balance of

approximately $4.6 million

On March 2012 our board of trustees authorized special distribution to our shareholders of record as

of the close of business on April 30 2012 This special distribution will be paid pro rata over all common shares

of beneficial interest outstanding as of April 30 2012 in an amount equal to $0.05 per common share of beneficial

interest This special distribution will be paid in cash and DRIP shares in May 2012

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk is the exposure to loss resulting from adverse changes in market prices interest rates foreign

currency exchange rates commodity prices and equity prices significant market risk to which we are exposed

is interest rate risk which is sensitive to many factors including governmental monetary and tax policies

domestic and international economic and political considerations and other factors beyond our control Changes
in interest rates may impact both demand for our real estate finance products and the rate of interest on the loans

we make Another significant market risk is the market price of finished homes and lots The market price of

finished homes or lots is driven by the demand for new single-family homes and the supply of unsold homes and

finished lots in market The change in one or both of these factors can have material impact on the cash

realized by our borrowers and resulting collectability of our loans and interest

Demand for our secured loans and the amount of interest we collect with respect to such loans depends on

the ability of borrowers of real estate construction and development loans to sell single-family lots to

homebuilders and the ability of homebuilders to sell homes to homebuyers

The single-family lot and residential homebuilding market is highly sensitive to changes in interest rate

levels As interest rates available to borrowers increase demand for secured loans decreases and vice versa

Housing demand is also adversely affected by increases in housing prices and unemployment and by decreases in

the availability of mortgage financing In addition from time to time there are various proposals for changes in

the federal income tax laws some of which would remove or limit the deduction for home mortgage interest If

effective mortgage interest rates increase and/or the ability or willingness of prospective buyers to purchase new

homes is adversely affected the demand for new homes may also be negatively affected As consequence
demand for and the performance of our real estate finance products may also be adversely impacted

We seek to mitigate our single-family lot and residential homebuilding market risk by closely monitoring

economic proj ect market and homebuilding fundamentals We review variety of data and forecast sources

including public reports of homebuilders mortgage originators and real estate finance companies financial

statements of developers project appraisals proprietary reports on primary and secondary housing market data
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including land finished lot and new home inventory and prices and concessions if any and information provided

by government agencies the Federal Reserve Bank the National Association of Home Builders the National

Association of Realtors public and private universities corporate debt rating agencies and institutional

investment banks regarding the homebuilding industry and the prices of and supply and demand for single-family

residential homes

In addition we further seek to mitigate our single-family lot and residential homebuilding market risk by

having our asset manager assign an individual asset manager to each secured note or equity investment This

individual asset manager is responsible for monitoring the progress and performance of the builder or developer

and the project as well as assessing the status of the marketplace and value of our collateral securing repayment of

our secured loan or equity investment

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this Item is hereby incorporated by reference to our consolidated financial

statements beginning on page F-i of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation ofDisclosure Controls and Procedure

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to

be disclosed in our reports
under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the

time periods specified in the rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to us

including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions

regarding required disclosUre

As required by Rule 3a- 15b and Rule 5d- 15b under the Exchange Act our management including

our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer evaluated as of December 31 2011 the effectiveness of

our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rule 3a- 15e and Rule Sd-15e Based on

that evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls

and procedures were effective as of December 31 2011 for the purpose of ensuring that information required to

be disclosed by us in this report is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified

by the rules and forms of the Exchange Act and is accumulated and communicated to our management including

our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding

required disclosures

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our

financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f Under the

supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting

based on the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission

Based on our evaluation under the Internal Control-Integrated Framework our management concluded

that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2011

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred duritig the quarter

ended December 31 2011 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal

control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None
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Part III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2012

annual meeting of shareholders which is expected to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or

before April 30 2012 and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2012

annual meeting of shareholders which is expected to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or

before April 30 2012 and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required by this Item will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2012

annual meeting of shareholders which is expected to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or

before April 30 2012 and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this Item will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2012

annual meeting of shareholders which is expected to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or

before April 30 2012 and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2012

annual meeting of shareholders which is expected to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or

before April 30 2012 and is incorporated herein by reference

75



Part IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

List of Documents Filed

Financial Statements

The list of the consolidated financial statements filed as part of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K is set forth on page F-i herein

Financial Statement Schedules

None

Exhibits

The list of exhibits filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is submitted

in the Exhibit Index following the consolidated financial statements in response to

Item 601 of Regulation S-K

Exhibits

The exhibits filed in response to Item 601 of Regulation S-K are listed in the Exhibit

Index attached hereto

Financial Statement Schedules

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

United Development Funding IV

Dated March 30 2012 By Is Hollis Greenlaw

Hollis Greenlaw

Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this
report has been signed below

by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature

Principal Executive Officer

Is Hollis Greenlaw

Hollis Greenlaw

Principal Financial Officer

Is Cara Obert

Cara Obert

Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ David Hanson

David Hanson

Is/ Scot OBrien
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Is Phillip Marshall

Phillip Marshall

Is Heath Malone

Heath Malone

Is/ Steven Finkle

Steven Finkle

Chief Executive Officer and
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Chief Operating Officer and Chief
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Title Date
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March 30 2012
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Trustee
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLICACCOIJNTING FIRM

To the Board of Trustees of

United Development Funding IV

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of United Development Funding IV the

Trust as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in

shareholders equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 These

consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Trusts management Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States ThOse standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement The Trust is

not required to have nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting

An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Trusts internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe

that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects the consolidated financial position of United Development Funding IV as of December 31 2011
2010 and 2009 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America

Is Whitley Penn LLP

Dallas Texas

March 30 2012
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UNITED DEVELOPMENT FUNDING IV

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

Assets

2011 2010

Cash and cash equivalents

Restticted cash

Accrued interest receivable

cerued recthvable related parties

Loan participation interest related parties net

Notes receivable net

Notes receivable related parties net

Deferred offering costs

Other assets

Tta1 assets

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Liabilities

Accrued liabilities

Accrued liabilities related parties

Distributions payable

Senior credit facility

Lines of credit

Notes payable

Total liabilities

6031956 2543501

6897

1503367

553515

6190133

53$0Q754

5627299

7372116

1290132

7957784

2516229

1681683

23036428

109070679

14308463

833957

1276338

166455733

237391

8103153

451510

1929669

4087797

18167025

32976545

314556

9064509

623192

3013180

073 5608

14399059

38150104

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders equity

Shares of beneficial interest $0.01 par value 400000000 shares

authorized 7405564 shares issued and 7377049 shares

outstanding at December 31 2011 and 2681454 shares issued

and 2678954 shares outstanding at December 31 2010

Additional paid-in-capital

Accumulated deficit _________________

Shareholders equity before treasury stock

Less Treasury stock 28515 shares at December 31 2011 and 2500

shares at December 31 2010 at cost
___________________

Total shareholders equity
__________________

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

74055 26814

129307923 46750375

506043 132950

128875935 46644239

570306 50000

128305629 46594239

166455733 79570784
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UNITED DEVELOPMENT FUNDING IV

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Revenues

Interest income 9450408 2636395 30

Interest income related parties 3409831 1417320 4217

Commitment fee income 397122 424643

Commitment fee income related parties 40689
______________ _____________

Total revenues 13298050 4478358 4247

Expenses

Interest expense 1731058 976141

Advisory fee related party 1936690 629240 2234

Provision for lan tosses 512440 162092

General and administrative 501278 139634 23725

General and administrative related parties 736896 345314

Total
expenses 5418362 2252421 25959

Net income loss 7879688 2225937 21712

Net income loss per weighted average share outstanding 1.66 1.67 1.63

Weighted average shares outstanding 4734259 1332149 13285

Distributions per weighted average share outstanding 1.74 1.75 0.30

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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UNITED DEVELOPMENT FUNDING IV

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Years Ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Retained

Shares of Additional Earnings

Beneficial Interest Paid-in Treasury Treasury Accumulated

Shares Amount Capital Shares Stock Deficit Total

Balance at December31 2009 119729 1197 2.108104 25329 2.083.972

Proceeds from shares issued 2526400 25264 51502729 50527993

Purchase of treasury stock 2.500 50000 50.000

Net income 2225937 2.225.937

Cash distributions declared l451510 451510

Distributions L882.048l 1882.048

Shareholders distribution reinvestment 35.325 353 706153 706.506

Shares issuance costs i6566.61 6566611

Balance at December 31 2010 2681454 26814 46750375 2500 51000 132950 46594239

Proceeds from shares issued 4573180 45.732 91417867 9L463.519

Purchase of treasury stock 7944 26.0 15 520306 12.362

Net income 7879.688 7879688

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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UNITED DEVELOPMENT FUNDING IV

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Operating Activities

Net income loss 7879688 2225937 21712
Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by used in operating

activities

Provision for loan losses 512440 162092

Amortization expense 407665 260910

Changes in assets and liabilities

Accrued interest receivable 1012862 1516145

Accrued receivable related parties 1128168 565336 21280

Other assets 393871 1374140 176902

Accrued liabilities 77165 225517 11875

Net cash provided by used in operating activities 6342057 581165 208019

Investing Activities

Investments in loan participation interests related parties 30321290 19289197 1380757

Principal receipts from loan participation interests related parties 13474995 11283518

Investments in notes receivable 83653423 60348498

Principal receipts
from notes receivable 27871058 9628434

Investments in notes receivablerelated parties 16966666 7395577

Principal receipts from notes receivable related parties 8285502 76827

Net cash used in investing activities 81309824 64353042 1380757

Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of shares of beneficial interest 91463599 50527993 2194575

Purchase of treasury shares 512362 50000

Proceeds from senior credit facility 1276792 2408278

Payments on senior credit facility 193281 478609

Net borrowings on lines of credit 6647811 4087797

Proceeds from notes payable 2696514 18287025

Payments on notes payable 646448o 120000

Distributions 8081099 1886045

Shareholders distribution reinvestment 3018599 706506

Escrow payable 692300 692300

Restricted cash 689967 16457 525400

Payments of offering costs 11885353 6566611 285274

Deferred offering costs 1161841 1688010 4228 18

Accrued offering costs related parties 961356 2586540 4237575

Net cash provided by financing activities 78456222 66957997 2085458

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3488455 2023190 496682

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2543501 520311 23629

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 6031956 2543501 520311

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for interest 1752680 834823

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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UNITED DEVELOPMENT FUNDING IV

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Business

United Development Funding IV which may be referred to as the Trust we our or UDF IV
was organized on May 28 2008 Inception as Maryland real estate investment trust The Trust is the sole

general partner of and owns 99.999% partnership interest in United Development Funding IV Operating

Partnership L.P UDF IV OP Delaware limited partnership UMTH Land Development L.P iMTH
LD Delaware limited partnership and the affiliated asset manager of the Trust is the sole limited partner

and owner of 0.00 1% minority interest of the partnership interests in UDF IV OP At December 31 2011

and December 31 2010 UDF IV OP had no assets liabilities or equity The Trust owns 100% limited

partnership interest in UDF IV Home Finance LP UDF IV HF UDF IV Finance LP UDF IV Fl
UDF IV Finance II LP UDF IV FIIUDF IV Acquisitions LP UDF IV AC and UDF IV Finance III

LP UDF IV Fill all Delaware limited partnerships The Trust is the sole member of UDF IV HF

Manager LLC UDF IV HFM Delaware limited liability company the general partner of UDF IV HF
ii UDF IV Finance Manager LLC UDF IV FIM Delaware limited liability company the general

partner of UDF IV Fl iii UDF IV Finance II Manager LLC UDF IV FIlM Delaware limited liability

company the general partner of UDF IV Fli iv UDF IV Acquisitions Manager LLC UDF IV ACM
Delaware limited liability company the general partner of UDF IV AC and UDF IV Finance III Manager

LLC UDF IV FIIIM Delaware limited liability company the general partner of UDF IV Fill

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 UDF IV HFM UDF IV FIM UDF IV FIlM UDF IV ACM and

UDF IV FIIIM had no assets liabilities or equity

The Trust uses substantially all of the net proceeds from the public offering of common shares of

beneficial interest in the Trust to originate purchase participate in and hold for investment secured loans made

directly by the Trust or indirectly through its affiliates to persons and entities for the acquisition and

development of parcels of real property as single-family residential lots and the construction of model and

new single-family homes including development of mixed-use master planned residential communities The

Trust also makes direct investments in land for development into single$amily lots new and model homes and

portfolios of finished lots and homes provides credit enhancements to real estate developers home builders

land bankers and other real estate investors and purchases participations in or finances for other real estate

investors the purchase of securitized real estate loan pools and discounted cash flows secured by state county

municipal or other similar assessments levied on real property The Trust also may enter into joint ventures

with unaffiliated real estate developers home builders land bankers and other real estate investors or with

other United Development Funding-sponsored programs to originate or acquire as the case may be the same

kind of secured loans or real estate investments the Trust may originate or acquire directly

UMTH General Services UMTH GS or Advisor Delaware limited partnership is the

Trusts advisor and is responsibic for managing the Trusts affairs on day-to-day basis UMTH GS has

engaged UMTH LD as the Trusts asset manager The asset manager oversees the investing and financing

activities of the affiliated programs managed and advised by the Advisor and UMTH LD as well as provides

the Trusts board of trustees recommendations regarding investments and finance transactions management

policies and guidelines and reviews investment transaction structure and terms investment underwriting

investment collateral investment performance investment risk management and the Trusts capital structure

at both the entity and asset level

The Trust has no employees and does not maintain any physical properties The Trusts operations are

conducted at the corporate offices of the Trusts AdvisOr at 1301 Municipal Way Grapevine Texas 76051

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

summary of our significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation
of the

accompanying consolidated financial statements follows
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Basis of Presentation

These consolidated audited financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America GAAP
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Trust and certain wholly-owned

subsidiaries and all significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management

to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements

and accompanying notes Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased to

be cash equivalents At December 31 2011 and 2010 there were no such amounts included in cash and cash

equivalents

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes monies held in escrow with respect to subscriptions for shares of beneficial

interest deposits associated with certain guarantees and liquid investments with maturities greater than three

months

Loan Participation Interest Related Parties

Loan participation interest related parties represents the purchase of financial interest in certain

interim construction loan and finished lot loan facilities originated by our affiliates We participate in these

loans by funding the lending obligations of our affiliates under these credit facilities up to maximum amount

for each participation Such participations entitle us to receive payments of principal and interest from the

borrower up to the amounts funded by us The participation interests are typically collateralized by promissory

notes first lien deeds of trust on the homes financed under the construction loans or lots financed under the lot

loan facilities and other loan documents None of such loans are insured or guaranteed by federally owned

or guaranteed mortgage agency The participations have terms ranging from to 27 months and bear interest

at rates ranging from 12% to 15% The participation interests may be paid off prior to maturity however we
intend to hold all participation interests for the life of the loans

Notes Receivable and Notes Receivable Related Parties

Notes receivable and notes receivable related parties are recorded at the lower of cost or net

realizable value The notes are collateralized by first or second lien deed of trust on the underlying real estate

collateral or pledge of ownership interests in the borrower as well as promissory notes assignments of

certain lot sales contracts and earnest money and other loan documents None of such notes are insured or

guaranteed by federally owned or guaranteed mortgage agency The notes have terms ranging from to 47

months and bear interest at rates ranging from 13% to 15% The notes may be paid off prior to maturity

however the Trust intends to hold all notes for the life of the notes

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is our estimate of inôurred losses in our portfolio of notes receivable

notes receivable related parties and loan participation interest related parties We periodically perform

detailed review of our portfolio of notes and other loans to determine if impairment has occurred and to assess

the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses Our review consists of evaluating economic conditions the

estimated value of the underlying collateral the guarantor adverse situations that may affect the borrowers

ability to pay or the value of the collateral and other relevant factors This review is inherently subjective as it

requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available
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In reviewing our portfolio we use cash flow estimates from the disposition of finished lots paper lots

residential lots shown on plat that has been accepted by the city or county but which is currently

undeveloped or under development and undeveloped land as well as cash flow received from the issuance of

bonds from municipal reimbursement districts These estimates are based on current market metrics

including without limitation the supply of finished lots paper lots and undeveloped land the supply of homes

and the rate and price at which land and homes are sold historic levels and trends executed contracts

appraisals and discussions with third party
market analysts and participants including hornebuilders We have

based our valuations on current and historic market trends on our analysis of market events and conditions

including activity within our portfolio as well as those of third-party services such as Metrostudy and

Residential Strategies Inc Cash flow forecasts also have been based on executed purchase contracts which

provide base prices escalation rates and absorption rates on an individual project basis For projects deemed

to have an extended time horizon for disposition we have considered third-party appraisals to provide

valuation in accordance with guidelines set forth in the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice

In addition to cash flows from the disposition of property cost analysis has been performed based on estimates

of development and senior financing expenditures provided by developers and independent professionals on

project-by-project basis These amounts have been reconciled with our best estimates to establish the net

realizable value of the portfolio

We charge additions to the allowance for loan losses to current period earnings through provision for

loan losses Amounts determined to be uncollectible are charged directly against or charged off and

decrease the allowance for loan losses while amounts recovered on previously charged off accounts increase

the allowance

Organization and Offering Expenses

Organization costs will be expensed as incurred in accordance with Statement of Position 98-5

Reporting on the Costs of Start-up Activities currently within the scope of Financial Accounting Standards

Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC720-15 Offering costs related to raising capital

from debt will be capitalized and amortized over the term of such debt Offering costs related to raising capital

from equity reduce equity and are reflected as shares issuance costs in shareholders equity Certain offering

costs are currently being paid by our Advisor As discussed in Note these costs will be reimbursed to our

Advisor by the Trust

Revenue Recognition

Interest income on loan participation interest related parties notes receivable and notes receivable

related parties is recognized over the life of the participation agreement or note agreement and recorded on the

accrual basis loan is placed on non-accrual status and income recognition is suspended at the date at which

in the opinion of management full recovery of income and principal becomes more likely than not but is no

longer probable based upon our review of economic conditions the estimated value of the underlying

collateral the guarantor adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to pay or the value of the

collateral and other relevant factors Income recognition is resumed when the loan becomes contractually

current and performance is demonstrated to be resumed Any payments received on loans classified as non-

accrual status are typically applied first to outstanding loan amounts and then to the recovery of lost interest

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 we were accruing interest on all loan participation interest related

parties notes receivable and notes receivable related parties

Commitment fee income and Commitment fee income related parties represents non-refundable fees

charged to borrowers for entering into an obligation that commits us to make or acquire loan or to satisfy

financial obligation of the borrower when certain conditions are met within specified time period When

commitment is considered an integral part of the resulting loan and we believe there is reasonable

expectation that the commitment will be called upon the commitment fee is recognized as revenue over the

life of the resulting loan As of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $498000 and $176000

respectively of unamortized commitment fees are included as an offset of notes receivable Approximately

$94000 and $19000 of unamortized commitment fees are included as an offset of notes receivable related

parties as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively When we believe it is unlikely that the commitment

will be called upon or that the fee is not an integral part of the return of specific future lending arrangement
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the commitment fee is recognized as income when it is earned based on the specific terms of the commitment

We make determination of revenue recognition on case by case basis due to the unique and varying terms

of each commitment

Acquisition and Origination Fees

We incur acquisition and origination fees payable to UMTH LD our asset manager equal to 3% of

the net amount available for investment in secured loans and other real estate assets Placement Fees
provided however that we will not incur Placement Fees with respect to any asset level indebtedness we

incur The Placement Fees that we incur will be reduced by the amount of any acquisition and origination fees

and expenses paid by borrowers or investment entities to our Advisor or affiliates of our Advisor with respect

to our investment We will not incur any Placement Fees with respect to any participation agreement we enter

into with our affiliates or any affiliates of our Advisor for which our Advisor or affiliates of our Advisor have

previously received acquisition and origination fees and expenses from such affiliate with respect to the same
secured loan or other real estate asset Placement Fees are amortized into expense on straight line basis over

years As of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $3.2 million and $1.5 million respectively of

such unamortized Placement Fees are included in notes receivable Approximately $619000 and $150000 of

unamortized Placement Fees are included in notes receivable related parties as of December 31 2011 and

2010 respectively As of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $280000 and $398000 respectively

of unamortized Placement Fees are included in loan participation interest related parties

Income Taxes

We made an election under Section 856c of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the
Internal Revenue Code to be taxed as real estate investment trust REIT beginning with the taxable

year ended December 31 2010 As REIT we generally are not subject to federal income tax on income that

we distribute to our shareholders If we later fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year we will be subject to

federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and may not be permitted to qualify for

treatment as REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years following the year in which our

qualification is denied unless we are entitled to relief under certain statutory provisions Such an event could

materially and adversely affect our net income However we intend to continue to operate so as to remain

qualified as REIT for federal income tax purposes

FASB ASC 740 prescribes comprehensive model for the financial statement recognition

measurement presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income

tax returns In accordance with FASB ASC 740 we must determine whether it is more likely than not that

tax position will be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position We believe we
have no such uncertain positions

We file income tax returns in the United States federal jurisdiction At December 31 2011 tax returns

related to fiscal
years ended December 31 2008 through December 31 2010 remain open to possible

examination by the tax authorities No tax returns are currently under examination by any tax authorities We
did not incur any penalties or interest during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In accordance with the
reporting requirements of FASB ASC 825-10 Financial Instruments-Fair

Value we calculate the fair value of our assets and liabilities which qualify as financial instruments under this

statement and include this additional information in the notes to the financial statements when the fair value is

different than the carrying value of those financial instruments The estimated fair value of restricted cash
accrued interest receivable accrued receivable related parties accounts payable and accrued liabilities

approximates the canying amounts due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments The estimated fair

value of notes receivable notes receivable related parties loan participation interest related parties senior

credit facility lines of credit and notes payable approximates the carrying amount since they bear interest at

the market rate

F-b



Imp act of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In July 2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU No 2010-20 Disclosures

about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses ASU 20 10-20

requires enhanced disclosures regarding the nature of credit risk inherent in an entitys portfolio of financing

receivables how that risk is analyzed and the changes and reasons for those changes in the allowance for

credit losses It requires an entity to provide greater level of disaggregated information about the credit

quality of its financing receivables and its allowance for credit losses ASU 2010-20 will only impact

disclosures Disclosures related to information as of the end of reporting period are effective for interim and

annual reporting periods beginning on or after December 15 2010 and appropriate disclosures have been

included within these notes to consolidated financial statements

Guarantees

From time to time we enter into guarantees of debtors borrowings and provide credit enhancements

for the benefit of senior lenders in connection with our debtors and investments collectively referred to as

guarantees and we account for such guarantees in accordance with FASB ASC 460-10 Guarantees

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts in order to conform with the current

year presentation

Registration Statement

On November 12 2009 the Trusts Registration Statement on Form S-il covering an initial public

offering the Offering of up to 25000000 common shares of beneficial interest to be offered in the primary

offering at price of $20 per share the Primary Offering was declared effective under the Securities Act of

1933 as amended The Offering also covers up to 10000000 common shares of beneficial interest to be

issued pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan the DRIP for $20 per share We reserve the right to

reallocate the common shares of beneficial interest registered in the Offering between the Primary Offering

and the DRIP The shares are being offered to investors on reasonable best efforts basis which means the

dealer manager will use its reasonable best efforts to sell the shares offered but is not required to sell any

specific
number or dollar amount of shares and does not have firmcommitment or obligation to purchase any

of the offered shares

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Our aggregate loan portfolio is comprised of loan participation interest related parties notes

receivable net and notes receivable related parties and is recorded at the lower of cost or estimated net

realizable value

December 31.2011 December 31 2010

Loan participation interest related parties 23036000 6190000

Notes receivable net 109071000 53.801.000

Notes receivable related parties 14308.000 5627000

Total 1464 5000 65.618000
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Our loans are classified as follows

Real Estate

Construction acquisition and land development

Allowance for loan losses

Unamortized commitment fees and

placement fees

Total

Date

Matured

2012

2013

2014

2015

Total

Maturity

Date

Matured

2011

2012

2013

Total

December 31 2011

143620000

675000

3470000

146415000

December31 2010

63950000

162000

1830000

65618000

As of December 31 2011 we had originated or purchased 50 loans including loans that have been

repaid in full by the respective borrower As of December 31 2010 we had originated or purchased 27 loans

including loans that had been repaid in full by the respective borrower

The following table represents the

December 31 2011

Maturity

scheduled maturity dates of the 41 loans outstanding as of

Related Party

Amount Loans of

Total

28016000 10 77%

2282000 6%

6242000 17%

36540000 13 100%

Non-related party

Amount Loans of

Total

3432000 3%

19979000 11 19%

46228000 43%

37441000 35%

107080000 28 100%

The following table represents the

December 31 2010

Total

Amount Loans of

Total

3432000 2%

47995000 21 34%

48510000 34%

37441000 26%

6242000 4%

143620000 41 100%

scheduled maturity dates of the 25 loans outstanding as of

Related Party

Amount Loans of

Total

5754000 51%

4133000 37%

1400000 12%

11287000 10 100%

Non-related party

Amount Loans of

Total

6160000 12%

11053000 21%

35450000 67%

52663000 15 10%

Total

Amount Loans of

Total

11914000 12 18%

15186000 24%

36850000 58%

63950000 25 100%
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We did not have any matured loans as of December 31 2010 Both matured loans as of December 31

2011 matured during the year ended December 31 2011 and the aggregate unpaid principal balance for these

loans was repaid in full during the first quarter of 2012

The following table describes the loans that were matured as of December 31 2010 the activity with

respect to such loans during the year ended December 31 2011 and the loans that matured during the year

ended December 31 2011 and remained matured as of December 31 2011

Matured Loan Net Activity

Extensions During the

During the Year Ended

Year Ended December 31 Loans

December 31 2011 on Matured

2011 on Loans Loans During the

Matured as of Matured as of Year Ended

of December31 December31 December 31 of

Loans Total 2010 2010 2011 Loans Total

Maturity

Date Amount Amount

Non-Related

Matured as of December31 20 201 Activity Matured as of December 31 201

201 3432000 3432 000 101%

Total 3.432.000 3432000 100%

Amounts represent aggregate unpaid principal balance as of December 31 2010 of matured loans as of

December 31 2010 that were extended during the year ended December 31 2011

For loans matured as of December 31 2010 net loan activity represents all activity on the loans during the

year ended December 31 2011 including accrued interest payment of fees and expenses charge-offs

andlor repayments

Amounts represent aggregate unpaid principal balance as of December 31 2011 of loans that matured

during the year ended December 31 2011 and remained matured as of December 31 2011

The table does not reflect activity for loans that matured or were due to mature during the year ended

December 31 2011 but were extended prior to December 31 2011

loan is placed on non-accrual status and income recognition is suspended at the date at which in the

opinion of management full recovery of income and principal becomes more likely than not but is no longer

probable based upon our review of economic conditions the estimated value of the underlying collateral the

guarantor adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to pay or the value of the collateral and

other relevant factors Income recognition is resumed when the loan becomes contractually current and

performance is demonstrated to be resumed Any payments received on loans classified as non-accrual status

are typically applied first to outstanding loan amounts and then to the recovery of lost interest As of December

31 2011 and 2010 we have not placed any loans on non-accrual status

Loans are considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that we

will be unable to collect all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement

including scheduled principal and interest payments Impairment is generally evaluated on an individual loan

basis for each loan in the portfolio If an individual loan is considered impaired specific valuation allowance

may be allocated if necessary so that the individual loan is reported net at the present value of estimated

future cash flows using the loans existing rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is expected solely

from collateral Loans that are not individually considered impaired are collectively and qualitatively measured

as portfolio for general valuation allowance In reviewing our portfolio for this valuation analysis we use

cash flow estimates from the disposition of finished lots paper lots residential lots shown on plat that has

been accepted by the city or county but which is currently undeveloped or under development and

undeveloped land as well as cash flow received from the issuance of bonds from municipal reimbursement

districts These estimates are based on current market metrics including without limitation the supply of

finished lots paper lots and undeveloped land the supply of homes and the rate and price at which land and

homes are sold historic levels and trends executed contracts appraisals and discussions with third party

market analysts and participants including homebuilders We base our valuations on current and historic
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market trends on our analysis of market events and conditions including activity within our portfolio as well

as the analysis of third-party services such as Metrostudy and Residential Strategies Inc Cash flow forecasts

also are based on executed purchase contracts which provide base prices escalation rates and absorption rates

on an individual project basis For projects deemed to have an extended time horizon for disposition we
consider third-party appraisals to provide valuation in accordance with guidelines set forth in the Uniform

Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice In addition to cash flows from the disposition of property cost

analysis is performed based on estimates of development and senior financing expenditures provided by

developers and independent professionals on project-by-project basis These amounts are reconciled with our

best estimates to establish the net realizable value of the portfolio

Interest is recognized on an accrual basis for impaired loans in which the collectability of the unpaid

principal amount is deemed probable Any payments received on such loans are first applied to outstanding

accrued interest receivable and then to outstanding unpaid principal balance Unpaid principal balance is

materially the same as recorded investments Any payments received on impaired loans in which the

collectability of the unpaid principal amount is less than probable are typically applied to outstanding unpaid

principal and then to the recovery of lost interest on cash basis Impaired loans or portions thereof are

charged off when deemed uncollectible

As of December 31 2011 we have matured loans with an aggregate unpaid principal balance of

approximately $3.4 million Of these loans one loan with an unpaid principal balance of approximately

$137000 is considered impaired due to the loan remaining outstanding beyond the contractual term of the loan

agreement and one loan with an unpaid principal balance of approximately $3.3 million is not considered

impaired as the loan matured in December 2011 and payment on the unpaid principal balance was received

during the first quarter of 2012 The unpaid principal balance on the impaired loan was also received during

the first quarter of 2012 after an insignificant delay As of December 31 2010 we did not have any loans that

we considered to be impaired For the year ended December 31 2011 the average outstanding balance for

impaired loans was approximately $445000 For the year ended December 31 2011 we recognized

approximately $36000 of interest income related to impaired loans For the years ended December 31 2011

and 2010 we did not recognize any cash basis interest income related to impaired loans

As part of the ongoing monitoring of the credit quality of the loan portfolio we periodically no less

than quarterly perform detailed review of our portfolio of mortgage notes and other loans The following is

general description of the credit levels used

Level Full collectability of loans in this category is considered probable

Level Full collectability of loans in this category is deemed more likely than not but not probable

based upon our review of economic conditions the estimated value of the underlying collateral the guarantor

adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to pay or the value of the collateral and other relevant

factors Interest income is suspended on Level loans

Level For loans in this category it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 our loans were classified as follows

2011 2010

LveI i43620 000 63950 000

Level2

Level3 _____________
Total 143620000 63950000

The allowance for loan losses is our estimate of incurred losses in our portfolio of notes receivable

notes receivable related parties and loan participation interest related parties We periodically perform

detailed review of our portfolio of notes and other loans to determine if impairment has occurred and to assess

the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses We charge additions to the allowance for loan losses to current

period earnings through provision for loan losses Amounts determined to be uncollectible are charged

directly against and decrease the allowance for loan losses charged off while amounts recovered on

previously charged off amounts increase the allowance for loan losses The following table summarizes the
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Shareholders Equity

Ba1ance beginning year

Provision for loan losses

Charge-offs

Balance end of period 675000

December 31 2010

162000

162000

change in the reserve for loan losses during the years
ended December 31 2011 and 2010 which is offset

against notes receivable

December 31 2011 ____________________
162000

513000

We have adopted the provisions of ASU No 2011-02 Creditor Determination of Whether

Restructuring Is Troubled Debt Restructuring In accordance with ASU 2011-02 the restructuring of loan

is considered troubled debt restructuring if both the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties and

ii the creditor has granted concession Concessions may include interest rate reductions or below market

interest rates principal forgiveness restructuring amortization schedules and other actions intended to

minimize potential losses As of December 31 2011 and 2010 we have no loan modifications that are

classified as troubled debt restructurings

On December 18 2009 the Trusts initial public subscribers were accepted as shareholders pursuant to

the Offering and the subscription proceeds from such initial public subscribers were released to the Trust from

escrow

As of December 31 2011 the Trust had issued an aggregate of 7405564 common shares of beneficial

interest pursuant to the Primary Offering and DRIP consisting of 7219309 common shares of beneficial

interest pursuant to the Primary Offering in exchange for gross proceeds of approximately $144.4 million

approximately $125.7 million net of costs associated with the Primary Offering and 186255 common shares

of beneficial interest in accordance with our DRIP in exchange for gross proceeds of approximately $3.7

million As of December 31 2011 the Trust had redeemed an aggregate of 28515 common shares of

beneficial interest at cost of approximately $562000

As of December 31 2010 the Trust had issued an aggregate of 2681454 common shares of beneficial

interest pursuant to the Primary Offering and DRIP consisting of 2646129 common shares of beneficial

interest pursuant to the Primary Offering in exchange for gross proceeds of approximately $52.9 million

approximately $46.0 million net of costs associated with the Primary Offering and 35325 common shares of

beneficial interest in accordance with our DRIP in exchange for gross proceeds of approximately $707000

As of December 31 2010 the Trust had redeemed an aggregate of 2500 common shares of beneficial interest

at cost of $50000

We must distribute to our shareholders at least 90% of our taxable income each year in order to meet

the requirements for being treated as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code In accordance with this

requirement we pay daily distributions monthly in arrears to our shareholders Our distribution rate is

determined quarterly by our board of trustees and is dependent on number of factors including funds

available for payment of distributions our financial condition loan funding commitments and annual

distribution requirements needed to maintain our status as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code In

addition to these distributions in an effort to ensure we distribute at least 90% of our taxable income our

board of trustees will periodically authorize additional special distributions All distributions are paid in cash

and DRIP shares

Our board of trustees has authorized distributions for our shareholders of record as of the close of

business on each day for the period commencing on December 18 2009 and ending on March 31 2012 For

distributions declared for each record date in the December 2009 through June 2011 periods our distribution

rate was $0.0043836 per common share of beneficial interest which is equal to an annualized distribution rate

of 8.0% assuming purchase price of $20.00 per share For distributions declared for each record date in the

July 2011 through March 2012 periods our distribution rate is $0.0044932 per common share of beneficial

interest which is equal to an annualized distribution rate of 8.2% assuming purchase price of $20.00 per
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share These distributions are aggregated and paid monthly in arrears Distributions are paid on or about the

25th day of the respective month Distributions for shareholders participating in our DRIP are reinvested into

our shares on the payment date of each distribution

In addition to the distributions discussed above the following table represents all special distributions

authorized by our board of trustees through December 31 2011

Authorization Date

June 27 2011

Record Date

August 31 2011

Rate Pay Date

0.05 September 132011

Represents the date the distribution was authorized by our board of trustees

All outstanding common shares of beneficial interest as of the record date receive the distribution

Represents the distribution rate per common share of beneficial interest on the record date

Represents the date the special distribution was paid in cash and DRIP shares

As of December 31 2011 we have made the following distributions to our shareholders in 2011

Distribution

AmountPeriod Ended Date Paid

December 31 2010 January 14 201 339000

December 31 2010 February 2011 374000

January 31 2011 February 23 2011 379000

February 28 201 March 23 201 376000

March 312011 April 212011 456000

April3O2011 May17 2011 387000

April 30 201 May 24 201 480000

May31 2011 June 24 2011 548000

June 30 2011 July 22 2011 574000

July31 2011 August24 2011 667000

August31 2011 September 13 2011 272000

August 312011 September23 2011 725000

September 30 201 October 24 201 763000

October 31 201 November 22 201 851000

November 30 201 December 22 201 890000

8081000

For the year ended December 31 2011 we paid distributions of approximately $8.1 million $5.1
million in cash and $3.0 million in our common shares of beneficial interest pursuant to our DRIP as

compared to cash flows provided by operations of approximately $6.3 million From May 28 2008 Date of

Inception through December 31 2011 we paid cumulative distributions of approximately $10.0 million as

compared to cumulative funds from operations FF0 of approximately $10.8 million see Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Funds from Operations and

Modified Funds from Operations for discussion of FF0 As of December 31 2011 we had approximately

$623000 of cash distributions declared that were paid subsequent to period end

September 2010 September 15 2010 0.05 October 15 2010

September 2010 December 15 2010 0.15 February 2011

March02011 April3O201l 0.10 Mayl7201l
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The distributions paid during the years
ended December 31 2011 and 2010 along with the amount of

distributions reinvested pursuant to our DRIP and the sources of our distributions were as follows

Years Ended December 31

Distributions paid in cash

2011

5062000

2010

i179000

Source of distributions

Cash from operations

Borrowings under credit facilities

Total sources

Share Redemption Program

1739opo 22%

8081000 100%

100%

Distributions reinves

6342000 78% 0%
1886000

1886000
_______________ _________ ________________ 100%

In our initial quarters of operations and from time to time thereafter we did not generate enough cash

flow to fully fund distributions declared Therefore some or all of our distributions are paid from sources

other than operating cash flow such as borrowings including borrowings secured by our assets in

anticipation of future operating cash flow Distributions in excess of our operating cash flows have been

funded via financing activities specifically borrowings under our credit facilities consistent with our intent to

use our credit facilities to meet our investment and distribution cash requirements throughout our initial period

UI opc1auuu

We utilize cash to fund operating expenses make investments service debt obligations and pay

distributions We receive cash from operations which includes interest payments as well as cash from

investing activities which includes repayment of principal on loans we have made and financing activities

which includes borrowing proceeds and additional capital from the sale of our shares We have secured

senior credit facility notes payable and lines of credit to manage the timing of our cash receipts and funding

requirements Over the long term as additional subscriptions for common shares are received and proceeds

from such subscriptions are invested in revenue-generating real estate investments we expect that substantially

all of our distributions will be funded from operating cash flow Further we believe operating income will

improve in future periods as start-up costs and general and administrative expenses are borne over larger

investment portfolio

We have adopted share redemption program that enables our shareholders to sell their shares back to

us in limited circumstances Generally this program permits shareholders to sell their shares back to us after

they have held them for at least one year Except for redemptions upon the death of shareholder in which

case we may waive the minimum holding periods the purchase price for the redeemed shares for the period

beginning after shareholder has held the shares for period of one year will be 92% of the purchase price

actually paid for any shares held less than two years 94% of the purchase price actually paid for any shares

held for at least two years but less than three years 96% of the purchase price actually paid for any shares

held at least three years but less than four years 98% of the purchase price actually paid for any shares held

at least four years but less than five years and for any shares held at least five years the lesser of the

purchase price actually paid or the then-current fair market value of the shares as determined by the most

recent annual valuation of our shares The purchase price for shares redeemed upon the death of shareholder

will be the lesser of1 the purchase price the shareholder actually paid for the shares or 820.00 per share

We reserve the right in our sole discretion at any time and from time to time to waive the one-year

holding period in the event of the death or bankruptcy of shareholder or other exigent circumstances

reject any request
for redemption change the purchase price for redemptions or terminate suspend

and/or reestablish our share redemption program In respect of shares redeemed upon the death of

shareholder we will not redeem in excess of 1% of the weighted average number of shares outstanding during

the twelve-month period immediately prior to the date of redemption and the total number of shares we may
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redeem at any time will not exceed 5% of the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

trailing twelve-month period prior to the redemption date Our board of trustees will determine from time to

time whether we have sufficient excess cash from operations to repurchase shares Generally the cash

available for redemption will be limited to of the operating cash flow from the previous fiscal year plus

any net proceeds from our DRIP

The Trust complies with the Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity topic of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification which requires among other things that financial instruments that

represent

mandatory obligation of the Trust to repurchase shares be classified as liabilities and reported at settlement

value We believe that shares tendered for redemption by the shareholder under the Trusts share redemption

program do not represent mandatory obligation until such redemptions are approved at our discretion At
such time we will reclassify such obligations from equity to an accrued liability based upon their respective

settlement values As of December 20 we did not have any approved redemption requests included in

our liabilities

The following table summarizes the redemption activity for the years ended December 20 and

20 The amounts presented are in total shares

December3l2011 December3l20l0
Balance beginning of year

Redemption requests received 26015 2500
Shares redeemed 26015 2500
Balance end of period

Shares redeemed are included in treasury stock in the consolidated balance sheet

Organizational and Offering Compensation

Various parties receive compensation as result of the Offering including the Advisor affiliates of the

Advisor the dealer manager and soliciting dealers The Advisor or an affiliate of the Advisor funds

organization and offering costs on the Trusts behalf and our Advisor will be paid by the Trust for such costs in

an amount equal to 3% of the gross offering proceeds raised by the Trust in the Offering the OO
Reimbursement less any offering costs paid by the Trust directly except that no organization and offering

expenses will be reimbursed with respect to sales under the DRIP Payments to the dealer manager include

selling commissions 6.5% of gross offering proceeds except that no commissions are paid with respect to

sales under the DRIP and dealer manager fees up to 3.5% of gross offering proceeds except that no dealer

manager fees are paid with respect to sales under the DRIP

Operational Compensation

The Advisor or its affiliates will receive Placement Fees as described in Note Placement Fees will

not be paid with respect to any asset level indebtedness the Trust incurs Placement Fees incurred by the Trust

will be reduced by the amount of any acquisition and origination fees and expenses paid by borrowers or

investment entities to the Advisor or affiliates of the Advisor with respect to the investment The Trust will

not incur any Placement Fees with respect to any participation agreement the Trust enters into with its affiliates

or any affiliates of the Advisor for which the Advisor or affiliates of the Advisor previously has received

acquisition and origination fees and expenses from such affiliate with respect to the same secured loan or other

real estate asset

The Advisor will receive advisory fees of 2% per annum of the average of invested assets Advisory
Fees including secured loan assets provided however that no Advisory Fees will be paid with respect to

any asset level indebtedness the Trust incurs The fee will be payable monthly in an amount equal to one-

twelfth of 2% of the Trusts average invested assets including secured loan assets as of the last day of the

immediately preceding month

The Advisor will receive 1% of the amount made available to the Trust pursuant to the origination of

any line of credit or other debt financing provided that the Advisor has provided substantial amount of
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services as determined by the Trusts independent trustees and on each anniversary date of the origination of

any such line of credit or other debt financing an additional fee of 0.25% of the primary loan amount

collectively Debt Financing Fees will be paid if such line of credit or other debt financing continues to be

outstanding on such date or prorated portion of such additional fee will be paid for the portion of such year

that the financing was outstanding

The Trust will reimburse the expenses incurred by the Advisor in connection with its provision of

services to the Trust the Advisor Expense Reimbursement including the Trusts allocable share of the

Advisors overhead such as rent personnel costs utilities and IT costs The Trust will not reimburse the

Advisor for personnel costs in connection with services for which the Advisor or its affiliates receive other

fees

The Advisor will receive 15% of the amount by which the Trusts net income for the immediately

preceding year exceeds 10% per annum return on aggregate capital contributions as adjusted to reflect prior

cash distributions to shareholders which constitute return of capital This fee will be paid annually and upon

termination of the advisory agreement

Disposition/Liquidation Compensation

Upon successful sales by the Trust of securitized loan pool interests the Advisor will be paid

securitized loan pool placement fee equal to 2% of the net proceeds realized by the Trust provided the Advisor

or an affiliate of the Advisor has provided substantial amount of services as determined by the Trusts

independent trustees

For substantial assistance in connection with the sale of properties the Trust will pay the Advisor or its

affiliates disposition fees of the lesser of one-half of the reasonable and customary real estate or brokerage

commission or 2% of the contract sales price of each property sold provided however in no event may the

disposition fees paid to the Advisor its affiliates and unaffihiated third parties exceed 6% of the contract sales

price The Trusts independent trustees will determine whether the Advisor or its affiliate has provided

substantial assistance to the Trust in connection with the sale of property Substantial assistance in

connection with the sale of property includes the Advisors preparation
of an investment package for the

property including new investment analysis rent rolls tenant information regarding credit property title

report an environmental report structural report and exhibits or such other substantial services performed

by the Advisor in connection with sale

Upon listing the Trusts common shares of beneficial interest on national securities exchange the

Advisor will be entitled to fee equal to 15% of the amount if any by which the market value of the

Trusts outstanding shares plus distributions paid by the Trust prior to listing exceeds the sum of the total

amount of capital raised from investors and the amount of cash flow necessary to generate 10% annual

cumulative non-compounded return to investors

Senior Credit Facility

On May 19 2010 UDF IV HF entered into $6 million revolving line of credit the UDF IV HF CTB

LOC with Community Trust Bank CTB The UDF IV HF CTB LOC bears interest at prime plus 1%

subject to floor of 5.5% 5.5% at December 31 2011 and requires monthly interest payments Advances

under the line may be made from time to time through May 2013 Proceeds from the line of credit will be used

to fund our obligations under our interim home construction loan agreements Advances are subject to

borrowing base and are secured by the pledge of first lien security interest in the residential real estate being

financed Principal and all unpaid interest will be due at maturity which is February 2014 The UDF IV HF

CTB LOC is guaranteed by us and by United Development Funding III L.P UDF III an affiliated and

publicly registered Delaware limited partnership

In connection with this line of credit UDF IV HF agreed to pay an origination fee of $60000 to CTB

In addition as of December 31 2011 UDF IV HF has agreed to pay total Debt Financing Fees of $75000 to

UMTH GS associated with the UDF IV HF CTB LOC In consideration of UDF III guaranteeing the line of
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credit UDF IV HF agreed to pay UDF III an annual credit enhancement fee equal to 1% of the line of credit

amount See Note Related Party Transactions for further discussion of fees paid to related parties

The outstanding balance on the line of credit was approximately $3.0 million and $1.9 million as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Notes Payable

Credit Facility

On February 2010 during the credit crisis in which financial institutions severely reduced the

number of loans made to entities involved in real estate we obtained revolving credit facility in the

maximum principal amount of $8 million the Credit Facility from Raley Holdings LLC an unaffihiated

company Raley Holdings The interest rate on the Credit Facility is equal to 8.5% per annum Accrued

interest on the outstanding principal amount of the Credit Facility is payable monthly The Credit Facilitys

original maturity date was February 2011 Effective August 10 2010 the Credit Facility was amended to

increase the maximum principal amount to $20 million pursuant to First Amendment to Secured Line of

Credit Promissory Note between us and the Lender On February 2011 we executed an extension

agreement that extended the maturity date of the Credit Facility to February 2012 On February 2012 we

executed an additional extension agreement that extended the maturity date of the Credit Facility to February

2013 see Note Subsequent Events for further discussion The Credit Facility is secured by first

priority collateral assignment and lien on certain of our assets

Raley Holdings may in its discretion decide to advance additional principal to us under the Credit

Facility Raley Holdings may require us to provide additional collateral as condition of funding additional

advances of principal under the Credit Facility From time to time we may request Raley Holdings to release

collateral and Raley Holdings may require release price to be paid as condition of granting its release of

collateral

In connection with this Credit Facility as of December 31 2011 we have agreed to pay Debt

Financing Fees totaling approximately $177000 to UMTH GS See Note Related Party Transactions for

further discussion of fees paid to related parties

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 $8.8 million and $14.3 million respectively in principal was

outstanding under the Credit Facility

FMNote

On December 14 2010 UDF IV Fli obtained revolving credit facility from FM Bank and Trust

Company FM in the maximum principal amount of $5 million the FM Note pursuant to Loan

Agreement the FM Loan Agreement Pursuant to the First Amendment to Loan Agreement FM
increased its commitment to $7.5 million effective September 2011 The interest rate on the FM Note is

equal to the greater of prime plus 1.5% or 5.0% per annum 5.0% at December 31 2011 Accrued interest on

the outstanding principal amount of the FM Note is payable monthly The FM Note matures and becomes

due and payable in full on December 14 2012 The FM Note is secured by first priority collateral

assignment and lien on certain mortgage notes and construction loans originated by UDF IV FIT The FM
Note is guaranteed by us and by UDF III

UDF IV FITs eligibility to borrow up to $7.5 million under the FMNote is determined pursuant to

defined borrowing base The FM Note requires UDF IV FIT and the guarantors to make various

representations to the bank and to comply with various covenants and agreements including but not limited to

minimum net worth requirements and defined leverage ratios

In connection with the FM Note UDF IV FIT agreed to pay an origination fee of $50000 to FM
Pursuant to the amendment to the FM Loan Agreement entered into in September 2011 UDF TV Fli agreed

to pay an additional origination fee of $25000 to FM In addition as of December 31 2011 UDF IV FIT

has agreed to pay total Debt Financing Fees of $94000 to UMTH GS associated with the FM Note In

consideration of UDF TIT guaranteeing the FM Note UDF IV FIT agreed to pay UDF III monthly credit
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enhancement fee equal to 12th of 1% of the outstanding principal balance of the FM Note at the end of

each month See Note Related Party Transactions for further discussion of fees paid to related parties

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $5.6 million and $3.8 million respectively in

principal was outstanding under the FM Note

Lines of Credit

CTB Revolver

Effective August 19 2010 UDF IV AC obtained three-year revolving credit facility in the maximum

principal amount of $8 million the CTB Revolver from CTB pursuant to Revolving Loan Agreement the

Revolver Loan Agreement The interest rate on the CTB Revolver is equal to the greater of prime plus 1%

or 5.5% per annum 5.5% at December 31 2011 Accrued interest on the outstanding principal amount of the

CTB Revolver is payable monthly The CTB Revolver matures and becomes due and payable in full on

August 19 2013 The CTB Revolver is secured by first priority collateral assignment and lien on the loans

purchased by UDF IV AC using funding from the bank and by first lien security interest in all of UDF IV

ACs assets The CTB Revolver is guaranteed by us and by UDF III

UDF IV ACs eligibility to borrow up to $8 million under the CTB Revolver is determined pursuant to

defined borrowing base The CTB Revolver requires UDF IV AC and the guarantors to make various

representations to the bank and to comply with various covenants and agreements including but not limited to

minimumnet worth requirements and defined leverage ratios

In connection with the CTB Revolver UDF TV AC agreed to pay an origination fee of $80000 to

CTB In addition as of December 31 2011 UDF iv AC has agreed to pay total Debt Financing Fees of

$100000 to UMTH GS associated with the CTB Revolver In consideration of UDF III guaranteeing the CTB

Revolver UDF IV AC agreed to pay UDF ITT monthly credit enhancement fee equal to 12th of 1% of the

outstanding principal balance of the CTB Revolver at the end of each month See Note Related Party

Transactions for further discussion of fees paid to related parties

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $5.7 million and $3.9 million in principal

respectively was outstanding under the CTB Revolver

UTB Revolver

Effective September 29 2010 UDF IV Fl entered into $3.4 million revolving line of credit the

UTB Revolver with United Texas Bank UTB Pursuant to the First Loan Modification and Extension

Agreement effective August 18 2011 UTB increased its commitment under the UTB Revolver to $4.0

million and the maturity date which was originally September 29 2011 was extended to September 29 2012

The UTB Revolver bears interest at prime plus 1% subject to floor of 5.5% 5.5% at December 31 2011
and requires monthly interest payments Advances under the line may be made from time to time through

September 2012 Proceeds from the UTB Revolver will be used to fund our obligations under our finished

lot loan agreements Advances are subject to borrowing base and are secured by the pledge of first lien

security interest in the residential real estate being financed Principal and all unpaid interest will be due at

maturity and are guaranteed by us

In connection with the UTB Revolver UDF IV FT agreed to pay an origination fee of $34000 to UTB
Pursuant to First Loan Modification and Extension Agreement entered into in August 2011 UDF IV FT

incurred an additional origination fee of $23000 payable to UTB In addition as of December 31 2011 UDF

IV FT has agreed to pay total Debt Financing Fees of $50000 to UMTH GS associated with the UTB Revolver

See Note Related Party Transactions for further discussion of fees paid to related parties

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 $4.0 million and $177000 respectively in principal was

outstanding under the UTB Revolver

Legacy Revolver

Effective November 2011 UDF IV FIJI obtained credit facility in the maximum principal amount

of $5 million the Legacy Revolver from LegacyTexas Bank Legacy pursuant to Loan Agreement the
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Legacy Loan Agreement The interest rate on the Legacy Revolver is equal to the greater of prime plus 1%

or 5.5% per annum 5.5% at December 31 2011 Accrued interest on the outstanding principal amount of the

Legacy Revolver is payable monthly The Legacy Revolver matures and becomes due and payable in full on

October 12 2012 Proceeds from the Legacy Revolver will be used to fund our obligations under certain

eligible finished lot and construction loans that are approved in advance by Legacy The Legacy Revolver is

secured by the pledge of first lien security interest in the residential real estate being financed The Legacy

Revolver is guaranteed by us

In connection with the Legacy Revolver UDF IV FIJI agreed to pay an origination fee of $50000 to

Legacy In addition as of December 31 2011 UDF IV FIJI has agreed to pay total Debt Financing Fees of

$50000 to UMTH GS associated with the Legacy Revolver See Note Related Party Transactions for

further discussion of fees paid to related parties

As of December 31 2011 approximately $1.0 million in principal was outstanding under the Legacy

Revolver

Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

In the ordinary course of business the Trust may become subject to litigation or claims There are no

material pending or threatened legal proceedings known to be contemplated against the Trust

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

From time to time we enter into guarantees of debtors borrowings and provide credit enhancements

for the benefit of senior lenders in connection with our debtors and investments in partnerships collectively

referred to as guarantees and account for such guarantees in accordance with FASB ASC 460-10

Guarantees Guarantees generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require

payment of fee by the debtor guarantee involves to varying degrees elements of credit risk in excess of

the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets Our exposure to credit loss in the event of non-

performance by the other party to the instrument is represented by the contractual notional amount of the

guarantee

In connection with the funding of some of the Trusts organization costs on June 26 2009 UMTH LD
entered into $6.3 million line of credit the UMTH LD CTB LOC from CTB In accordance with the

Loan Modification Agreement entered into on December 26 2011 the UMTH LD CTB LOC matures on

February 26 2012 As condition to such line of credit the Trust provided limited guaranty to CTB for

UMTH LDs obligations to the bank under the line of credit in an amount equal to the amount of the Trusts

organization costs funded by UMTH LD UMTH LD has receivable from our Advisor for such costs and is

repaid by our Advisor as our Advisor receives the OO Reimbursement discussed in Note UMTH LD has

assigned this receivable to the bank as security for the UMTH LD CTB LOC However as of December 31

2011 the amount of the Trusts guaranty was reduced to the extent that our Advisor reimbursed UMTH LD for

any of the Trusts organization costs it has funded provided that no event of default has occurred and the Trust

has informed the bank in writing of the reimbursed costs As of December 31 2011 the Trusts outstanding

repayment guaranty was approximately $3.1 million Effective February 26 2012 the Trust replaced its

limited guaranty with full guaranty of all obligations under the UMTH LD CTB LOC See Note

Subsequent Events for further discussion As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the outstan4ing balance on the

line of credit was $4.6 million and $5.8 million respectively

Effective December 30 2011 we entered into Guaranty of Payment and Guaranty of Completion

collectively the Stoneleigh Guaranty for the benefit of Babson Mezzanine Realty Investors II LP

Babson as agent for group of lenders pursuant to which we guaranteed all amounts due associated with

$25 million construction loan agreement the Stoneleigh Construction Loan entered into between Maple

Wolf Stoneleigh LLC an affiliated Delaware limited liability company Stoneleigh and Babson Pursuant

to the Stoneleigh Construction Loan Babson will provide Stoneleigh with up to approximately $25 million to

finance the construction associated with condominium project located in Dallas Texas United Development

Funding Land Opportunity Fund L.P an affiliated Delaware limited partnership UDF LOF owns 75%
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interest in Stoneleigh Our asset manager UMTH LD also serves as the asset manager of UDF LOF The

general partner of our Advisor also serves as the general partner of UMTH LD In consideration of us entering

into the Stoneleigh Guaranty we entered into letter agreement with Stoneleigh which provides for Stoneleigh

to pay us monthly credit enhancement fee equal to one-twelfth of 1% of the outstanding principal balance on

the Stoneleigh Construction Loan at the end of each month As of December 31 2011 approximately $1000

was outstanding under the Stoneleigh Construction Loan

As of December 31 2011 including the guarantees described above we had five outstanding

repayment guarantees with total credit risk to us of approximately $49.0 million of which approximately $8.1

million had been borrowed against by the debtor We had no outstanding credit enhancements to third parties

as of December 31 2010

Economic Dependency

Under various agreements the Trust has engaged or will engage the Advisor and its affiliates to

provide certain services that are essential to the Trust including asset management services asset acquisition

and disposition decisions the sale of the Trusts common shares of beneficial interest available for issue as

well as other administrative responsibilities for the Trust As result of these relationships the Trust is

dependent upon the Advisor and its affiliates In the event that these entities were unable to provide the Trust

with the respective services the Trust would be required to find alternative providers of these services

Related Party Transactions

lPfiiiui

We pay our Advisor an OO Reimbursement as discussed in Note for reimbursement of

organization and offering expenses funded by our Advisor or its affiliates From inception through December

31 2011 the Trust had reimbursed our Advisor approximately $4.3 million in accordance with the OO
Reimbursement The Trust has an accrued liability related parties payable to our Advisor of approximately

$7.9 million and $7.0 million as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively for organization and offering

costs paid by our Advisor or affiliates related to the Offering

Advisory Fees

We incur monthly Advisory Fees payable to our Advisor equal to 2% per annum of our average

invested assets as discussed in Note From inception through December 31 2011 the Trust has incurred

total Advisory Fees of approximately $2.6 million The Trust has an accrued liability related parties payable

to our Advisor of approximately $236000 and $75000 as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively for

Advisory Fees

Placement Fees

We incur Placement Fees equal to 3% of the net amount available for investment in secured loans and

other real estate assets as discussed in Note and Note provided however that no such fees will be paid

with respect to any asset level indebtedness we incur The fees are further reduced by the amount of any

acquisition and origination expenses paid by borrowers or investment entities to our Advisor or affiliates of our

Advisor with respect to our investment Such costs are amortized into expense on straight line basis and are

payable to UMTH LD our asset manager The general partner of our Advisor is also the general partner
of

UMTH LD From inception through December 31 2011 the Trust has incurred total Placement Fees payable

to UMTH LD of approximately $4.6 million The Trust has an accrued liability related parties payable to

UMTH LD of approximately $834000 and $773000 as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively for

Placement Fees

Debt Financing Fees

Pursuant to the origination of any line of credit or other debt financing we pay our Advisor Debt

Financing Fees as discussed in Note These Debt Financing Fees are expensed on straight line basis over

the life of the financing arrangement From inception through December 31 2011 the Trust has incurred total

Debt Financing Fees payable to our Advisor of approximately $546000
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In connection with the UDF IV HF CTB LOC discussed in Note UDF IV HF has agreed to pay total

Debt Financing Fees of $75000 to our Advisor

In connection with the Credit Facility discussed in Note we agreed to pay total Debt Financing Fees

of approximately $177000 to our Advisor

In connection with the FM Note discussed in Note UDF IV Fli has agreed to pay total Debt

Financing Fees of $94000 to our Advisor

In connection with the CTB Revolver discussed in Note UDF IV AC has agreed to pay total Debt

Financing Fees of $100000 to our Advisor

In connection with the UTB Revolver discussed in Note UDF IV FT has agreed to pay total Debt

Financing Fees of $50000 to our Advisor

In connection with the Legacy Revolver discussed in Note UDF IV FIJI has agreed to pay total Debt

Financing Fees of $50000 to our Advisor

As of December 31 2011 approximately $19000 is included in accrued liabilities related parties

associated with unpaid Debt Financing Fees No amount is included in accrued liabilities related parties

associated with unpaid Debt Financing Fees as of December 31 2010

Credit Enhancement Fees

The Trust and its wholly-owned subsidiaries will occasionally enter into financing arrangements that

require guarantees from entities affiliated with the Trust These guarantees require us to pay fees Credit

Enhancement Fees to our affiliated entities as consideration for their guarantees These Credit Enhancement

Fees are either expensed as incurred or prepaid and amortized based on the terms of the guarantee agreements

From inception through December 31 2011 the Trust has incurred total Credit Enhancement Fees payable to

our affiliates of approximately $234000 The Trust has an accrued liability related parties payable to our

affiliates of approximately $9000 and $16000 as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively for Credit

Enhancement Fees As of December 31 2011 we have three existing arrangements that require us to pay

Credit Enhancement Fees to affiliated entities

In consideration of UDF III guaranteeing the UDF IV HF CTB LOC entered into in May 2010 and

discussed in Note UDF IV HF agreed to pay UDF III an annual credit enhancement fee equal to 1% of the

line of credit amount The general partner of our Advisor is also the general partner of UMTH LD our asset

manager UMTH LD also serves as the asset manager and general partner of UDF III UDF III has received

an opinion from Jackson Claborn Inc an independent advisor that this credit enhancement is fair and at least

as reasonable as credit enhancement with an unaffiliated entity in similar circumstances As of December 31

2011 UDF IV HF has agreed to pay total Credit Enhancement Fees of $120000 to UDF III in consideration

for this guarantee

In consideration of UDF III guaranteeing the CTB Revolver entered into in August 2010 and discussed

in Note UDF IV AC agreed to pay UDF III monthly credit enhancement fee equal to 1/12th of 1% of the

outstanding principal balance of the CTB Revolver at the end of each month The general partner of our

Advisor is also the general partner of UMTH LD our asset manager UMTH LD also serves as the asset

manager and general partner of UDF III UDF III has received an opinion from Jackson Clabom Inc an

independent advisor that this credit enhancement is fair and at least as reasonable as credit enhancement

with an unaffihiated entity in similar circumstances As of December 31 2011 UDF IV AC has agreed to pay

total Credit Enhancement Fees of approximately $62000 to UDF III in consideration for this guarantee

In consideration of UDF III guaranteeing the FM Note entered into in December 2010 and discussed

in Note UDF IV FIT agreed to pay UDF III monthly credit enhancement fee equal to 12th of 1% of the

outstanding principal balance of the FM Note at the end of each month The general partner of our Advisor

is also the general partner of UMTH LD our asset manager UMTH LD also serves as the asset manager and

general partner of UDF III UDF III has received an opinion from Jackson Clabom Inc an independent

advisor that this credit enhancement is fair and at least as reasonable as credit enhancement with an
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unaffihiated entity in similar circumstances As of December 31 2011 UDF IV FIT has agreed to pay total

Credit Enhancement Fees of approximately $52000 to UDF III in consideration for this guarantee

The chart below summarizes the approximate payments to related parties for the years ended

December 31 2011 and 2010

For the Year Ended December 31

Payee Purpose 2011 2010

UMTH GS

OO Reimbursement 2.731.000 38% 1502.000 40%

Advisory Fees 1.776000 25% 557000 15%

Debt Financing Fees 158.000 2% 18.000 8%

UMTH LD

Placement Fees 2387000 33% 1319 000 35/a

UDF 111

Credit Enhancement Fees 161000 2% 64.000 2%

Total Payments 7213.000 100% 3.760000 100%

The chart below summarizes the approximate expenses associated with related parties for the years

ended December 31.2011 2010 and 2009

For the Year December

Purpose 2011 2010 2009

Advisory Fees 1.937000 100% 629000 100% 2000 100%

Total Advisory fee -- Related Party 1937000 100% 629000 100% 2000 100%

Amortization of Debt Financing Fees 171.000 23% 156 000 45/a

Amortization of Placement Fees 412.000 56% 24.000 36%

redit Fnhancement Fees 54.000 65000 19%

Total General and Administrative Related Parties 737000 100% 345000 100%

Loan Participation Interest Related Parties

Bufjlngton Participation Agreements

On December 18 2009 the Trust entered into two participation agreements collectively the

Buffington Participation Agreements with UMT Home Finance LP UMTHF an affiliated Delaware

limited partnership pursuant to which the Trust purchased participation interest in UMTHF construction

loans the Construction Loans to Buffington Texas Classic Homes LLC Buffington Classic an

affiliated Texas limited liability company and Buffington Signature Homes LLC Buffington Signature an

affiliated Texas limited liability company collectively Buff Homes The Trusts Advisor also serves as the
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advisor for United Mortgage Trust UMT Maryland real estate investment trust which owns 100% of the

interests in UMTHF

The Construction Loans provide Buff Homes which is homebuilding group with residential interim

construction financing for the construction of new homes in the greater Austin Texas area The Construction

Loans are evidenced by promissory notes are secured by first lien deeds of trust on the homes financed under

the Construction Loans and are guaranteed by the parent company and the principals of Buff Homes

On April 2010 we entered into an Agent Participant Agreement with UMTHF the UMTHF
Agent Agreement In accordance with the UMTHF Agent Agreement UMTHF will continue to manage and

control the Construction Loans and each participant party has appointed UMTHF as its agent to act on its

behalf with respect to all aspects of the Construction Loans provided that pursuant to the UMTHF Agent

Agreement we retain approval rights in connection with any material decisions pertaining to the

administration and services of the loans and with respect to any material modification to the loans and in the

event that the loans become non-performing we shall have effective control over the remedies relating to the

enforcement of the loans including ultimate control of the foreclosure process

Pursuant to the Buffington Participation Agreements the Trust will participate in the Construction

Loans by funding the lending obligations of UMTHF under the Construction Loans up to maximum amount

of $3.5 million The Buffington Participation Agreements give the Trust the right to receive payment from

UMTHF of principal and accrued interest relating to amounts funded by the Trust under the Buffington

Participation Agreements The interest rate under the Construction Loans is the lower of 13% or the highest

rate allowed by law The Trusts participation interest is repaid as Buff Homes repays the Construction Loans

For each loan originated to it Buff Homes is required to pay interest monthly and to repay the principal

advanced to it upon the sale of the home or in any event no later than 12 months following the origination of

the loan The Buffington Participation Agreements mature on October 28 2012

majority of our trustees including majority of our independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in this transaction approved the Buffington Participation Agreements as being fair and reasonable to

us and on terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffihiated third parties

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $7.2 million and $1.4 million respectively is

included in loan participation interest related parties related to the Buffington Participation Agreements For

the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 we recognized approximately $415000 and $427000

respectively of interest income related to this participation interest Approximately $33000 and $9000 is

included in accrued receivable related parties as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively for interest

associated with the Buffington Participation Agreements

UDF III Participation Agreement

Effective January 2010 we entered into Loan Participation Agreement the UDF III Participation

Agreement with UDF III pursuant to which we purchased participation interest in finished lot loan the

BL Loan from UDF III as the lender to Buffington Land Ltd an unaffiliated Texas limited partnership

and Len-Buf Land Acquisitions of Texas L.P an unaffiliated Texas limited partnership as co-borrowers

collectively Buffington The general partner of our Advisor is also the general partner of UMTH LD our

asset manager UMTH LD also serves as the asset manager and general partner of UDF III The BL Loan was

initially evidenced and secured by first lien deed of trust recorded against approximately 67 finished

residential lots in the Bridges at Bear Creek residential subdivision in the City of Austin Travis County

Texas promissory note assignments of certain lot sale contracts and earnest money and other loan

documents

On April 2010 we entered into an Agent Participant Agreement with UIDF III the Agent
Agreement In accordance with the Agent Agreement UDF III continued to manage and control the BL
Loan and each participant party has appointed UDF III as its agent to act on its behalf with respect to all

aspects of the BL Loan provided that pursuant to the Agent Agreement we retained approval rights in

connection with any material decisions pertaining to the administration and services of the loan and with

respect to any material modification to the loan and in the event that the loan became non-performing we had

effective control over the remedies relating to the enforcement of the loan including ultimate control of the

foreclosure process
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The UDF III Participation Agreement gave the Trust the right to receive payment from UDF III of

principal and accrued interest relating to amounts funded by the Trust under the UDF III Participation

Agreement We had no obligations to advance funds to Buffington under the BL Loan or to increase our

interest in the BL Loan The interest rate under the BL Loan was the lower of 14% or the highest rate allowed

by law Buffington was required to pay interest monthly and to repay portion of principal upon the sale of

residential lots covered by the deed of trust The original maturity date of the BL Loan was June 30 2011

The BL Loan was fully repaid in October 2010

majority of our trustees including majority of our independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in this transaction approved the UDF III Participation Agreement as being fair and reasonable to us

and on terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffiliated third parties

For the year ended December 31 2010 we recognized approximately $379000 of interest income

related to the UDF III Participation Agreement

BufJington Lot Participation Agreements

On March 24 2010 we entered into two Participation Agreements collectively the Buffington Lot

Participation Agreements with UDF III pursuant to which we purchased 100% participation interest in

UDF IIIs lot inventory line of credit loan facilities with Buffington Signature the Buffington Signature

Line and Buffington Classic the Buffington Classic Line collectively the Lot Inventory Loans The

general partner of our Advisor is also the general partner of UMTH LD our asset manager UMTH LD also

serves as the asset manager and general partner of LTDF III The Lot Inventory Loans are evidenced by

promissory notes are secured by first lien deeds of trust on the lots financed under the Lot Inventory Loans

and are guaranteed by Buff Homes parent company and an affiliate company of Buff Homes The Lot

Inventory Loans provide Buff Homes with financing for the acquisition of residential lOtS which are held as

inventory to facilitate Buff Homes new home construction business in the greater Austin Texas area When

lot is slated for residential construction Buff Homes obtains an interim construction loan and the principal

advanced for the acquisition of the lot is repaid under the Lot Inventory Loans

On April 2010 we entered into the Agent Agreement In accordance with the Agent Agreement

UDF III will continue to manage and control the Lot Inventory Loans and each participant party has appointed

UDF III as its agent to act on its behalf with respect to all aspects of the Lot Inventory Loans provided that

pursuant to the Agent Agreement we retain approval rights in connection with any material decisions

pertaining to the administration and services of the loans and with respect to any material modification to the

loans and inthe event that the loans become non-performing we shall have effective control over the remedies

relating to the enforcement of the loans including ultimate control of the foreclosure process

Pursuant to the Buffington Lot Participation Agreements we will participate in the Lot Inventory

Loans by funding UDF IIIs lending obligations under the Lot Inventory Loans up to maximum amount of

$2.5 million under the Buffington Signature Line and $2.0 million under the Buffington Classic Line The

Buffington Lot Participation Agreements give us the right to receive repayment of all principal and accrued

interest relating to amounts funded by us under the Buffington Lot Participation Agreements The interest rate

for the Lot Inventory Loans is the lower of 14% or the highest rate allowed by law Our participation interest

is repaid as Buff Homes repays the Lot Inventory Loans For each loan originated Buff Homes is required to

pay interest monthly and to repay the principal advanced no later than 12 months following the origination of

the loan The Buffington Signature Line matured in August 2011 at which time there was no outstanding

balance and was not renewed and the Buffington Classic Line matures in August 2012

UDF III is required to purchase back from us the participation interest in the Lot Inventory Loans

upon foreclosure of UDF IIIs assets by its lenders ii upon the maturity of the Lot Inventory Loans or iii

at any time upon 30 days prior written notice from us In such event the purchase price paid to us will be

equal to the outstanding principal amount of the Lot Inventory Loans on the date of termination together with

all accrued interest due thereon plus any other amounts due to us under the Buffington Lot Participation

Agreements

majority of our trustees including majority of our independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in this transaction approved the Buffington Lot Participation Agreements as being fair and

F-27



reasonable to us and on terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffihiated

third parties

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $246000 and $216000 respectively is included

in loan participation interest related parties related to the participation in the Buffington Classic Line For

the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 we recognized approximately $32000 and $19000

respectively of interest income related to the participation in the Lot Inventory Loans Approximately

$17000 and $15000 is included in accrued receivable related parties as of December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively for interest associated with the Buffington Classic Line

TR Finished Lot Participation

On June 30 2010 we purchased participation interest the TR Finished Lot Participation in

finished lot loan the Travis Ranch II Finished Lot Loan made by UDF III to CTMGT Travis Ranch II

LLC The general partner of our Advisor is also the general partner of UMTH LD our asset manager UMTH
LD also serves as the asset manager and general partner of UDF III The Travis Ranch II Finished Lot Loan is

secured by subordinate second lien deed of trust recorded against finished residential lots in the Travis

Ranch residential subdivision located in Kaufman County Texas The Travis Ranch II Finished Lot Loan is

guaranteed by the limited liability company owners of the borrower and by the principal of the borrower

In accordance with the TR Finished Lot Participation we are entitled to receive repayment of our

participation in the outstanding principal amount of the Travis Ranch II Finished Lot Loan plus accrued

interest thereon over time as the borrower repays the loan We have no obligation to increase our participation

interest in the Travis Ranch II Finished Lot Loan The interest rate under the Travis Ranch II Finished Lot

Loan is the lower of 15% or the highest rate allowed by law The borrower has obtained senior loan secured

by first lien deed of trust on the finished lots For so long as the senior loan is outstanding proceeds from the

sale of the residential lots securing the Travis Ranch II Finished Lot Loan will be paid to the senior lender and

will be applied to reduce the outstanding balance of the senior loan After the senior loan is paid in full the

proceeds from the sale of the residential lots securing the Travis Ranch II Finished Lot Loan are required to be

used to repay the Travis Ranch II Finished Lot Loan The Travis Ranch II Finished Lot Loan is due and

payable in full on August 28 2012 The maximum combined loan-to-value ratio of the first lien senior loan

and the second lien Travis Ranch II Finished Lot Loan is 85%

majority of our trustees including majority of our independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in this transaction approved the Participation Agreements as being fair and reasonable to us and on

terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffihiated third parties

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $2.7 million and $2.0 million respectively is

included in loan participation interest related parties related to the TR Finished Lot Participation For the

years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 we recognized approximately $337000 and $155000 respectively

of interest income related to this participation interest Approximately $129000 and $101000 is included in

accrued receivable related parties as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively for interest associated

with the TR Finished Lot Participation

TR Paper Lot Participation

On June 30 2010 we purchased participation interest the TR Paper Lot Participation in

paper lot loan the Travis Ranch Paper Lot Loan from UDF III to CTMGT Travis Ranch LLC The

general partner of our Advisor is also the general partner of UMTH LD our asset manager UIMTH LD also

serves as the asset manager and general partner of UDF III paper lot is residential lot shown on plat

that has been accepted by the city or county but which is currently undeveloped or under development The

borrower owns paper lots in the Travis Ranch residential subdivision of Kaufman County Texas The Travis

Ranch Paper Lot Loan was initially secured by pledge of the equity interests in the borrower instead of real

property lien effectively subordinating the Travis Ranch Paper Lot Loan to all real property liens The Travis

Ranch Paper Lot Loan is guaranteed by the limited liability company owners of the borrower and by the

principal of the borrower

We are entitled to receive repayment of our participation in the outstanding principal amount of the

Travis Ranch Paper Lot Loan plus its proportionate share of accrued interest thereon over time as the
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borrower repays the Travis Ranch Paper Lot Loan We have no obligation to increase our participation interest

in the Travis Ranch Paper Lot Loan The interest rate under the Travis Ranch Paper Lot Loan is the lower of

15% or the highest rate allowed by law The borrower has obtained senior loan secured by first lien deed of

trust on the paper lots For so long as the senior loan is outstanding proceeds from the sale of the paper lots

will be paid to the senior lender and will be applied to reduce the outstanding balance of the senior loan After

the senior loan is paid in full the proceeds from the sale of the paper lots are required to be used to repay the

Travis Ranch Paper Lot Loan The Travis Ranch Paper Lot Loan is due and payable in full on September 24
2012 The maximum combined loan-to-value ratio of the first lien senior loan and Travis Ranch Paper Lot

Loan is 85%

majority of our trustees including majority of our independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in this transaction approved the Participation Agreements as being fair and reasonable to us and on

terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffiliated third parties

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $9.2 million and 2.1 million respectively is

included in loan participation interest related parties related to the TR Paper Lot Participation For the
years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010 we recognized approximately $888000 and $159000 respectively of

interest income related to this participation interest Approximately $301000 and $80000 is included in

accrued receivable related parties as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively for interest associated

with the TR Paper Lot Participation

Carroliton Participation Agreement

On June 10 2011 the Trust entered into participation agreement the Carroliton Participation

Agreement with UMT Home Finance III LP UMTHFIII an affiliated Delaware limited partnership

pursuant to which the Trust purchased participation interest in UMTHFIIIs finished lot loan the Carrollton

Lot Loan to Carroilton TH LP Carroliton TH an unaffiliated Texas limited partnership The Trusts

Advisor also serves as the advisor for UMT which owns 100% of the interests in UMTHFIII The Carroilton

Lot Loan provides Carroliton TH with finished lot loan totaling $3.4 million for townhome lots located in

Carroliton Texas The Carroilton Lot Loan is evidenced by promissory note is secured by first lien deeds of

trust on the finished lots financed under the Carroliton Lot Loan and is guaranteed by the borrowers general

partner and its principal

The Carroliton Participation Agreement gives the Trust the right to receive payment from UMTHFIII

of principal and accrued interest relating to amounts funded by the Trust under the Carroilton Participation

Agreement We have no obligations to increase our participation in the Carrollton Lot Loan The interest rate

under the Carroilton Lot Loan is the lower of 13% or the highest rate allowed by law Our interest will be

repaid as Carroliton TH repays the Carroilton Lot Loan Carroliton TH is required to pay interest monthly and

to repay portion of principal upon the sale of lots covered by the deed of trust The original maturity date of

the Carroliton Lot Loan is June 10 2014 The Carroliton Participation Agreement matured on March 10 2012

and we are in the process of extending the agreement to December 10 2012 In determining whether to extend

this loan we are evaluating the economic conditions the estimated value and performance of the underlying

collateral the guarantor adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to pay or the value of the

collateral and other relevant factors

majority of our trustees including majority of our independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in this transaction approved the Carrollton Participation Agreement as being fair and reasonable to

us and on terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffihiated third parties

As of December 31 2011 approximately $618000 is included in loan participation interest related

parties related to the Carroilton Participation Agreement For the year ended December 31 2011 we

recognized approximately $138000 of interest income related to the Carroilton Participation Agreement

Approximately $2000 is included in accrued receivable related parties as of December 31 2011 for interest

associated with the Carroliton Participation Agreement

165 Howe Participation Agreement

On October 2011 the Trust entered into participation agreement the 165 Howe Participation

Agreement with UMT Home Finance III LP UMTHFIII an affiliated Delaware limited partnership
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pursuant to which the Trust purchased participation interest in UMTI-IFIII finished lot loan the 165 Howe

Lot Loan to 165 Howe L.P an unaffiliated Texas limited partnership and Allen Partners L.P an

unaffiliated Texas limited partnership collectively 165 Howe The Trusts Advisor also serves as the

advisor for UMT which owns 100% of the interests in UMTHFIII The 165 Howe Lot Loan provides 165

Howe with finished lot loan totaling $2.9 million for finished single-family residential lots located in Fort

Worth Texas The 165 Howe Lot Loan is evidenced by promissory note is secured by first lien deeds of

trust on the finished lots financed under the 165 Howe Lot Loan and is guaranteed by the borrowers general

partner and its principal

The 165 Howe Participation Agreement gives the Trust the right to receive payment from UMTHFIII

of principal and accrued interest relating to amounts funded by the Trust under the 165 Howe Participation

Agreement We have no obligations to increase our participation in the 165 Howe Lot Loan The interest rate

under the 165 Howe Lot Loan is the lower of 11.5% or the highest rate allowed by law Our interest will be

repaid as 165 Howe repays the 165 Howe Lot Loan 165 Howe is required to pay interest monthly and to

repay portion of principal upon the sale of lots covered by the deed of trust The 165 Howe Participation

Agreement is currently scheduled to mature on July 2012 although it will be automatically extended for

additional month periods until repaid in full

majority of our trustees including majority of our independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in this transaction approved the 165 Howe Participation Agreement as being fair and reasonable to

us and on terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffiliated third parties

As of December 31 2011 approximately $2.7 million is included in loan participation interest

related parties related to the 165 Howe Participation Agreement For the year ended December 31 2011 we

recognized approximately $76000 of interest income related to the 165 Flowe Participation Agreement

Approximately $47000 is included in accrued receivable related parties as of December 31 2011 for interest

associated with the 165 Howe Participation Agreement

Notes Receivable Related Parties

HLL Indian Springs Loan

On January 18 2010 we made finished lot loan the HLL Indian Springs Loan of approximately

$1.8 million to HLL Land Acquisitions of Texas L.P Texas limited partnership HLL HLL is wholly

owned subsidiary of United Development Funding L.P UDF an affiliated Delaware limited partnership

The general partner of our Advisor is also the general partner of UMTH LD our asset manager UMTH LD
also serves as the asset manager of UDF The HLL Indian Springs Loan was initially evidenced and secured

by first lien deed of trust recorded against approximately 71 finished residential lots in The Preserve at Indian

Springs residential subdivision in the City of San Antonio Bexar County Texas as well as promissory

note assignments of certain lot sale contracts and earnest money and other loan documents The interest rate

under the HLL Indian Springs Loan is the lower of 13% or the highest rate allowed by law The HLL Indian

Springs Loan matures on July 18 2013 pursuant to the First Modification Agreement dated July 18 2011 In

determining whether to modify this loan we evaluated the economic conditions the estimated value and

performance of the underlying collateral the guarantor adverse situations that may affect the borrowers

ability to pay or the value of the collateral and other relevant factors The HLL Indian Springs Loan provides

HLL with an interest reserve of approximately $289000 pursuant to which we will fund HLLs monthly

interest payments and add the payments to the outstanding principal balance of the HLL Indian Springs Loan

In connection with the HLL Indian Springs Loan HLL agreed to pay an origination fee of approximately

$18000 to UMTH LD which was funded by us at the closing of the HLL Indian Springs Loan

majority of our trustees including majority of our independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in this transaction approved the HLL Indian Springs Loan as being fair and reasonable to us and on

terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffiliated third parties

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $866000 and $1.0 million respectively is

included in notes receivable related parties related to the HLL Indian Springs Loan For the years ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 we recognized approximately $107000 and $111000 respectively of interest

income related to this loan Approximately $27000 and $26000 is included in accrued receivable related
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parties as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively for interest associated with the HLL Indian Springs

Loan

Buffington Loan Agreements

On April 30 2010 we entered into two Construction Loan Agreements with Buffington Signature the

Buffington Signature CL and Buffington Classic the Buffington Classic CL collectively the

Buffington Loan Agreements through which we agreed to provide interim construction loan facilities

collectively the Buffington Loan Facilities to Buffington Signature and Buffington Classic The general

partner of our Advisor is also the general partner of UMTH LD our asset manager UMTH LD owns an

investment in Buffington Homebuilding Group Ltd which is the parent of Buff Homes Pursuant to the

Second Modification To Construction Loan Agreement entered into in August 2011 the Buffington Signature

CL provides Buffington Signature with up to $1.0 million in residential interim construction financing for the

construction of new homes in the greater Austin Texas area and other Texas counties approved by us

Pursuant to the Second Modification To Construction Loan Agreement entered into in August 2011 the

Buffington Classic CL provides Buffington Classic with up to $6.5 million in residential interim construction

financing for the construction of new homes in the greater Austin Texas area and other Texas counties

approved by us In determining whether to modify this loan we evaluated the economic conditions the

estimated value and performance of the underlying collateral the guarantor adverse situations that may affect

the borrowers ability to pay or the value of the collateral and other relevant factors The Buffington Loan

Facilities are evidenced and secured by the Buffington Loan Agreements promissory notes first lien deeds of

trust on the homes financed under the Buffington Loan Facilities and various other loan documents They are

guaranteed by the parent company and certain principals of Buff Homes The interest rate under the

Buffington Loan Facilities is the lower of 13% per annum or the highest rate allowed by law Interest is

payable monthly Each loan financed under the Buffington Loan Facilities matures and becomes due and

payable in full upon the earlier of the sale of the home financed under the loan or ii nine months after the

loan was originated provided that the maturity of the loan may be extended up to 90 days following the

original maturity date At the closing of each loan Buff Homes will pay 0.5% origination fee to our asset

manager The Buffington Signature CL matured and was not renewed on October 28 2011 at which time

there were no amounts outstanding and payable to us Pursuant to the Third Modification to Construction

Loan Agreement the Buffington Classic CL was extended and modified to provide for up to $7.5 million in

residential interim construction financing The Buffington Classic CL currently matures on October 28 2012

majority of our trustees including majority of our independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in this transaction approved the Buffington Loan Facilities as being fair and reasonable to us and on

terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffihiated third parties

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $4.2 million and $3.1 million respectively is

included in notes receivable related parties related to the Buffington Loan Facilities For the
years

ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 we recognized approximately $548000 and $163000 respectively of interest

income related to the Buffington Loan Facilities Approximately $62000 and $42000 is included in accrued

receivable related parties as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively for interest associated with the

Buffington Loan Facilities

HLL II Highland Farms Loan

Effective December 22 2010 we made finished lot loan the HLL II Highland Farms Loan of

approximately $1.9 million to HLL II Land Acquisitions of Texas L.P Texas limited partnership HLL
II HLL II is wholly owned subsidiary of UDF The general partner of our Advisor is also the general

partner of UMTH LD our asset manager UMTH LD also serves as the asset manager of UDF The HLL II

Highland Farms Loan was initially evidenced and secured by first lien deed of trust recorded against

approximately 68 finished residential lots and 148 undeveloped lots in Highland Farms residential

subdivision in the City of San Antonio Bexar County Texas as well as promissory note assignments of

certain lot sale contracts and earnest money and other loan documents The interest rate under the HLL II

Highland Farms Loan is the lower of 13% or the highest rate allowed by law The HLL II Highland Farms

Loan matures and becomes due and payable in full on March 22 2013 The HLL II Highland Farms Loan

provides HLL II with an interest reserve of approximately $354000 pursuant to which we will fund HLL IIs

F-3



monthly interest payments and add the payments to the outstanding principal balance of the HLL II Highland

Farms Loan In connection with the HLL II Highland Farms Loan HLL II agreed to pay us an origination fee

of approximately $19000 which was funded at the closing of the loan For the year ended December 31

2011 approximately $9000 is included in commitment fee income related parties related to this fee

majority of our trustees including majority of our independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in this transaction approved the HLL II Highland Farms Loan as being fair and reasonable to us and

on terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffihiated third parties

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $1.4 million and $1.4 million respectively is

include4in notes receivable related parties related to the HLL II Highland Farms Loan For the years ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 we recognized approximately $193000 and $4000 respectively of interest

income related to this loan There is no interest receivable associated with the HLL II Highland Farms Loan as

of December 31 2011 Approximately $4000 is included in accrued receivable related parties as of

December 31 2010 for interest associated with the HLL II Highland Farms Loan

HLL Hidden Meadows Loan

Effective February 17 2011 we entered into Loan Agreement providing for maximum $9.9

million loan the HLL Hidden Meadows Loan to be made to HLL HLL is wholly owned subsidiary of

UDF The general partner of our Advisor is also the general partner of UMTH LD our asset manager

UMTH LD also serves as the asset manager of UDF The HLL Hidden Meadows Loan was initially secured

by first priority lien deed of trust to be recorded against 91 finished residential lots 190 partially

developed residential lots and residual undeveloped land located in the residential subdivision of Hidden

Meadows Harris County Texas ii the assignment of lot sale contracts providing for sales of finished

residential lots to builder and iii the assignment of development reimbursements owing from Municipal

Utility District to HLL The interest rate under the HLL Hidden Meadows Loan is the lower of 13% or the

highest rate allowed by law The HLL Hidden Meadows Loan matures and becomes due and payable in full

on January 21 2015 The HLL Hidden Meadows Loan provides HLL with an interest reserve pursuant to

which we will fund HLLs monthly interest payments and add the payments to the outstanding principal

balance of the HLL Hidden Meadows Loan In connection with the HLL Hidden Meadows Loan HLL agreed

to pay $99000 origination fee to us which was funded at the closing of the HLL Hidden Meadows Loan

For the year ended December 31 2011 approximately $23000 is included in commitment fee income

related parties related to this fee

majority of our trustees including majority of our independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in this transaction approved the HLL Hidden Meadows Loan as being fair and reasonable to us and

on terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffihiated third parties

As of December 31 2011 approximately $6.2 million is included in notes receivable related parties

related to the HLL Hidden Meadows Loan For the year ended December 31 2011 we recognized

approximately $634000 of interest income related to this loan Approximately $619000 is included in

accrued receivable related parties as of December 31 2011 for interest associated with the HLL Hidden

Meadows Loan

Ash Creek Loan

Effective April 20 2011 we entered into $3 million loan agreement the Ash Creek Loan with

UDF Ash Creek LP UDF Ash Creek an affiliated Delaware limited partnership UDF Ash Creek is

wholly owned subsidiary of UDF The general partner of our Advisor is also the general partner of UMTH
LD our asset manager UMTH LD also serves as the asset manager of UDF The Ash Creek Loan provides

UDF Ash Creek with interim construction financing for the construction of 19 new townhomes in an existing

townhome community in Dallas Texas The Ash Creek Loan is evidenced and secured by promissory note

first lien deeds of trust on the townhomes financed under the Ash Creek Loan and various other loan

documents The interest rate under the Ash Creek Loan is the lower of 13% per annum or the highest rate

allowed by law UDF Ash Creek is required to pay interest monthly and to repay portion of the principal

upon the sale of the townhomes covered by the deed of trust The Ash Creek Loan matures and becomes due

and payable in full on October 20 2012 In connection with the Ash Creek Loan UDF Ash Creek agreed to

pay $15000 origination fee to us which was funded at the closing of the Ash Creek Loan For the year
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ended December 31 2011 approximately $7000 is included in commitment fee income related parties

related to this fee

majority of our trustees including majority of our independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in this transaction approved the Ash Creek Loan as being fair and reasonable to us and on terms and

conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffihiated third parties

As of December 31 2011 approximately $1.0 million is included in notes receivable related parties

related to the Ash Creek Loan For the year ended December 31 2011 we recognized approximately $40000

of interest income related to this loan Approximately $40000 is included in accrued receivable related

parties as of December 31 2011 for interest associated with the Ash Creek Loan

UMTHFH Loan

On October 26 2011 the Trust entered into secured line of credit promissory note the UMTHFII

Loan with UMT Home Finance II LP UMTHFTI an affiliated Delaware limited partnership The

Trusts Advisor also serves as the advisor for UMT which owns 100% of the interests in UMTHFII The

UMTHFII Loan provides UMTHFII with $5 million line of credit to acquire or originate and fund

construction loans and for business purposes approved by the Trust that are related to the acquisition or

origination of construction loans The UMTHFII Loan is subordinate to senior loan entered into by

UMTHFII and is secured by pledge of the partnership interests in UMTHFII security interest against the

assets of UMTHFII and guaranty from UMT

The interest rate under the UMTHFII Loan is the lower of 13% per annum or the highest rate allowed

by law UMTHFII is required to repay the UMTHFII Loan as it receives net proceeds from the disposition of

assets underlying the construction loans and as it receives net proceeds of interest associated with the

construction loans In addition UMTHFII is required to repay the UMTHFII Loan as it receives net proceeds

from its private placement offering of up to $5 million in promissory notes The UMTHFII Loan matures and

becomes due and payable in full on October 26 2012

majority of our trustees including majority of our independent trustees who are not otherwise

interested in this transaction approved the Ash Creek Loan as being fair and reasonable to us and on terms and

conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffiliated third parties

As of December 31 2011 there were no amounts outstanding under the UMTHFII Loan and the Trust

had not funded any advances or recognized any income associated with the UMTHFII Loan

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Trust to concentrations of credit risk are primarily

temporary cash equivalent and loan participation interest related party The Trust maintains deposits in

financial institutions that may at times exceed amounts covered by insurance provided by the United States

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC The Trust has not experienced any losses related to amounts

in excess of FDIC limits

At December 31 2011 the Trusts real estate investments were secured by property located in Texas

and Colorado

We may invest in multiple secured loans that share common borrower The bankruptcy insolvency

or other inability of any borrower that is the subject of multiple loans to pay interest or repay principal on its

loans would have adverse consequences on our income and reduce the amount of funds available for

distribution to investors The more concentrated our portfolio is with one or few borrowers the greater credit

risk we face The loss of any one of these borrowers would have material adverse effect on our financial

condition and results of operations

As of December 31 2011 we had two loans to borrowers that individually accounted for over 10%

of the outstanding balance of our portfolio These borrowers include FH 295 LLC an unaffiliated Texas

limited liability company FH 295 loans to which comprise approximately 11% of the outstanding balance

of our portfolio and ii CTMGT Williamsburg LLC an unaffiliated Texas limited liability company

CTMGT Williamsburg loans to which comprise approximately 10% of the outstanding balance of our
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portfolio FH 295 and CTMGT Williamsburg are affiliates of each other and loans to affiliates of FH 295 and

CTMGT Williamsburg comprise an additional 44% of the outstanding balance of our loan portfolio

Subsequent Events

Effective February 2012 we entered into the Second Extension Agreement with Raley Holdings

resulting in an extension of the maturity date associated with our Credit Facility to February 2013

Effective February 26 2012 UMTH LD entered into second Loan Modification Agreement with

CTB which resulted in an extension of the maturity date on the UMTH LD CTB LOC to February 26 2015

As condition of this amendment the Trust agreed to replace its limited guaranty with full guaranty of all

obligations under the UMTH LD CTB LOC As of February 26 2012 the UMTH LD CTB LOC had

balance of approximately $4.6 million

On March 2012 our board of trustees authorized special distribution to our shareholders of record

as of the close of business on April 30 2012 This special distribution will be paid pro rata over all common
shares of beneficial interest outstanding as of April 30 2012 in an amount equal to $0.05 per common share of

beneficial interest This special distribution will be paid in cash and DRIP shares in May 2012

Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

Weighted

Average

Shares

Outstanding

Selected quarterly financial data unaudited for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 is

set forth below

Net Income Net Income Loss
Revenues Loss Per Share

2011

First quarter 2389000 1.208000 0.39 3069000

Second quarter 2890000 1593000 0.40 4009000

Third quarter 3.551000 2.138000 0.41 5207000

Fourth quarter 4468000 2.94 1000 0.45 6608000

Fortheyear 13.298000 7880000 1.66 4.734000

2010

First quarter 200000 1.000 395000

Second quarter 693.000 220.000 0.21 1.059.000

Fhird quarter 1397000 591000 0.36 632000

Fourth quarter 2188000 1.414000 0.64 2219000

Fortheyear 4478000 2226000 1.67 1332000

2009

First quarter 10000
Second quarter 10000
Third quarter 100 0.01 10000

Fourth quarter 4000 22000 0.94 23000

For the year 4000 22100 1.63 13000
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2010



10.16 Construction Loan Agreement between Buffington Signature Homes LLC and

United Development Funding IV previously filed in and incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Registrants Post-Effective Amendment No to

Registration Statement on Form S-il Commission File No 333-152760 filed on

August 2010

10.17 Construction Loan Agreement between Buffington Texas Classic Homes LLC

and United Development Funding IV previously filed in and incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Registrants Post-Effective Amendment No to

Registration Statement on Form S-li Commission File No 333-152760 filed on

August 92010

10.18 Secured Promissory Note by One Prairie Meadows Ltd for the benefit of United

Development Funding IV previously filed in and incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.18 to Registrants Post-Effective Amendment No to Registration

Statement on Form S-li Commission File No 333-152760 filed on August

2010

10.19 Construction Loan Agreement between Crescent Estates Custom Homes LP and

United Development Funding IV previously filed in and incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Registrants Post-Effective Amendment No to

Registration Statement on Form S-li Commission File No 333-152760 filed on

August 2010

10.20 Secured Promissory Note by CTMGT Land Holdings LP for the benefit of

United Development Funding IV previously filed in and incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Registrants Post-Effective Amendment No to

Registration Statement on Form S-li Commission File No 333-152760 filed on

August 2010

10.21 Revolving Loan Agreement between Community Trust Bank and UDF IV

Acquisitions L.P previously filed in and incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.2 to Form iO-Q filed on November 15 2010

10.22 Loan Purchase Agreement between FH 295 LLC and UDF IV Acquisitions L.P

previously filed in and incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q

filed on November 15 2010

10.23 Revolving Loan Agreement between United Texas Bank and UDF IV Finance

L.P previously filed in and incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Form

10-Q filed on November 15 2010

10.24 Extension Agreement between Raley Holdings LLC and United Development

Funding IV previously filed in and incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to

Form iO-KfiledonMarch3i2011

10.25 Secured Promissory Note between HLL Land Acquisitions of Texas LP and

United Development Funding TV previously filed in and incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Form 10-K filed on March 31 2011



10.26 Loan Agreement among CTMGT Williamsburg LLC CTMGT LLC Centamtar

Terras L.L.C and United Development Funding IV effective as of September

27 2011 jreviously filed in and incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

Form 10-Q filed on November 14 2011

10.27 Loan Agreement among CTMGT Williamsburg LLC CTMGT LLC Centamtar

Terras L.L.C Mehrdad Moayedi and United Development Funding IV Finance

II L.P effective as of November 30 2011

10.28 Guaranty of Payment by United Development Funding IV for the benefit of

Babson Mezzanine Realty Investors IIL.P effective as of December 30 2011

10.29 Guaranty of Completion by United Development Funding IV for the benefit of

Babson Mezzanine Realty Investors II L.P effective as of December 30 2011

10.30 Second Extension Agreement between Raley Holdings LLC and United

Development Funding IV effective as of February 2012

21.1 List of Subsidiaries

31.1 Rule 13a-14a/15d-14a Certification of Principal Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a-14a/15d-14a Certification of Principal Financial Officer

32.1 Section 1350 Certifications

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

l01.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101 .CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101 .PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

Filed herewith

Furnished herewith In accordance with Item 601b32 of Regulation S-K this Exhibit is not deemed

filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that

section Such certifications will not be deemed incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities

Act of 1933 as amended or the Exchange Act except to the extent that the registrant specifically

incorporates it by reference

Furnished herewith XBRL Extensible Business Reporting Language information is furnished and not filed

or part of registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of

1933 is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and otherwise is

not subject to liability under these sections



Exhibit 21.1

List of Subsidiaries

United Development Funding IV Operating Partnership L.P Delaware limited partnership

UDF TV Home Finance L.P Delaware limited partnership

UDF IV Finance L.P Delaware limited partnership

UDF TV Finance II L.P Delaware limited partnership

UDF TV Acquisitions L.P Delaware limited partnership

UDF TV Finance III L.P Delaware limited partnership

UDF TV HF Manager LLC Delaware limited liability company

UDF TV Finance Manager LLC Delaware limited liability company

UDF TV Finance TI Manager LLC Delaware limited liability company

UDF IV Acquisitions Manager LLC Delaware limited liability company

UDF IV Finance ITT Manager LLC Delaware limited liability company



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Hollis Greenlaw certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of United Development Funding IV

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 3d-i 5e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-i 5f and Sd-i 5f
for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to

the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within

those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented

in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures

as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter in the case of our annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Dated this 30th day of March 2012

Is Hollis Greenlaw

Hollis Greenlaw

Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

Cara Obert certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of United Development Funding IV

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-1 5e and Sd-i 5e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 51 and 5d- 15f
for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to

the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within

those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented

in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures

as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter in the case of our annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Dated this 30th day of March 2012

Is Cara Obert

Cara Obert

Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATIONS

This Certificate is being delivered pursuant to the requirements of Section 1350 of Chapter 63

Mail Fraud of Title 18 Crimes and Criminal Procedures of the United States Code as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not except to the extent required by

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 be deemed filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as amended

The undersigned who are the Chief Executive Officer and ii the Chief Financial Officer of

United Development Funding IV the Trust each hereby certify as follows

The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Trust the Report which accompanies this

Certificate ftilly complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 and all information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of the Trust

Dated this 30th day of March 2012

Is Hollis Greenlaw

Hollis Greenlaw

Chief Executive Officer

Is Cara Obert

Cara Obert

Chief Financial Officer

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has

been provided to the registrant and will be retained by the registrant and furnished to the Securities and

Exchange Commission or its staff upon request
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Form 10-K

copy of the mmpanys form 10-K filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission is available

without charge at www.sec.gov or upon written
request

Photos for illustrative
purposes only Properties pictured are not owned by or to be acquired by UDF IV


